
 

 

     Ffôn/Tel: 01656 643643                                                   Facs/Fax: 01656 668126          Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk                                                                                  

     Negeseuon SMS/ SMS Messaging: 07581 157014           Twitter@bridgendCBC              Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk 

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun 

Text relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg  
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith. 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh. 

 

Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief 
Executive’s Directorate  
Deialu uniongyrchol / 01656 643148 / 643147 / 
643694 
Gofynnwch am:  Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
 
Ein cyf / Our ref:       
Eich cyf / Your ref:       
 
Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Gwener, 21 Ebrill 2023 

 

Annwyl Cynghorydd,  
 
PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU AC ARCHWILIO 
 
Cynhelir Cyfarfod  Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio Hybrid yn Siambr y Cyngor - Swyddfeydd 
Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, CF31 4WB ar Dydd Iau, 27 Ebrill 2023 am 10:00. 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.  Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb    

 Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau. 
 

2.  Datganiadau o fuddiant    
 Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 

Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008.  
 

3.  Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion   3 - 14 

 I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 26/01/2023 
 

4.  Cofnod Gweithredu'r Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio  
 

15 - 18 

5.  Adroddiadau Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio Cymru  
 

19 - 60 

6.  Cynnydd yn erbyn cynllun seiliedig ar risg archwilio mewnol 2022-23  
 

61 - 70 

7.  Siarter Gwasanaeth Archwilio Mewnol Rhanbarthol 2023-24  
 

71 - 96 

8.  Polisi Atal Osgoi Treth  
 

97 - 122 

9.  Rhaglen Gwaith Cychwynnol 2023-24  
 

123 - 128 

10.  Materion Brys    

 I ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn 
y dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol â Rhan 4 (pharagraff 4) o'r 
Rheolau Trefn y Cyngor yn y Cyfansoddiad. 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


Nodyn:  Bydd hwn yn gyfarfod Hybrid a bydd Aelodau a Swyddogion mynychu trwy Siambr y 
Cyngor, Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr / o bell Trwy Timau Microsoft. 
Bydd y cyfarfod cael ei recordio i’w drosglwyddo drwy wefan y Cyngor.  Os oes gennych unrhyw 
gwestiwn am hyn, cysylltwch â cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01656 643147 / 
643148. 
 
Yn ddiffuant 
K Watson 
Prif Swyddog, Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddio, AD a Pholisi Corfforaethol 
 
Dosbarthiad: 
 
Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr 
Mr G Chapman 
Mr B Olorunnisola 
Ms S Davies 
Mr A Bagley 

A Wathan 
A Williams 
C Davies 
D M Hughes 

M L Hughes 
RM Granville 
S J Griffiths 
S J Bletsoe 



PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU AC ARCHWILIO - DYDD IAU, 26 IONAWR 2023 

 

 

COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU AC ARCHWILIO A 
GYNHALIWYD YN HYBRID CYNGOR SIAMBR / O BELL TRWY TIMAU MICROSOFT , DYDD 
IAU, 26 IONAWR 2023, AM 10:00 

 
Presennol 

 
Y Cynghorydd Mr G Chapman – Cadeirydd  

 
Mr B Olorunnisola Ms S Davies Mr A Bagley S J Griffiths 
D M Hughes M L Hughes A Wathan A Williams 
RM Granville S J Bletsoe C Davies  

 
 
 
Swyddogion: 
 
Rachel Keepins Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
Carys Lord Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid 
Deborah Exton Dirprwy Bennaeth Cyllid dros dro 
Mark Thomas Pennaeth Gwasanaeth Archwilio Rhanbarthol 
Samantha Clements Archwilio Cymru 
Nigel Smith Rheolwr Cyllid 
Eilish Thomas Rheolwr Cyllid – Rheoli Ariannol a Chau 
Jason Blewitt Archwilio Cymru 
Joan Davies Dirprwy Pennaeth Gwasanaeth Archwilio Rhanbarthol 
Alex Rawlin Rheolwr Polisi Corfforaethol a Materion Cyhoeddus 

 
48. DATGAN BUDDIANT 

 
Dim. 

 
49. CYMERADWYO'R COFNODION 

 
PENDERFYNWYD:          Cymeradwyo bod cofnodion y cyfarfod dyddiedig 

10/11/2022 yn gywir. 

 
50. COFNOD GWEITHREDU'R PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU AC ARCHWILIO 

 
Amlinellodd Rheolwr y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd yr adroddiad a oedd yn rhoi'r 
newyddion diweddaraf i'r Aelodau am Gofnod Gweithredu'r Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac 
Archwilio. 
 
Roedd y cofnod gweithredu ynghlwm yn Atodiad A yr adroddiad.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD:          Bod y Pwyllgor yn nodi'r adroddiad a'r Cofnod Gweithredu a 

oedd ynghlwm. 
 

51. TRACIWR RHEOLEIDDIO 
 

Cyflwynwyd yr adroddiad uchod gan y Rheolwr Polisi Corfforaethol a Materion 

Cyhoeddus a'i bwrpas oedd rhoi'r newyddion diweddaraf i'r Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac 
Archwilio (LlacA) am y traciwr rheoleiddio. 
 
Ar ôl derbyn adborth ar y Traciwr Rheoleiddio, dywedodd fod ffocws ar y cyswllt â'r 
Pwyllgorau Trosolwg a Chraffu i sicrhau manylion digonol am yr arolygiadau a'r camau 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU AC ARCHWILIO - DYDD IAU, 26 IONAWR 2023 

 

 

gweithredu i ymateb i'r argymhellion. Gan hynny, byddai'n trefnu cyfarfod â 
chydweithwyr Craffu i drafod a sicrhau bod gwybodaeth reoleiddio'n cael ei chasglu 
maen blaengynlluniau gwaith yn y dyfodol a gyflwynir gerbron y Pwyllgorau hynny. 
  
Fel enghraifft, pe bai teimlad bod tystiolaeth o gynnydd yn brin, dywedodd fod angen 
cael mecanwaith clir i ymdrin â hynny neu gyfeirio hynny i sylw Pwyllgor Trosolwg a 
Chraffu. 
 
Dywedodd y Rheolwr Polisi Corfforaethol a Materion Cyhoeddus hefyd fod angen cynnal 
trafodaeth, er mwyn deall a oedd edrych yn ôl dros ddwy flynedd yn ddigonol yn 
gysylltiedig â'r uchod, ac o ganlyniad i hynny, roedd arolygiad Estyn o 2019 wedi'i 
gynnwys yn rhan o'r camau dilynol. 
 
Gofynnodd i'r pwyllgor drin yr adroddiad a gyflwynwyd fel yr adroddiad cynnydd cyntaf, 
gan ddweud bod yr adroddiad cryno'n nodi'r arolygiadau a'r argymhellion a 
ychwanegwyd ers yr adroddiad diwethaf hwnnw ym mis Tachwedd, fel y cyfeiriwyd ato 
yn Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad, ac fel yr amlygwyd ym mharagraff 4.1. 
 
Dywedwyd bod adroddiad newydd gan Arolygiaeth Gofal Cymru ar y Bwrdd Rhaglen 
Cynnydd Arweinyddiaeth Drawsnewidiol, a phosibilrwydd o 2 adroddiad arall ar ddau o 
gartrefi gofal CBSPO. 
 
Roedd paragraff 4.2 yr adroddiad yn cadarnhau bod 18 o argymhellion wedi'u cau, gan 
gynnwys 8 a oedd yn argymhellion o archwiliadau newydd.  
 
Roedd y corff rheoleiddio wedi cyflwyno nifer sylweddol o argymhellion i'r Cyngor, ac 
roedd 18 o'r rheiny bellach wedi'u cau. Roedd statws CAG wedi'i bennu ar gyfer y rhain. 
Ychwanegodd fod angen rhoi blaenoriaeth i gwblhau rhai o'r rhain ar frys.  
 
 
Dywedodd y Rheolwr Polisi Corfforaethol a Materion Cyhoeddus mai'r gobaith oedd y 
byddai'r Pwyllgor yn cael sicrwydd o wybod bod y traciwr rheoleiddio wedi cael ei 
ychwanegu at y trefniadau rheoli perfformiad corfforaethol chwarterol ac y byddai felly'n 
cael ei fonitro drwy'r broses hon. Daeth â’i chyflwyniad i ben drwy nodi bod y traciwr 
rheoleiddio wedi cael ei ystyried gan y Bwrdd Rheoli Corfforaethol ar 16 Ionawr 2023. 
 
Holodd aelod sut a ble y gallai gael hyd i wybodaeth am adroddiad penodol a oedd yn 
cael ei gyflwyno i'r Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraff perthnasol o fewn y traciwr rheoleiddio. 
 
Dywedodd y Rheolwr Polisi Corfforaethol a Materion Cyhoeddus, er nad oedd 
mecanwaith o'r fath yn weithredol ar adeg y cyfarfod, y byddai hynny'n rhywbeth y gallai 
holi Swyddogion yn ei gylch i geisio ei weithredu yn y dyfodol.  
 
Holodd aelod pwy fyddai'r swyddogion arweiniol ar y categorïau Ambr a Choch a sut y 
byddai modd adnabod swyddogion sy'n gyfrifol am y cynlluniau unioni ac am 
gymeradwyo argymhellion, gan gynnwys y graddfeydd amser cysylltiedig. Ategwyd hyn 
gan y Cadeirydd a ddywedodd fod angen cael llinellau amser manwl yn gysylltiedig â 
chwblhau'r categorïau Ambr a Choch.  
 
Llongyfarchodd aelod lleyg y swyddog arweiniol am y gwaith yr oedd wedi'i wneud ar y 
Traciwr Rheoleiddio, a dywedodd ei fod yn teimlo y byddai'n fuddiol cyflwyno ffordd well 
i'r pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio gyflawni neu gymryd cyfrifoldeb dros ei 
swyddogaethau o hyn allan. Holodd a oedd diffiniad swyddogol rhwng Coch ac Ambr. 
Awgrymodd y dylid atodi'r diffiniadau. Dywedodd hefyd y gallai fod yn ddefnyddiol cael 
llinellau amser penodol ar gyfer camau gweithredu ac argymhellion, yn hytrach na 

Page 4



PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU AC ARCHWILIO - DYDD IAU, 26 IONAWR 2023 

 

 

chadw'r peth yn benagored, oherwydd byddai hynny o gymorth i'r pwyllgor i ddibenion 
tracio. 
 
Roedd y Cadeirydd yn dymuno nodi ei fod yn ategu'r sylwadau uchod. Ychwanegodd 
hefyd y byddai'n ddefnyddiol gwybod enwau'r swyddogion a fyddai'n gyfrifol am 
gyflawni'r argymhellion a llinell amser ar gyfer cwblhau'r argymhellion, gan gynnwys 
dyddiadau targed ar gyfer cwblhau. 
 
Ymatebodd y Rheolwr Polisi Corfforaethol a Materion Cyhoeddus drwy ddweud y 
byddai'n ystyried cynnwys y manylion hyn yn y traciwr ar ôl cynnal trafodaeth â 
chydweithwyr craffu ynghylch y cysylltiadau â'r broses Trosolwg a Chraffu. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD:  Bod y Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio yn cytuno â'r 

pwyntiau cryno a'r traciwr rheoleiddio manwl, ac yn codi'r 
materion uchod er trafodaeth ddilynol. 

 
52. ADRODDIADAU PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU AC ARCHWILIO - ARCHWILIO 

CYMRU 
 
Cyflwynodd y Rheolwr Archwilio Ariannol o Archwilio Cymru yr adroddiad er mwyn 
cyflwyno adroddiadau Archwilio Cymru i'r Pwyllgor, gan gynnwys y newyddion 
diweddaraf am y gwaith yr oedd Archwilio Cymru eisoes wedi'i wneud, ac yr oedd yn 
bwriadu ei wneud, mewn perthynas â chyllid a pherfformiad. 
 
Dywedodd ei chydweithiwr, uwch archwilydd o Archwilio Cymru, mai diben yr Adolygiad 
Llywodraethu Sylfaenol o Fwrdd Partneriaeth Rhanbarthol Cwm Taf Morgannwg oedd 
cael sicrwydd bod y Bwrdd Iechyd a’r tri Chyngor Lleol yn gweithio’n effeithiol drwy’r 
Bwrdd Arweinyddiaeth Drawsnewidiol i gefnogi gwaith integredig rhanbarthol ar draws 
rhanbarth Cwm Taf Morgannwg. Roedd hyn yn cynnwys adeiladu ar y gwaith a wnaed 
yn ystod y 18 mis diwethaf, a cheisio meddwl mwy yn y tymor hir o hyn allan, ac ar 
ffyrdd i ariannu'r rhanbarth yn well. Ystyriwyd bod angen cynllunio strategol mwy 
effeithiol yn y dyfodol. 
 
Ym mharagraff 4.1 yr adroddiad, rhoddwyd gwybodaeth am yr adroddiadau yr oedd 
Archwilio Cymru wedi'u llunio i'w hystyried gan y Pwyllgor, sef:  
 

 Rhaglen ac Amserlen Archwilio Cymru (Atodiad A yr adroddiad) 

 Bwrdd y Rhaglen Arweinyddiaeth Drawsnewidiol – Adolygiad Llywodraethu 
Sylfaenol – Bwrdd Partneriaeth Rhanbarthol Cwm Taf Morgannwg (Atodiad B) 

 
Rhoddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant 
ymateb i elfennau o'r Archwiliad a gynhaliwyd a oedd yn gysylltiedig â B uchod, ac roedd 
wedi ymateb yn llawn yn yr adroddiad yn Atodiad C.   
 
Cyfeiriodd cynrychiolydd Archwilio Cymru hefyd at y 7 argymhelliad a nodwyd yn 
adroddiad Archwilio Cymru (yn nhudalen 6 Atodiad B), a rhoi trosolwg cryno o'r rhain er 
budd yr aelodau. 
 
Holodd aelod beth oedd yn achosi'r oedi cyn sefydlu'r bwrdd ar gyfer y rhaglen 
Llywodraethu Trawsbynciol yr oedd disgwyl iddo gael ei sefydlu ym mis Gorffennaf 
2022. Dywedodd yr Uwch Archwilydd o Archwilio Cymru mai pwrpas yr astudiaeth oedd 
cael sicrwydd bod y Bwrdd Iechyd a’r tri chyngor yn cydweithio drwy’r Bwrdd 
Partneriaeth Arweinyddiaeth Drawsnewidiol (BPAD). Dywedodd fod y gwaith maes 
wedi'i gyflawni o fis Tachwedd 2021 hyd fis Ionawr 2022, ac ar ôl hynny cyflwynwyd eu 
canfyddiadau ym mis Mawrth 2022. Casglwyd yn yr adroddiad fod y BPAD mewn 
sefyllfa dda i ddatblygu ymagwedd gref at waith rhanbarthol, gan adeiladu ar y 

Page 5



PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU AC ARCHWILIO - DYDD IAU, 26 IONAWR 2023 

 

 

perthnasoedd gwaith cadarnhaol dros y 18 mis diwethaf, a oedd hefyd wedi cynnwys 
heriau COVID. Yn ogystal â hynny, roedd angen meddwl mwy yn y tymor hir i gryfhau 
agweddau ar drefniadau llywodraethu a gwella defnydd rhanbarthol ac arloesol o 
adnoddau. Gwnaed saith argymhelliad bryd hynny a'u cyflwyno'n ôl wedi hynny i'r bwrdd 
Arweinyddiaeth Integredig newydd ar 1 Rhagfyr 2022. Ychwanegodd y Cyfarwyddwr 
Corfforaethol, Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant, ers cyflawni'r gwaith maes a 
chyhoeddi'r adroddiad, fod adolygiad llywodraethu wedi'i gynnal. Mae bwrdd 
arweinyddiaeth integredig newydd wedi cael ei sefydlu wedi'i gadeirio gan Brif 
Weithredwr y Bwrdd Iechyd, a chan gynnwys swyddogion ar lefel uchel iawn ar draws y 
sefydliadau i sicrhau gwaith trawsbynciol yn gysylltiedig â chyllid, y gweithlu, cyfalaf ac 
adeiladau. Dywedodd fod gwaith pellach i'w wneud o hyd yn gysylltiedig â'r gweithlu. 
Roedd y trefniadau ar waith yn nhermau rheoli perfformiad. Cafodd y blaenoriaethau 
ynddo eu trosi'n gynllun ardal newydd a'r dangosfyrddau perfformiad ar draws yr holl 
seilwaith cefnogol. Dywedodd fod aeddfedrwydd y canlyniadau'n amrywio. Fodd bynnag, 
er mai'r terfyn amser ar gyfer cwblhau oedd mis Medi, roedd peth o'r gwaith wedi'i 
gwblhau. Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol fod 
gwaith pellach i'w wneud yn y maes hwnnw ac yn nhermau rheoli risg, gan ganolbwyntio 
ar y risg yn gysylltiedig â chyllid, yn enwedig gan fod y BPRh yn gyfrifol am gyllid grant 
byrdymor gyda gofynion taprog. Mae uchelgais y Bwrdd Partneriaeth Rhanbarthol yn glir 
iawn, yn yr ystyr bod ei gwmpas yn ehangach na'r Gronfa Integreiddio Rhanbarthol yn 
unig, a'i fod hefyd yn cynnwys y defnydd o gyllidebau craidd a'r cyfle i archwilio'r 
posibilrwydd o gyfuno rhagor o gronfeydd ar draws y rhanbarth. Yn rhan o'r weledigaeth 
honno ynghylch integreiddio, bwriedir cyflawni mwy o waith erbyn diwedd y flwyddyn 
ariannol.  
 
Ers iddo ddod yn Gynghorydd yn 2022, dywedodd aelod ei fod wedi gweld cynnydd da 
wrth gydweithio'n gysylltiedig â holl faes trefniadau llywodraethu a gwella adnoddau 
rhanbarthol.Croesawodd y ffocws ar gysylltu'r pum mlynedd a mwy o gynllunio â 
Chynllun Datblygu Lleol y Cyngor a Chynlluniau'r Bwrdd Iechyd. 
 
Dywedodd ei fod wedi gweld bod Iechyd yn ddarpariaeth gynhwysfawr a bod y 
problemau a wynebir gan adrannau achosion brys o bosib wedi'u hachosi oherwydd 
prinder gweithwyr ym maes gofal cymdeithasol, yn enwedig ers y pandemig. 
Fodd bynnag, roedd cynlluniau'r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol a Llesiant ar gyfer cynnydd, fel y cyfeiriwyd atynt yn ei hadroddiad, yn 
galonogol. 
 
Dywedodd y Cadeirydd y byddai'n ddefnyddiol gwybod pa drefniadau oedd wedi cael eu 
rhoi ar waith yn nhermau llywodraethu, a holodd a oedd unrhyw wybodaeth am y sawl a 
fyddai'n ymdrin â rheoli perfformiad ac unrhyw oedi cysylltiedig i'r system hysbysiadau 
goleuadau traffig. Awgrymodd fod gwaith craidd yn seiliedig ar y gyllideb yn cael ei 
wneud i fynd i'r afael â phroblemau adnoddau o fewn yr awdurdod lleol ac, yn arbennig, 
ym maes Gwasanaethau Plant a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol. 
 
Cytunodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant, y 
byddai cynllun gweithredu a fyddai'n rhoi mwy o adlewyrchiad o fewn y traciwr 
rheoleiddio, yn ogystal â gweithio tuag at symud ymlaen â manyleb genedlaethol 
ynghylch sut roedd angen mynd ati i siapio gwasanaethau Cymunedol integredig yn y 
dyfodol. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD :     Bod yr Aelodau’n nodi adroddiadau Pwyllgor Llywodraethu 

ac Archwilio - Archwilio Cymru gan gynnwys adroddiad y 
Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 
a Llesiant, ac Atodiadau A, B ac C. 

 
 

Page 6



PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU AC ARCHWILIO - DYDD IAU, 26 IONAWR 2023 

 

 

53. ASESIAD RISG CORFFORAETHOL 2023-24 
 
 
Cyflwynodd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid adroddiad er mwyn cyflwyno 
Asesiad Risg Corfforaethol wedi'i ddiweddaru ar gyfer 2023-24 i'r Pwyllgor Llywodraethu 
ac Archwilio a Pholisi Rheoli Risg Corfforaethol wedi'i ddiweddaru. 
 
Roedd yr Asesiad Risg Corfforaethol, ynghlwm yn Atodiad A yr adroddiad, wedi cael ei 
adolygu mewn ymgynghoriad â'r Bwrdd Rheoli Corfforaethol. Mae'n nodi'r prif risgiau o 
flaen y Cyngor, eu cysylltiad â'r amcanion llesiant corfforaethol o dan Ddeddf Llesiant 
Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015, effaith debygol y risgiau hyn ar wasanaethau'r 
Cyngor a'r Fwrdeistref Sirol ehangach, ac yn nodi pa gamau sy'n cael eu cymryd i 
liniaru'r risgiau a phwy sy'n gyfrifol am ymateb y Cyngor. Mae'r asesiad risg wedi'i alinio 
â'r Strategaeth Ariannol Tymor Canolig. 
 
Dywedodd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid fod 11 o risgiau ar y Gofrestr 
Risg Gorfforaethol ar hyn o bryd. Roedd pob risg wedi'i adolygu gan y Bwrdd Rheoli 
Corfforaethol. 
 
Roedd y Polisi Rheoli Risg hefyd wedi cael ei ddiwygio i adlewyrchu'r ffaith bod 
meddalwedd newydd i dracio ac adrodd am risg wedi cael ei chyflwyno yn ystod 2023. 
 
Roedd llinell amser y Polisi Rheoli Risg Corfforaethol, a oedd wedi'i chynnwys yn 
Atodiad B yr adroddiad, wedi'i diwygio ar gyfer 2023-24. 
 
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol, Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant nad 
oedd y problemau'n gysylltiedig â phwysau ar y system iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol yn 
newydd, ond y rheswm dros uwchgyfeirio hyn i'r gofrestr risg gorfforaethol nawr oedd 
lefel y risg o fewn y maes gwasanaeth cyfnewidiol hwn. 
 
  
Dywedodd fod cynlluniau gweithredu ar waith i ganolbwyntio ar y ddau faes a oedd 
wedi'u pennu'n goch yn yr adroddiad, lle roedd lefel y risg yn uchel.  
 
Roedd Adolygiad o Waith Cymdeithasol yn cael ei gynnal gan y Pennaeth Gofal 
Cymdeithasol Oedolion a fyddai'n edrych ar gyfluniad timau ac adnoddau ar draws y 
gwasanaethau oedolion, gyda'r bwriad o wella'r maes gwasanaeth o hyn allan. 
 
Aeth y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol yn ei flaen wedyn i sôn am yr heriau yn y farchnad 
recriwtio o fewn Gofal Cymdeithasol, lle roedd hi'n anodd recriwtio a chadw staff. Nid 
oedd hon yn sefyllfa neilltuol o fewn CBSPO, ond yn broblem ledled Cymru. 
 
Eglurodd fod y Cyngor felly'n cymryd camau i fynd i'r afael â hyn, drwy 'dyfu' ei weithwyr 
ei hun, a chreu cysylltiadau â Phrifysgolion a Choleg Penybont, er mwyn hyrwyddo Pen-
y-bont ar Ogwr yn well o safbwynt marchnata. Y gobaith yw y bydd hyn yn denu pobl iau 
i ddilyn gyrfa ym maes Gofal Cymdeithasol Plant ac Oedolion, yn enwedig gan fod 
gweithlu Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn heneiddio yn y maes gwaith hwn. 
 
Ffocws gwirioneddol i'r Gwasanaeth oedd ailadeiladu capasiti a'r gwasanaethau 
ailalluogi. Gwelwyd gostyngiad ar ôl COVID neu yn ystod COVID, i'r graddau lle’r oedd y 
gwasanaeth yn darparu tua 1,000 yn llai o oriau o wasanaeth ailalluogi bob blwyddyn 
nag a ddarparwyd cyn y pandemig. Pe na bai unigolion yn dilyn y llwybrau ailalluogi 
hynny, byddent yn debygol o fod angen mwy o ofal a chymorth parhaus. 
 
Mewn perthynas â gwaith strategol yn gysylltiedig â gweithlu, roedd ffocws mawr ar 
farchnata a chreu cysylltiadau â myfyrwyr iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol Coleg Penybont. 

Page 7



PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU AC ARCHWILIO - DYDD IAU, 26 IONAWR 2023 

 

 

Am y rhesymau a roddwyd uchod, roedd angen cael mwy o bobl ifanc i lenwi swyddi 
gwag yn gysylltiedig â gofal. 
 
I'r perwyl hwn, roedd swydd-ddisgrifiadau wedi cael eu hadolygu, a byddai cais am 
daliad atodol ar sail y farchnad yn cael ei gyflwyno'r mis hwn, er mwyn mynd i'r afael â 
natur heriol iawn y farchnad a oedd yn gysylltiedig â'r gweithlu gofal.  
 
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant y 
byddai'n ystyried yn strategol, ac yn rhanbarthol, y posibilrwydd o symud adnoddau i'r 
meysydd hynny lle'r oedd bylchau yn y gwasanaethau a gynigir yn lleol. Ychwanegodd 
fod angen ystyried archebu lleoliadau dros dro mewn bloc, lle gellid gweld bod ar bobl 
angen y lefel honno o gymorth.  
 
Er nad oedd asesiad llawn wedi'i gynnal o leoliadau hirdymor, y nod oedd ceisio gwella’r 
sefyllfa a’r llif i unigolion drwy’r system gyfan, a gwneud hynny mewn modd sy’n diwallu 
anghenion unigolion orau, ond hefyd yn lleihau unrhyw amhariaeth gyffredinol ar y 
system gyfan. 
 
Cyfeiriodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Llesiant at 
brosiect a oedd yn cael ei oruchwylio gan Lywodraeth Cymru o dan y teitl 'cyfwerth â 
1000 o welyau'. Cadarnhaodd nad oedd a wnelo'r prosiect â gwelyau'n benodol, ond 
niferoedd a oedd gyfwerth â gwelyau. I gloi, dywedodd y gwelwyd gwelliant drwy 
drefniadau rheoli yn y rhan hon o'r gwasanaeth. 
Aeth yn ei blaen i ddweud bod 3 lefel uwchgyfeirio wedi'u cyflwyno i sicrhau bod 
dyletswyddau statudol yn cael eu cyflawni mewn modd amserol, sef: 
Efydd – gweithredol – lefel gwasanaeth – dan gadeiryddiaeth pennaeth neu ddirprwy 
bennaeth gwasanaeth 
Arian - tactegol - lefel cyfarwyddiaeth - dan gadeiryddiaeth y cyfarwyddwr corfforaethol 
Aur – strategol – corfforaethol – dan gadeiryddiaeth y prif weithredwr 
Cyn gynted ag y byddai dyletswyddau statudol yn cael eu cyflawni mewn modd amserol 
ar draws yr holl wasanaethau gofal cymdeithasol, byddai'r strwythur gorchymyn yn cael 
ei lacio.  
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol hefyd fod hyn 
yn gysylltiedig ag adolygiad Archwilio Cymru o ofal heb ei drefnu, er mwyn sicrhau bod y 
Gwasanaeth yn rheoli materion sy'n ymwneud â pharhad busnes mewn modd 
systematig. Dywedodd fod camau wedi'u rhoi ar waith ac y byddai'n barod i rannu'r rhain 
â'r Pwyllgor ar gais. Roedd cynlluniau gweithredu perthnasol yn cynnwys ymdriniaeth 
fanylach â'r rhain. 
 
Awgrymodd aelod y dylid defnyddio siart liwiau i ddangos y tri chategori risg, gan 
gynnwys statws CAG, er rhwyddineb wrth ddarllen a deall y cynnydd yn gysylltiedig â 
chategorïau risg. Holodd yr aelod hefyd ynghylch y risgiau a grybwyllwyd yn gysylltiedig 
a recriwtio i'r gweithlu a methiant cyflenwyr. 
 
Atebodd y Prif Swyddog Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid drwy ddweud y byddai'r rheolwyr yn 
ystyried awgrymiadau ynghylch y cyflwyniad er mwyn gwneud yr wybodaeth yn haws ei 
deall ac ati.  
 
Tynnodd aelod sylw at bwysau chwyddiant, dibyniaeth ar arian grant, costau chwyddiant 
yn gysylltiedig â deunyddiau mewn gwaith a oedd wedi'i roi allan ar dendr, heriau costau 
byw ac achosion o beidio talu'r dreth gyngor. Teimlai fod y rhain yn risgiau arbennig o 
uchel yr oedd angen eu monitro'n ofalus. 
 
Atebodd y Prif Swyddog, Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid, fod y risgiau hyn yn datblygu i fod 
yn fwy sylweddol, ac yn yr adolygiad nesaf byddai'n ystyried sut orau i ymdrin â'r rhain, 
efallai drwy rannu risgiau i gategorïau mwy diffiniedig yn y dyfodol. 

Page 8



PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU AC ARCHWILIO - DYDD IAU, 26 IONAWR 2023 

 

 

 
Bu trafodaeth rhwng aelod lleyg a'r Prif Swyddog Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid ynghylch 
sut mae'r Cyngor yn ymdrin â'r risgiau amrywiol, y camau allweddol a oedd wedi'u 
sefydlu, sut y gellir gwneud cynnydd gyda'r rhain a sut mae gwahaniaethu rhwng risgiau 
a busnes fel arfer. Soniodd am weithredu dyddiadau targed er mwyn gallu canolbwyntio 
ar ganlyniadau. Dywedodd y Prif Swyddog Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid, er bod ganddynt 
system lywodraethu ariannol gref iawn ar waith sy’n lleihau risgiau i’r eithaf, awgrymodd 
y gallent wahanu'r busnes fel arfer ac unrhyw gamau newydd penodol a gyflwynir gan 
fod y risgiau'n symud ac y bydd angen newid y dull o weithredu yn eu cylch.  
 
 
Holodd aelod lleyg am y Polisi a'r newidiadau a gafwyd. Gofynnodd a oedd y polisi yn 
newydd a sut y byddai'r newidiadau i'r Polisi yn cael eu cofnodi.  Cadarnhaodd y Dirprwy 
Bennaeth Cyllid nad polisi newydd ydoedd, ond polisi presennol a oedd yn cael ei 
adolygu'n flynyddol. Cadarnhaodd na fu unrhyw newid yn y flwyddyn ariannol ddiwethaf. 
Nodwyd y byddai unrhyw newidiadau i'r polisi yn y dyfodol yn cael eu hamlygu.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD :        Bod y Pwyllgor wedi ystyried adroddiad Asesiad Risg 

Corfforaethol 2023-24 ynghyd â'r diweddariad o Bolisi 
Rheoli Risg 2020-2023. 

 
54. STRATEGAETH RHEOLI TRYSORLYS 2023-24 

 
Cyflwynodd y Rheolwr Grŵp – Prif Gyfrifydd adroddiad ar ddrafft y Strategaeth Rheoli 
Trysorlys 2023-24, a oedd yn cynnwys: 
 

 Strategaeth Fenthyca 2023-24 

 Strategaeth Fuddsoddi 2023-24 

 Dangosyddion rheoli trysorlys ar gyfer y cyfnod 2023-24 hyd 2025-26 
 
Gofynnodd Aelod i'r Prif Swyddog, Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid am y risgiau a'r 
amddiffyniadau yn gysylltiedig â benthyca i awdurdodau eraill. 
 
Sicrhaodd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid y Pwyllgor na fyddai trafodion o'r 
fath ond yn digwydd ar ôl rhoi sylw priodol i gyngor Cynghorwyr Rheoli Trysorlys 
CBSPO.  
 
Mynegodd Aelod ei fod yn dymuno parhau â'r cwestiwn blaenorol ynghylch Polisi 
Buddsoddi Moesegol a gofynnodd i'r Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid 
ymhelaethu ar y newidiadau sylweddol mewn cyfraddau llog ar gyfer rhoi a derbyn 
benthyciadau. 
 
Dywedodd y Prif Swyddog - Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid y gallai dderbyn awgrymiadau'n 
gysylltiedig â'r Polisi Buddsoddi Moesegol er mwyn gwella'r Strategaeth i'r dyfodol. 
Mewn perthynas â benthyca, dywedodd fod y benthyciadau cyfredol ar gyfraddau llog 
sefydlog, felly nid oedd y newidiadau mewn cyfraddau llog yn effeithio ar unrhyw 
ymrwymiadau ariannol a oedd gan y Cyngor yn y dyfodol agos. Byddai'r newidiadau i 
gyfraddau llog yn cael eu hadlewyrchu wrth wneud buddsoddiadau newydd. 
 
Croesawodd aelod y newidiadau'n gysylltiedig â benthyca i awdurdodau eraill.  
 
Cyfeiriodd y Prif Swyddog, Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid y newidiadau i Bolisi Rhoi 
Benthyciadau CBSPO i sylw'r aelodau, a oedd wedi'u cynnwys yn yr adroddiad, ac y 
tybiwyd eu bod yn rhesymol. Ychwanegodd fod trefniadau'r awdurdod lleol i roi a derbyn 
benthyciadau yn cael eu hystyried yn ofalus yn unol â chyngor arbenigol gan 
gynghorwyr Rheoli Trysorlys y Cyngor. 

Page 9



PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU AC ARCHWILIO - DYDD IAU, 26 IONAWR 2023 

 

 

 
Gofynnodd yr aelod a allai CBSPO ystyried gweithredu Polisi Buddsoddi Moesegol, ac 
atebodd y Swyddog y byddai'n mynd ar drywydd hynny gyda'r cynghorwyr y cyfeiriwyd 
atynt uchod, Arlingclose. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD :  Bod y Pwyllgor wedi ystyried y Strategaeth Rheoli 

Trysorlys ar gyfer 2023-2024 ac yn argymell y dylid 
cyflwyno fersiwn derfynol wedi'i diweddaru o'r Strategaeth 
Rheoli Trysorlys gerbron y Cyngor i'w chymeradwyo ym 
mis Mawrth 2023. 

 
55. DATGANIAD CYFRIFON 2021-22 

 

 
Cyflwynodd y Rheolwr Grŵp – Prif Gyfrifydd adroddiad er mwyn cyflwyno'r Datganiad 
Cyfrifon archwiliedig ar gyfer 2021-22, a'r Llythyr Sylwadau cysylltiedig oddi wrth y 
Cyngor, i'r Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio. Roedd hi bellach yn bryd i'r datganiad 
hwnnw gael ei ardystio gan ein harchwilwyr allanol, Archwilio Cymru. 
 
Rhoddodd Archwilio Cymru ddiweddariad hefyd i’r Pwyllgor ar eu prif ganfyddiadau o’r 
archwiliad, crynodeb o'r gwaith archwilio a wnaed mewn perthynas â blwyddyn ariannol 
2021-22, a'u Hadroddiad ar yr Archwiliad o Gyfrifon. Roedd yn ofynnol i'r archwilydd 
penodedig adrodd y canfyddiadau allweddol hyn i'r rhai sy'n gyfrifol am lywodraethu. 
 
Roedd Datganiad Cyfrifon diwygiedig archwiliedig 2021-22 ynghlwm yn Atodiad A yr 
adroddiad. Ceir manylion yr holl ddiwygiadau yn Adroddiad Archwilio Cyfrifon yr 
Archwilydd yn Atodiad B. 
 
Eglurodd fod angen i'r Prif Swyddog Ariannol a Chadeirydd y Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac 
Archwilio lofnodi'r Datganiad Cyfrifon 2021-22 archwiliedig i dystio eu bod yn rhoi darlun 
'cywir a theg' o sefyllfa ariannol y Cyngor ar 31 Mawrth 2022. 
 
Mae Archwilio Cymru wedi cwblhau rhan helaeth o'i waith archwilio ac mae'n bryd i'r 
Datganiad Cyfrifon gael ei lofnodi gan Archwilydd Cyffredinol Cymru ar 27 Ionawr 2023, 
ar yr amod bod y Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio  yn cymeradwyo'r cyfrifon. 
 
Ymhellach at hyn, ychwanegodd y Rheolwr Grŵp – Prif Gyfrifydd nad oedd Cronfa’r 
Cyngor ar 31 Mawrth 2022, fel y’i cyflwynwyd i’r Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio ym 
mis Gorffennaf 2022, wedi newid. 
 
Yn unol â Safon Archwilio Ryngwladol (ISA) 260, mae'n ofynnol i'r archwilydd allanol 
gyfleu materion perthnasol sy'n ymwneud ag archwilio'r datganiadau ariannol wrth y rhai 
'sy'n gyfrifol am lywodraethu'. Roedd y materion hyn wedi'u cynnwys yn yr Adroddiad 
Archwilio Cyfrifon yn Atodiad B. Mae'r Atodiad hwn hefyd yn cynnwys rhestr lawn o'r 
addasiadau a wnaed i'r cyfrifon o ganlyniad i'r archwiliad, fel y disgrifir ym mharagraffau 
3.2 a 3.3 yr adroddiad. 
 
Er mwyn cwblhau'r broses a gallu cymeradwyo'r cyfrifon, mae angen i'r Archwilydd 
Penodedig gael Llythyr Sylwadau terfynol oddi wrth y Cyngor. Mae'r llythyr hwn wedi'i 
gynnwys yn Atodiad, ac mae'n ofynnol i Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio 
a Swyddog Adran 151 ei lofnodi. 
 
Cwestiynodd aelod lleyg y ddyddiadau ar yr adroddiad Archwilio, a chydnabuwyd bod 
angen cywiro'r dyddiad. O ganlyniad i hyn, cadarnhaodd y Rheolwr Grŵp - Prif Gyfrifydd 
y byddai’r dyddiadau’n cael eu cywiro o 2019 i 2021. 
 

Page 10



PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU AC ARCHWILIO - DYDD IAU, 26 IONAWR 2023 

 

 

PENDERFYNWYD :  Bod y Pwyllgor yn:  
 

 Cymeradwyo’r datganiad cyfrifon archwiliedig 2021-22 

 Nodi Adroddiad Archwilio Cyfrifon yr Archwilydd penodedig 

 Nodi a chytuno y dylai Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor a'r Swyddog Adran 151 
lofnodi'r llythyr sylwadau olaf i Archwilio Cymru. 
 

56. HUNANASESIAD O WYBODAETH A SGILIAU'R PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU AC 
ARCHWILIO 
 
Cyflwynodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth Archwilio Mewnol Rhanbarthol adroddiad i 
gyflwyno'r adborth  a gafwyd gan Aelodau'r Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio i'r 
holiadur hunanasesu sgiliau a gwybodaeth. Byddai hyn yn sail i greu cynllun dysgu a 
datblygu i'r Pwyllgor. 
 
Ar ôl cael gwybodaeth am gefndir yr adroddiad, dywedodd y gofynnwyd i aelodau'r 
Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio ystyried deg datganiad a nodi a oedd lefel eu 
gwybodaeth/profiad yn 'dda', yn 'foddhaol' neu'n 'brin' yng nghyswllt pob un. 
 
Roedd paragraff 4.3 o'r adroddiad yn rhoi rhywfaint o adborth ar y canlyniadau. 
 
Roedd y canlyniadau'n dangos bod gan aelodau'r Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio 
sylfaen gadarn o wybodaeth a phrofiad ar y cyfan ym meysydd cyfrifoldeb y Pwyllgor 
hwn. 
 
Roedd yr holiadur hefyd yn gofyn i aelodau'r Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio nodi pa 
wybodaeth a sgiliau oedd ganddynt a fyddai'n ychwanegu gwerth at waith y Pwyllgor 
Llywodraethu ac Archwilio. 
 
Roedd y tabl ym mharagraff 4.6 yr adroddiad yn rhoi crynodeb o'r adborth a gafwyd 
mewn perthynas â meysydd gwybodaeth/sgiliau. Dangosai'r adborth fod gan yr aelodau 
brofiad a gwybodaeth, ar lefel amrywiol, ar draws yr holl feysydd allweddol. 
 
Roedd yr Holiadur Hunanasesu ynghlwm yn Atodiad A yr adroddiad, tra bo'r ymatebion 
i'r deg holiadur a ddychwelwyd wedi'u cynnwys yn Atodiad B a'u crynhoi yn yr adroddiad 
cyflwyno. 
 
Gyda chytundeb yr Aelodau, awgrymwyd y byddai Swyddogion yn drafftio a chyflwyno 
cynllun dysgu a datblygu i'w adolygu yn y cyfarfod nesaf, a phe bai'n cael ei ystyried yn 
briodol, byddai'n cael ei gymeradwyo, a byddai hynny'n cynnwys rheoli risg ac atal twyll. 
 
Dywedodd y Prif Swyddog Cyllid, Perfformiad a Newid fod sesiwn hyfforddi Aelodau ar 
Reoli Trysorlys wedi'i drefnu ym mis Chwefror i'r Aelodau, gan gynnwys aelodau lleyg y 
Pwyllgor.  
 
Os oedd materion y gysylltiedig â rheoli risg, atal twyll neu unrhyw feysydd eraill yr oedd 
Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth Archwilio Mewnol wedi'u trafod, gofynnodd y Cadeirydd i'r 
Aelodau dynnu ei sylw atynt.  
 
PENDERFYNWYD : (1) Bod aelodau'r Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio wedi 

adolygu'r wybodaeth a adroddwyd yn ôl drwy'r holiadur 
hunanasesu a thrafod yr agweddau lle'r oedd angen dysgu a 
datblygu.  

 
(2) Bod Swyddogion yn drafftio cynllun dysgu a datblygu i 
adlewyrchu barn y pwyllgor. 

Page 11



PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU AC ARCHWILIO - DYDD IAU, 26 IONAWR 2023 

 

 

57. CYNNYDD YN ERBYN CYNLLUN SEILIEDIG AR RISG Y GWASANAETH ARCHWILIO 
MEWNOL 2022-23 
 
Cyflwynodd Dirprwy Bennaeth y Gwasanaeth Archwilio Mewnol adroddiad i roi 
datganiad sefyllfa i'r aelodau ynghylch y cynnydd yn erbyn y gwaith archwilio a oedd 
wedi'i gynnwys a'i gymeradwyo yng Nghynllun Seiliedig ar Risg y Gwasanaeth Archwilio 
Mewnol 2022-23.  
 
Eglurodd fod y Cynllun wedi’i gyflwyno i’r Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio i’w ystyried 
a’i gymeradwyo yn ei gyfarfod ym mis Mehefin 2022. Roedd y Cynllun yn amlinellu'r 
aseiniadau i'w cyflawni, a fyddai'n cynnig ymdriniaeth ddigonol i ffurfio barn ar ddiwedd 
2022-23. 
 
Roedd Atodiad A yr adroddiad yn dangos y cynnydd a wnaed yn erbyn y Cynllun a 
gymeradwywyd ar gyfer y cyfnod 1 Ebrill hyd 31 Rhagfyr 2022. Roedd hyn yn dangos, ar 
ddiwedd 2022, fod cyfanswm o 11 o archwiliadau wedi’u cwblhau, gyda 6 o’r rhain 
wedi’u cwblhau gyda barn archwilio. Roedd 6 archwiliad pellach wedi'u cwblhau ac 
adroddiadau drafft wedi'u cyhoeddi. Roedd y gwasanaeth archwilio yn disgwyl am 
wybodaeth bellach gan adrannau gwasanaeth am y Cynlluniau Gweithredu Rheoli a 
gynigiwyd ar gyfer yr adolygiadau hyn, cyn y gellid cwblhau'r adroddiadau hyn yn 
derfynol. Roedd 22 o archwiliadau eraill ar y gweill, a byddai 11 o archwiliadau eraill yn 
dechrau'n fuan. Gwnaed cyfanswm o 16 o argymhellion hyd yma yn yr archwiliadau 
oedd wedi'u cwblhau.  
 
Roedd staff newydd wedi cael eu recriwtio yn ystod 2022 - ac roedd hynny wedi cael 
effaith ar yr adnoddau a oedd ar gael, ond teimlwyd y byddai'r ymdriniaeth yn ddigonol 
erbyn diwedd y flwyddyn i ffurfio barn archwilio gyffredinol. 
 
Nodwyd yn Atodiad A hefyd fod 9 argymhelliad blaenoriaeth ganolig a 7 argymhelliad 
blaenoriaeth isel wedi'u gwneud hyd yma i wella'r amgylchedd rheoli. Roedd 
gweithrediad yr argymhellion hyn yn cael ei fonitro i sicrhau bod y gwelliannau a nodwyd 
ac y cytunwyd arnynt yn cael eu cyflwyno. 
 
Cyfeiriodd Aelod at dudalen 319 yr adroddiad a gofynnodd a fyddai modd nodi graddfa 
flaenoriaeth a nifer y diwrnodau wedi'u neilltuo, a gwahanu adolygiadau craidd oddi wrth 
weithgareddau eraill fel cyngor, cynllunio archwiliadau ac ati.  
 
Cadarnhaodd y Swyddogion Archwilio Mewnol y byddai hyn yn cael ei ystyried. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD :  Bod Aelodau'r Pwyllgor yn nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad a 

hefyd y cynnydd a wnaed yn erbyn Cynllun Seiliedig ar 
Risg y Gwasanaeth Archwilio Mewnol. 

 
58. MONITRO ARGYMHELLION 

 
Cyflwynodd Dirprwy Bennaeth y Gwasanaeth Archwilio Mewnol Rhanbarthol adroddiad 
a oedd yn rhoi datganiad sefyllfa i'r Pwyllgor ar yr argymhellion Archwilio Mewnol a 
wnaed, y rhai a weithredwyd a'r rhai a oedd yn weddill. 
 
Roedd Atodiad A i’r adroddiad yn rhoi crynodeb o statws yr argymhellion a wnaed ar 31 
Rhagfyr 2022, a oedd hefyd yn cynnwys yr argymhellion a wnaed mewn perthynas ag 
archwiliadau a gwblhawyd yn 2021-22 nas gweithredwyd eto, yn ogystal â’r holl 
argymhellion a wnaed yn archwiliadau 2022-23 hyd yma. 
 
Gofynnodd i'r aelodau nodi, mewn perthynas ag archwiliadau o gynllun 2021-22, fod 2 
argymhelliad yn weddill gan fod y dyddiad gweithredu cytunedig wedi pasio, ac roedd 

Page 12



PWYLLGOR LLYWODRAETHU AC ARCHWILIO - DYDD IAU, 26 IONAWR 2023 

 

 

dyddiad targed yn y dyfodol wedi'i bennu ar gyfer 28 o argymhellion. Roedd Atodiad B 
yn cyflwyno manylion y 2 argymhelliad a oedd yn weddill a'r sefyllfa gyfredol yn 
gysylltiedig â'u gweithredu. 
 
Dywedodd Dirprwy Bennaeth y Gwasanaeth Archwilio Mewnol fod Atodiad A hefyd yn 
dangos sefyllfa'r argymhellion a wnaed mewn archwiliadau o gynllun 2022-23, a 
rhoddodd grynodeb o rai o'r rhain i'r aelodau er gwybodaeth.  
 
Holodd Aelod ynghylch cynnydd pwynt 2 yr argymhelliad llywodraethu da a rheoli risg. 
Cadarnhaodd Dirprwy Bennaeth y Gwasanaeth Archwilio Rhanbarthol y byddai'n cael y 
newyddion diweddaraf ynghylch hyn ac yn rhoi ymateb i'r aelodau.  
 
 
Canmolodd aelod lleyg y swyddogion am y gwaith a wnaed. 
 
PENDERFYNWYD :  Bod yr Aelodau wedi ystyried yr wybodaeth a ddarparwyd 

yn gysylltiedig â statws yr argymhellion a wnaed yn yr 
adroddiad. 

  
59. DIWEDDARU BLAENRAGLEN WAITH 2022/23 

 
Cyflwynwyd yr adroddiad gan y Dirprwy Bennaeth Cyllid, a'i bwrpas oedd ceisio 
cymeradwyaeth Aelodau ar gyfer Blaenraglen Waith 2022-23 a oedd wedi'i chynnwys yn 
Atodiad A yr adroddiad. 
 
Roedd paragraff 4.2 yr adroddiad yn rhestru’r eitemau hynny ar yr agenda a oedd wedi'u 
clustnodi ar gyfer y cyfarfod nesaf a oedd wedi'i drefnu i'r Pwyllgor, ar 27 Ebrill 2023. 
 
Holodd aelod pa Bwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Corfforaethol fyddai'n trafod testunau'r 
Strategaeth Ddigidol a Thrawsnewid Digidol, a dywedwyd mai'r Pwyllgor Trosolwg a 
Chraffu Corfforaethol fyddai'n gwneud hynny, yn ôl pob tebyg. 
 
 
PENDERFYNWYD :         Bod y Pwyllgor wedi ystyried a chymeradwyo'r 

Flaenraglen Waith ar gyfer 2022-2023. 
 
Gan mai hwn oedd cyfarfod olaf y Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio cyn ymddeoliad 
Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth Archwilio Rhanbarthol, mynegodd y Cadeirydd ddiolch iddo am 
ei flynyddoedd o wasanaeth i'r sector cyhoeddus, a oedd yn cynnwys y Cydwasanaeth 
Rhanbarthol yn ystod y blynyddoedd diwethaf, a dymunodd y pwyllgor yn dda iddo. 
 
Diolchodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth Archwilio Rhanbarthol i'r aelodau am eu sylwadau 
caredig a chadarnhau faint yr oedd wedi mwynhau treulio rhan o'i yrfa yn gweithio ym  
maes llywodraeth leol. 
 

60. EITEMAU BRYS 
 
Dim. 
 
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 12:04 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO THE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

27 APRIL 2023 
 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF OFFICER – LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES, HR AND 
CORPORATE POLICY 

 
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE ACTION RECORD 

 
1. Purpose of report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Members with an update on the Governance 

and Audit Committee Action Record. 
 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities 
 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being objectives 
under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015:- 

 
1. Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 

county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focussed on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county borough.  

 
2. Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - taking 

steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on 
the Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and communities to build 
resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to have active, healthy and 
independent lives. 

 
3. Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 

ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that 
can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

  
3. Background 
 
3.1 An Action Record has been devised to assist the Committee in tracking the decisions 

made by the Committee in the exercise of its functions.   
 

4. Current situation/proposal 
 
4.1 In order to assist the Governance and Audit Committee in ensuring that decisions 

made by the Committee are actioned and implemented, the Action Record is attached 
at Appendix A. The Action Record will be presented to each meeting of the 
Committee for approval.   
 

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 There is no effect on the policy framework and procedure rules. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



 
6. Equality Act 2010 Implications 
 
6.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. This is primarily an information report, therefore it 
is not necessary to carry out an Equality Impact assessment in the production of this 
report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable equality 
impacts as a result of this report.  
 

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 

report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon 
the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report. 

 
8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

 
9. Recommendation 
 
9.1 The Committee is recommended to note the Action Record and provide any comment 

upon this, as appropriate.  
 

Kelly Watson  
CHIEF OFFICER – LEGAL AND REGULATORY SERVICES, HR AND CORPORATE 
POLICY 
April 2023 

 
Contact Officer: Mark Anthony Galvin 
   Senior Democratic Services Officer - Committees 
 
Telephone:  (01656) 643148    
 
E-mail:  Mark.Galvin@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
Postal address: Democratic Services 
   Chief Executive’s Directorate 
   Level 4 
   Civic Offices 
   Angel Street 
   Bridgend  
   CF31 4WB 
 

Background Documents: 
 

None 
 

Page 16

mailto:Mark.Galvin@bridgend.gov.uk


 
 

 

APPENDIX A 
 

Governance and Audit Committee Action Record  
 

Date of 
Committee  

 
Item 

 
Lead 

 
Target Date 

 
Action 

 
Date for action to 

be bought to 
Committee 

 
Completed Date 

15 March 
2022 

Corporate Complaints Corporate 
Director 
Education and 
Family Support 
 

June 2022 Update to be provided to the Committee on how school 
complaints were recorded and ensuring they were recorded 
effectively. 

June 2023  

22 June 
2022 

Audit Wales Governance and Audit 
Committee Report 
   

Chief Officer – 
Finance, 
Performance 
and Change  
 

July 2022 Council to develop an Action Plan on each of the 
recommendations emanating from the national report on Direct 
Payments.   

June/July 2023 
 

 

   
 
 

Audit Wales 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Audit Wales to discuss with its Local Government Studies Team 
on what steps are to be taken by the Welsh Government in 
working with local authorities on the implementation of best 
practice on Direct Payments.    

January 2023 
 
 

January 2023 

22 June 
2022 

Corporate Risk Assessment 2022-23 Chief Officer – 
Finance, 
Performance 
and Change 
 
Chief Officer – 
Legal and 
Regulatory, HR 
and Corporate 
Policy 
 

 1. A Task and Finish Group be set up to monitor and agree a 
framework of key risks and mitigating actions being taken 
by officers on the Risk Register.      

 
 

2.  Information to be provided to the relevant Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee that the assurance and review of risks 
scores is ongoing.       

Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 

 

28 July 
2022 
 

Audit Wales Governance and Audit 
Committee Report 
 

Audit Wales 
 

September 
2022  

Audit Wales representative to clarify how metrics are defined 
in relation to sleeping rough and homelessness across 
Councils with the Project Manager responsible for this piece 
of work and she would update the Committee in the future. 
 
 
 

April 2023  

28 July 
2022 

Statement of Accounts 2021-22 
(Unaudited) 

Group 
Manager – 
Chief 
Accountant 

September 
2022 

Information to be included in this year’s Statement of 
Accounts on climate change in connection with the Council’s 
commitment around 2030 and the Council’s progress towards 
2030. 
 

January 2023 January 2023 

28 July 
2022 

Annual Governance Statement 2021-22 Chief Officer – 
Finance, 
Performance 
and Change 

September 
2022 

A statement be included in the Annual Governance Statement 
on the control mechanisms the Council has in place on the 
movement of former Councillors becoming officers of the 

January 2023   

P
age 17



 
 

 

 

 

 Council. (Action completed by the Regional Internal Audit 
Service) 

13 October 
2022 

Audit Wales Governance and Audit 
Committee reports 

Chief Officer – 
Finance, 
Performance 
and Change 
 

 A process be brought back to committee outlining how Audit 
Wales and other regulators recommendations will be dealt 
with via the Scrutiny and G&AC process 

January 2023 January 2023 

13 October 
2022 

Corporate Complaints Chief Officer – 
Legal and 
Regulatory 
Services, HR 
and Corporate 
Policy 
 

 Timing of Corporate Complaints internal update report to be 
updated and submitted to Members in April 2023 with a 
further 6 month update then coinciding with the Ombudsman’s 
report on the same topic in October 
 

June 2023  

10 
November 
2022 

Half Year Review of the Annual 
Governance Statement 

Chief Officer – 
Finance, 
Performance 
and Change 
and Group 
Manager – 
Chief 
Accountant 
 

Ongoing Treasury Management training to be provided for all 
Committee Members including Lay Members in 
January/February 2023 and further training needs to be 
identified through the annual training analysis. 

April 2023 February 2023 

26 January 
2023 

Audit Wales Governance and Audit 
Committee reports 

Corporate 
Director Social 
Services & 
Wellbeing 
 

 To receive a progress report on the implementation of the 
action plan in relation to the Audit Wales report 
‘Transformational Leadership Programme Board – Baseline 
Governance Review - Cwm Taf Morgannwg Regional 
Partnership Board’ (outlined in Appendix C) 
 

June 2023  

26 January 
2023 

Treasury Management Strategy 2023-24 Chief Officer – 
Finance, 
Performance 
and Change 
 

 To look at implementing an ethical investment policy following 
discussion with the treasury management advisors  

July 2023  

26 January 
2023 

Governance And Audit Committee Self-
Assessment of Knowledge & Skills 

Head of 
Regional 
Internal Audit 
Service 
 

 To draft the learning and development plan for Members July 2023  

P
age 18



 

 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO THE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

27 APRIL 2023 
 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF OFFICER - FINANCE, PERFORMANCE AND CHANGE 
 

AUDIT WALES GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
 

1. Purpose of report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to submit to the Committee reports from Audit Wales, 

including an update on the financial and performance audit work undertaken, and due 
to be undertaken, by Audit Wales, along with the management response to the 
Performance Management Review.  
 

2. Connections to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities 
 
2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being objective 

under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 
 

• Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that 
can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives.  
 

2.2 The Council’s performance is an important element in determining the extent to which 
the well-being objectives can be delivered. 

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 Audit Wales undertakes a programme of work during the year to help the Auditor 

General discharge his duties under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004. The Auditor 
General’s functions include auditing accounts and undertaking local performance 
audit work at a broad range of public bodies, alongside conducting a programme of 
national value for money examinations and studies. The Auditor General also 
assesses the extent to which public bodies are complying with the sustainable 
development principle when setting and taking steps to meet their well-being 
objectives.  

 
3.2 Part 2 of the 2004 Act sets out the powers and duties of the Auditor General to 

undertake studies in relation to local government bodies in Wales. The most widely 
used of these provisions is section 41, which requires the Auditor General to 
undertake studies designed to enable him to make recommendations for, among other 
things, improving the value for money in the provision of services. 
 

3.3 In accordance with Section 89 of the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 
2021 the Authority is required to keep under review the extent to which it is exercising 
its functions effectively, using its resources economically, efficiently and effectively 
and ensuring its governance is effective for securing these performance requirements.     

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



 

 

 
4. Current situation/proposal 
 
4.1 Audit Wales has produced a number of reports for the Governance and Audit 

Committee to consider. These are: 
 

o The Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable (Appendix A) -  
under the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act  2021, the Auditor 
General is required to produce a work programme update for each financial 
year for each principal council covering both his functions and those of 
‘relevant regulators’ (Care Inspectorate Wales  and Estyn). At the meeting 
of the Governance and Audit Committee in July 2021, Audit Wales reported 
that they will provide an updated version of this report to the Council on a 
quarterly basis. Appendix A is an updated position as at 31st March 2023. 

 
o Annual Audit Summary 2022 (Appendix B) – this report shows the work 

completed since the last Annual Audit Summary, which was issued in 
January 2022. The audit summary forms part of the Auditor General for 
Wales’ duties. 

 
o Performance Management Review (Appendix C) – the report covers the 

review of the Council’s performance management arrangements, 
undertaken in order to establish how well they inform the Council of 
progress in meeting its priorities which was issued in February 2023. The 
management response to this report is attached as Appendix D. 
 

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 There is no impact on the policy framework and procedure rules.  

 
6. Equality Act 2010 implications 
 
6.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. This is an information report, therefore it is not 
necessary to carry out an Equality Impact assessment in the production of this report. 
It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable equality impacts as a 
result of this report. 

 
7.  Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1  The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 

report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon 
the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report. 
 

 
8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.  

Page 20



 

 

9. Recommendation 
 
9.1 That the Committee notes the Audit Wales Governance and Audit Committee Reports 

at Appendices A, B and C, and the management response to the Performance 
Management Review at Appendix D. 

 
 
 
Carys Lord 
Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change 
April 2023 

 
Contact Officer: Deborah Exton 
   Deputy Head of Finance 
 
Telephone:  (01656) 643604    
 
E-mail:  deborah.exton@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
Postal Address: Bridgend County Borough Council 
    Civic Offices 
    Angel Street 
    Bridgend  
    CF31 4WB 
 

 

Background Documents: None 

Page 21

mailto:deborah.exton@bridgend.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – 

Bridgend County Borough Council 

Quarterly Update: 31 March 2023 

Annual Audit Summary 

Description Timetable Status 

A report 

summarising 

completed audit 

work since the last 

Annual Audit 

Summary, which 

was issued in 

November 2021. 

March 2023 Complete. Report issued and 

published. 

 

Financial Audit work  

Description Scope Timetable Status 

Audit of the 

Council’s 2021-22 

statement of 

accounts 

To confirm whether 

the statement of 

accounts provide a 

true and fair view. 

Audit Opinion 

by 31 January 

2023.  

Accounts 

certified 27 

January 2023. 

Audit of the 

Council’s 2021-22 

grant returns 

Audit of five claims 

as required by the 

terms and 

conditions of the 

grants. 

In line with the 

individual 

deadlines for 

each grant 

claim. 

Audit Work 

now complete. 

APPENDIX A

Page 23



Page 2 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Description Scope Timetable Status 

Audit of the 

Council’s 2022-23 

statement of 

accounts 

To confirm whether 

the statement of 

accounts provide a 

true and fair view. 

Audit Opinion 

by 30 

November 

2023.  

Planning and 

Risk 

assessment 

work 

underway. 

 

  

Page 24



Page 3 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Performance Audit work  

2022-23 

Performance 

audit work  

Scope Timetable Status 

Assurance and 

Risk 

Assessment 

Project to identify the 

level of audit assurance 

and/or where further 

audit work may be 

required in future years 

in relation to risks to the 

Council putting in place 

proper arrangements to 

secure value for money 

in the use of resources 

and acting in accordance 

with the sustainable 

development principle. 

 

• Financial position 

 

 

 

 

• Capital programme 

management 

 

 

 

 

 

• Use of performance 

information – with a 

focus on service user 

feedback and 

outcomes 

 

 

 

 

• Setting of well-being 

objectives  

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

monitoring 

of financial 

position 

 

 

April – 

September 

2023 

 

 

 

 

February – 

September 

2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

 

Scoping 

 

 

 

 

 

In progress - 

fieldwork is 

being 

scheduled at 

each council 

between 

March and 

August 2023 

 

 

Deferred to 

2023-24 

Page 25



Page 4 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

2022-23 

Performance 

audit work  

Scope Timetable Status 

Thematic 

Review – 

Unscheduled 

Care 

A cross-sector review 

focusing on the flow of 

patients out of hospital. 

This review will consider 

how the Council is 

working with its partners 

to address the risks 

associated with the 

provision of social care 

to support hospital 

discharge, as well as 

prevent hospital 

admission. The work will 

also consider what steps 

are being taken to 

provide medium to 

longer-term solutions. 

August 

2022 – 

June 2023 

Fieldwork 

nearing 

completion, 

reporting 

from April 

2023 

onward. 

Thematic review 

– Digital 

A review of councils’ 

strategic approach to 

digital, and the extent to 

which this has been 

developed in accordance 

with the sustainable 

development principle; 

and that it will help to 

secure value for money 

in the use of councils’ 

resources. 

January – 

September. 

In progress - 

fieldwork is 

being 

scheduled at 

each council 

between 

March and 

August 2023.  

Local review – 

performance 

management 

Review of the Council’s 

performance 

management 

arrangements.  

July to 

October 

2022 

 

Complete. 

Report 

issued and 

published. 

 

  

Page 26



Page 5 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

 

Local government national studies planned/in progress 

Study Scope Timetable Status Fieldwork 

planned at 

Bridgend County 

Borough Council 

Building 

Social 

Resilience 

and Self 

reliance 

Review of how 

local 

authorities can 

build greater 

resilience in 

communities 

Autumn 

2021 – 

Autumn 

2022 

Published January 

2023 

 

Building 

safety 

Review of how 

well local 

authorities are 

delivering their 

responsibilities 

for building 

safety 

September 

2022 – 

August 2023 

Evidence gathering – 

fieldwork underway 

Yes – interview 

with nominated 

officer at the 

Council and 

survey. 

Planning for 

sustainable 

development 

– Brownfield 

regeneration 

Review of how 

local 

authorities are 

promoting and 

enabling 

better use of 

vacant non-

domestic 

dwellings and 

brownfield 

sites 

October 

2022 – 

September 

2023 

Evidence gathering – 

fieldwork underway 

Yes – interview 

with nominated 

officer at seven 

councils and 

survey. 

Governance 

of special 

purpose 

authorities – 

National 

Parks 

Review of 

systems and 

effectiveness 

of governance  

November 

2022 – 

September 

2023 

Evidence gathering – 

fieldwork underway 

No 

Page 27



Page 6 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Study Scope Timetable Status Fieldwork 

planned at 

Bridgend County 

Borough Council 

Corporate 

Joint 

Committees 

(CJCs) 

Assessing 

CJCs’ 

progress in 

developing 

their 

arrangements 

to meet their 

statutory 

obligations 

and the Welsh 

Government’s 

aim of 

strengthening 

regional 

collaboration. 

September 

2022 – June 

2023 

Draft report has been 

issued to the four 

CJCs. Report due to 

be published 

May/June 

Yes – We 

explored the 

Council’s 

perspective via 

our routine liaison 

meetings.  

Fieldwork included 

interviews with the 

chief executive, 

director of finance 

and chair of each 

of the four CJCs. 

  

Page 28



Page 7 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Estyn  

Our link inspectors are continuing to work with Torfaen as part of our follow-up process for an 

authority causing significant concern. Wrexham local authority is still in a causing concern category 

and we convened a progress conference in December to look specifically at the school improvement 

recommendation. We are proposing to re-visit Wrexham in the summer term. We will convene an 

improvement conference in Powys in May to consider aspects of their work on school improvement, 

the transformation agenda and financial management in schools. We contributed to risk and 

assurance workshops in conjunction with Audit Wales and CIW in all local authorities during the spring 

term. We inspected Blaenau Gwent in December, and the report was published on 10 February. 

We inspected Rhondda Cynon Taf in January, and the report was published on 31 March.  

Field work being carried out across local authorities during the spring term includes a focus on 

elective home education, support for ALN reform and joint visits with colleagues from the Welsh 

Government to evaluate the work of local authorities regarding the support they provide to deliver 

national digital strategies. 

 

Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) 

CIW planned 

work 2022-23 

Scope Timetable Status 

Programme 

2022-23 

We will publish our amended Code of 

Practice for the review of local authority 

social services in April 2023. 

April 2023 Preparing for 

publication 

Page 29



Page 8 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

CIW planned 

work 2022-23 

Scope Timetable Status 

Joint work We are finalising our thematic reviews 

programme of work for 2023-2026. 

Areas for consideration include, adult 

safeguarding, carers, CLDT and 

CAMHS.  

 

We continue to work with partners, 

sharing information and intelligence 

including completing joint reviews.  

 

 

We are working in collaboration with 

HIW for a national review of the stroke 

pathway. A national report will be 

published early summer.  

 

We continue to work in collaboration 

with HIW in conducting CMHT 

inspections. 

 

CIW is working with partners to 

complete a rapid review. The 

overarching objective of the rapid 

review is to determine to what extent 

the current structures and processes in 

Wales ensure children who are in need 

of care, support and protection are 

appropriately placed on, and removed 

from, the Child Protection Register, 

when sufficient evidence indicates it is 

safe to do so. This is a collaborative 

review.  

Current 

 

 

 

 

 

Current 

 

 

 

 

Current 

 

 

 

Current 

 

 

 

January 

2023 – June 

2023 

In progress 

 

 

 

 

 

In progress 

 

 

 

 

In progress 

 

 

 

In progress 

 

 

 

In progress 

Page 30



Page 9 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

CIW planned 

work 2022-23 

Scope Timetable Status 

Deprivation of 

Liberty 

Safeguards 

Annual 

Monitoring 

Report for 

Health and 

Social Care 

2021-22 

The 2020-21 report was published on 7 

February 2021 

Published Published 

National review 

of Care 

Planning for 

children and 

young people 

subject to the 

Public Law 

Outline pre-

proceedings 

Purpose of the review 

 

To provide external scrutiny, assurance 

and to promote improvement regarding 

the quality of practice in relation to the 

care planning for children and young 

people subject to the public law outline 

pre-proceedings. 

 

To consider the extent to which 

practice has progressed since the 

publication of both the CIW ‘National 

Review of care planning for children 

and young people subject to public law 

outline pre proceedings’ and the 

publication of the PLO working group 

report 2021 including best practice 

guidance. 

September 

2022 – 

Spring 2023 

Delivery 

Joint 

Inspection 

Child 

Protection 

Arrangements 

(JICPA) 

Cross-inspectorate approach. Areas to 

be determined. We will complete a 

further four multi-agency joint 

inspections in total. Each local authority 

will have a published letter post 

inspection.  

We will publish a national report in late 

2023. 

Autumn 

2022 – late 

spring 2023 

Delivery 

Page 31

https://www.careinspectorate.wales/national-review-use-deprivation-liberty-safeguards-dols-wales-2021-22


Page 10 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Audit Wales national reports and other outputs published 

since January 2022 

Report title Publication date and link to report  

Digital inclusion in Wales (including key 

questions for public bodies) 

March 2023 

Orthopaedic Services in Wales – 

Tackling the Waiting List Backlog 

March 2023 

Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board 

– Review of Board Effectiveness 

February 2023 

Welsh Government purchase of 

Gilestone Farm 

January 2023 

Together we can – Community resilience 

and self-reliance 

January 2023 

A Picture of Flood Risk Management December 2022 

‘A missed opportunity’ – Social 

Enterprises 

December 2022 

Poverty Data Tool November 2022 

‘Time for change’ – Poverty in Wales November 2022 

Learning from cyber-attacks October 2022 (distributed privately to 

audited bodies) 

National Fraud Initiative 2020-21 October 2022 

Page 32

https://www.audit.wales/publication/digital-inclusion-wales
https://www.audit.wales/publication/orthopaedic-services-wales-tackling-waiting-list-backlog
https://www.audit.wales/publication/betsi-cadwaladr-university-health-board-review-board-effectiveness
https://www.audit.wales/publication/welsh-government-purchase-gilestone-farm
https://www.audit.wales/publication/together-we-can-community-resilience-and-self-reliance
https://www.audit.wales/publication/picture-flood-risk-management
https://www.audit.wales/publication/missed-opportunity-social-enterprises
https://app.powerbi.com/view?r=eyJrIjoiNDg4Y2M3NjctYWUyMS00NTQ2LWJhNmUtZmVjMmZhOGU2YjUyIiwidCI6ImRmZDY5MmYwLTE2YmYtNDQ0OS04OGUzLWU3NzM1ZGZjY2ZlOCIsImMiOjh9&pageName=ReportSection0d8d49278965a2510172
https://www.audit.wales/publication/time-change-poverty-wales
https://www.audit.wales/cyhoeddiad/national-fraud-initiative-2020-21


Page 11 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Report title Publication date and link to report  

COVID-19 business support in 2020-21 

– Memorandum for the Public Accounts 

and Public Administration Committee 

October 2022 

Payment to the Welsh Government’s 

Former Permanent Secretary on 

Termination of Employment 

September 2022 

Equality Impact Assessments: More than 

a Tick Box Exercise? 

September 2022 

Welsh Government – setting of well-

being objectives 

September 2022 

Welsh Government workforce planning 

and management 

September 2022 

NHS Wales Finances Data Tool – up to 

March 2022 

August 2022 

Public Sector Readiness for Net Zero 

Carbon by 2030: Evidence Report 

August 2022 

Public Sector Readiness for Net Zero 

Carbon by 2030 

July 2022 

Sustainable Tourism in Wales’ National 

Parks 

July 2022 

Third Sector COVID-19 Response Fund 

– Memorandum for the Public Accounts 

and Public Administration Committee 

July 2022 

Page 33

https://www.audit.wales/publication/covid-19-business-support-2020-21
https://www.audit.wales/publication/payment-welsh-governments-former-permanent-secretary-termination-employment
https://www.audit.wales/news/making-equality-impact-assessments-more-just-tick-box-exercise
https://www.audit.wales/publication/setting-well-being-objectives-welsh-government
https://www.audit.wales/cyhoeddiad/welsh-government-workforce-planning-and-management
https://www.audit.wales/publication/nhs-wales-finances-data-tool-march-2022
https://www.audit.wales/publication/public-sector-readiness-net-zero-carbon-2030-evidence-report
https://www.audit.wales/publication/public-sector-readiness-net-zero-carbon-2030
https://www.audit.wales/publication/sustainable-tourism-wales-national-parks
https://www.audit.wales/publication/third-sector-covid-19-response-fund-memorandum


Page 12 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Report title Publication date and link to report  

The Welsh Community Care Information 

System – update and data tool 

July 2022 

Tackling the Planned Care Backlog in 

Wales – and waiting times data tool  

May 2022 

The new Curriculum for Wales  May 2022 

Unscheduled care – data tool and 

commentary 

April 2022 

Direct Payments for Adult Social Care April 2022 

Local Government Financial 

Sustainability data tool 

February 2022 

Joint Working Between Emergency 

Services (including data tool) 

January 2022 

Audit Wales national reports and other outputs (work in 

progress/planned)1 

Title Indicative publication date  

NHS quality governance May/June 2023 

 

1 We will continue to keep our plans under constant review, taking account of the evolving 

external environment, our audit priorities, the context of our own resourcing and the 

capacity of audited bodies to engage with us. Our Annual Plan 2023-24 will confirm plans 

for new work in other topic areas and we will update this list accordingly at the next 

quarterly update. 

Page 34

https://www.audit.wales/publication/welsh-community-care-information-system-update
https://www.audit.wales/publication/tackling-planned-care-backlog-wales
https://www.audit.wales/publication/new-curriculum-wales
https://www.audit.wales/publication/unscheduled-care-wales
https://www.audit.wales/publication/direct-payments-adult-social-care
https://www.audit.wales/publication/financial-sustainability-data-tool
https://www.wao.gov.uk/publication/joint-working-between-emergency-services


Page 13 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Title Indicative publication date  

Local Government Financial 

Sustainability Data tool update 

April 2023 

Springing Forward: Managing assets and 

workforce in local government 

May/June 2023 

NHS workforce planning (data briefing) May/June 2023 

Maximising EU funding May/June 2023 

Covering teachers’ absence – follow-up July 2023 

NHS finances data tool – to 31 March 

2023 

July/August 2023 

Net zero (pan UK overview)  August/September 2023 

Ukrainian refugee services September 2023 

Local government digital strategy review 

– national summary  

October 2023 

Local government use of performance 

information, outcomes and service user 

perspective – national summary 

October 2023 

Affordable housing January/February 2024 

Local government capital programme 

management – national summary 

To be confirmed 

Page 35



Page 14 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Title Indicative publication date  

Active travel To be confirmed 

Cancer services To be confirmed 

Good Practice Exchange events and resources  

Title Link to resource   

Tackling poverty in Wales: responding 

to the challenge – this shared learning 

event brought people together from 

across public services to share ideas, 

learning and knowledge on how 

organisations can respond to the 

challenges caused by poverty. We 

shared examples of approaches being 

taken by organisations within Wales and 

across the UK. 

Tackling poverty resources  

Making Equality Impact Assessments 

more than a tick box exercise: This 

shared learning event aims to assist 

public bodies to improve use and 

application of EIAs beyond an exercise in 

compliance by bringing people together 

from across public services to share 

ideas, learning and knowledge.   

Making Equality Impact Assessments 

more than a tick box exercise 

resources  

Page 36

https://audit.wales/our-work/good-practice/tackling-poverty-wales-responding-challenge
https://audit.wales/our-work/good-practice/making-equality-impact-assessments-more-tick-box-exercise
https://audit.wales/our-work/good-practice/making-equality-impact-assessments-more-tick-box-exercise
https://audit.wales/our-work/good-practice/making-equality-impact-assessments-more-tick-box-exercise


Page 15 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Title Link to resource   

Together we can – creating the 

conditions to empower our 

communities to thrive: This shared 

learning event will bring people together 

from across public services to share 

ideas, learning and knowledge. We will 

share the findings of our reports on social 

enterprises and community resilience, 

including our recommendations going 

forward. 

19 April 2023 – 9 am – 1 pm – 

Cardiff. To register, please complete 

our booking form.  

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving 

Welsh language: Inspired by the 

Football Association of Wales journey 

over the past decade, this event will 

examine and discuss how going beyond 

expectations creates an inclusive and 

positive attitude that becomes self-

fulfilling. 

Working in partnership with the Future 

Generations Commissioner and the 

Welsh Language Commissioner, this 

event will assist and inspire public 

bodies, and the third sector to embrace 

the cultural diversity of modern Wales 

and work beyond compliance and into 

excellence. 

To register, please complete our 

booking form.  

Recent Audit Wales blogs 

Title Publication date  

Helping people to help themselves 15 February 2023 

A perfect storm – the cost of living crisis 

and domestic abuse 

21 November 2022 

Page 37

https://audit.wales/events/together-we-can-creating-conditions-empower-our-communities-thrive-south-wales
https://audit.wales/events/together-we-can-creating-conditions-empower-our-communities-thrive-south-wales
https://audit.wales/events
https://audit.wales/events
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2023/2/15/helping-people-help-themselves-community-resilience-and-self-reliance
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/11/21/perfect-storm-cost-living-crisis-and-domestic-abuse
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/11/21/perfect-storm-cost-living-crisis-and-domestic-abuse


Page 16 of 16 - Audit Wales Work Programme and Timetable – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Title Publication date  

Tackling poverty means tackling poverty 

data 

11 November 2022 

Cost of living and putting away the 

bayonet 

21 September 2022 

Heat is on to tackle Climate Change 18 August 2022 

Direct Payments in Wales 15 June 2022 

Unscheduled Care in Wales – a system 

under real pressure 

21 April 2022 

Skills Competition Wales 18 February 2022 

Cyber resilience – one year on 9 February 2022 

Helping to tell the story through numbers  

(Local government financial 

sustainability data tool) 

3 February 2022 

Call for clearer information on climate 

change spending 

2 February 2022 

Actions speak louder than words  

(Building social resilience and self-

reliance in citizens and communities) 

14 January 2022 

 

Page 38

https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/11/11/tackling-poverty-means-tackling-poverty-data
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/11/11/tackling-poverty-means-tackling-poverty-data
https://audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/9/21/cost-living-and-putting-away-bayonet-0
https://audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/9/21/cost-living-and-putting-away-bayonet-0
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/8/18/heat-tackle-climate-change
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/6/15/direct-payments-wales
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/4/21/unscheduled-care-wales-system-under-real-pressure
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/4/21/unscheduled-care-wales-system-under-real-pressure
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/2/18/skills-competition-wales
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/2/9/cyber-resilience-one-year
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/2/3/helping-tell-story-through-numbers
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/2/2/call-clearer-information-climate-change-spending
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/2/2/call-clearer-information-climate-change-spending
https://www.audit.wales/blog/audit-wales/2022/1/14/actions-speak-louder-words


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

About the Council 

Some of the services the Council provides 

 

Key facts 

The Council is made up of 51 councillors who represent the following political parties: 

• Labour 26 

• Bridgend County Independents 13 

• Democratic Alliance 8 

• Independent 3 

• Conservative 1 

The Council spent £323.1 million on providing services1 during 2021-222.  

 

1 We define spending on services as the cost of services charged to the general fund from the 

Expenditure Funding Analysis, less any Housing Revenue Account cost of services, plus 

precepts, levies and debt interest. 

2 Source: 2021-22 Statement of Accounts 

Bridgend County Borough Council 

Annual Audit Summary 2022 

This is our audit summary for Bridgend County Borough Council. 

It shows the work completed since the last Annual Audit Summary, 

which was issued in January 2022. Our audit summary forms part 

of the Auditor General for Wales’ duties. 

 

More information about these duties can be found on our website. 

 

APPENDIX B

Page 39

https://www.audit.wales/


 

Key facts 

As at 31 March 2022, the Council had £116.8 million of useable financial reserves3. This is 

equivalent to 36.1% of the Council’s annual spending on services4. 

Bridgend has 7% of its 88 areas considered to be within the most deprived 10% of areas in 

Wales, this is the 11 highest of the 22 unitary councils in Wales5. 

The population of Bridgend is projected to increase by 7% between 2020 and 2040 from 

146,400 to 157,300, including a 2% decrease in the number of children, a 1% increase in the 

number of the working-age population and a 34% increase in the number of people aged 65 

and over6. 

The Auditor General’s duties 

We completed work during 2021-22 to meet the following 

duties 

• Continuous improvement 

During 2021-22, the Auditor General had to assess whether the Council had met its 

performance reporting requirements in relation to 2021-22. 

• Audit of Accounts 

Each year the Auditor General audits the Council’s financial statements to make sure 

that public money is being properly accounted for. 

• Value for money 

The Auditor General examines whether the Council has put in place arrangements to 

get value for money for the resources it uses, and he has to be satisfied that it has done 

this. 

• Sustainable development principle 

Public bodies need to comply with the sustainable development principle when setting 

and taking steps to meet their well-being objectives. The Auditor General must assess 

the extent to which they are doing this.  

 

3 We define useable financial reserves as reserves usable for revenue costs, where the 

purpose is not protected by law. This is the total of the general fund, earmarked reserves and 

schools’ balances. It excludes Housing Revenue Account reserves, capital receipts and capital 

grants unapplied.  

4 Source: 2021-22 Statement of Accounts 

5 An area in this context is defined as a ‘Lower Super Output Area’. Source: Stats Wales 

6 Source: Stats Wales 

Page 40



 

What we found 

Audit of Bridgend County Borough Council’s Accounts 2021-

22  

Each year we audit the Council’s financial statements. 

For 2021-22: 

• the Auditor General gave an unqualified true and fair opinion on the Council’s financial 

statements on 27 January 2023, ahead of the Welsh Government’s deadline of 31 

January 2023. 

• the Council’s Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report were prepared in line 

with the CIPFA Code and relevant guidance. They were also consistent with the 

financial statements prepared by the Council and with our knowledge of the Council. 

• the quality of the draft statements presented for audit on 30 June 2022 was generally 

good. 

• a number of changes were made to the Council’s financial statements arising from our 

audit work, which were reported to the Audit Committee in our Audit of Financial 

Statements Report in January 2023. 

• in addition to the Auditor General’s responsibilities for auditing the Council’s financial 

statements, he also has responsibility for the certification of a number of grant claims 

and returns. The work is ongoing but has not identified any significant issues to date. 

• the Auditor General issued the certificate confirming that the audit of accounts for 2021-

22 has been completed.  

  

 

To meet the Auditor General’s duties we complete specific 

projects, but we also rely on other audit work, and the work 

of regulators such as Care Inspectorate Wales and Estyn 

(the education inspectorate). We take the findings of our 

audit work into account when assessing whether the Council 

has put in place arrangements to secure value for money. 

Our findings and conclusions are summarised below. 

Page 41



 

Continuous improvement 

The Auditor General certified that the Council had met its remaining Local Government 

(Wales) Measure 2009 duties for the financial year 2021-22, as served by an order made 

under the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021. 

Assurance and risk assessment review 

We reviewed the arrangements the Council has put in place to secure value for money in the 

use of its resources. Our work focused on the following aspects of the Council’s 

arrangements: 

• Financial position 

• Implications of the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 

• Carbon reduction plan 

• Disabled Facility Grants 

• Statutory Building Compliance 

 

Our findings from this work are set out in our Assurance and Risk Assessment report. 

Springing forward review – assets and workforce 

During 2021-22, we examined how councils are strengthening their ability to transform, adapt 

and maintain the delivery of services. Our work focused on the Council’s strategic 

management of its assets and workforce. We found that for assets, the Council made positive 

progress in delivering its previous asset management strategy and now needs to ensure future 

strategic asset plans are fully shaped by the sustainable development principle. However, 

workforce challenges are impacting on its ability to plan more strategically and critically, to 

ensure its buildings meet statutory safety requirements. We found that for workforce, the 

Council is taking action to respond to its significant workforce issues but needs to develop a 

corporate workforce plan shaped by the sustainable development principle, to address these 

challenges and strengthen its resilience. 

Review of the Transformation Leadership Programme Board 

and whether it is supporting regional integrated working 

across Cwm Taf Morgannwg 

Regional Partnership Boards (RPBs) have been established to manage and develop services 

to secure strategic planning and partnership working between local authorities and Local 

Health Boards.  

Following a ministerial decision in 2018, Bridgend County Borough Council moved from the 

Abertawe Bro Morgannwg Regional Partnership Board to the Cwm Taf Morgannwg Regional 

Partnership Board (CTM RPB) in April 2019. The boundary change has provided a fresh 

opportunity for partners to learn from one another and develop more cohesive partnership 

arrangements to deliver better outcomes for people across the Cwm Taf Morgannwg region.  

Our review sought to gain assurance that the health board and the three councils are working 

together effectively through the aegis of the Transformation Leadership Programme Board to 

Page 42

https://www.audit.wales/publication/bridgend-county-borough-council-assurance-and-risk-assessment-review
https://www.audit.wales/publication/bridgend-county-borough-council-springing-forward-strategic-asset-management
https://www.audit.wales/publication/bridgend-county-borough-council-springing-forward-strategic-workforce-management


 

support regional integrated working across the Cwm Taf Morgannwg region. We undertook 

fieldwork between November 2021 and January 2022. Overall, in our report, we found that the 

Transformation Leadership Programme Board is well-placed to develop stronger regional 

working, building on the productive relationships over the past 18 months. However, it needs 

to ensure its planning is more integrated and longer term, strengthen aspects of its 

governance arrangements and be more ambitious in using its combined core resources to 

have a greater impact on the Cwm Taf Morgannwg region. Our report can be found here. 

Other inspectorates 

We also took into account the reports of Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) and Estyn as well as 

any subsequent actions taken by the Council in response. Report of performance evaluation 

inspection: Bridgend County Borough Council children’s services. This report summarises 

findings from our inspection of Bridgend children’s services between 23 May and 27 May 

2022. 

Local government studies 

As well as local work at each council, each year we also carry out studies across the local 

government sector to make recommendations for improving value for money. Since the last 

annual improvement report, we have published the following reports:  

Joint working between Emergency Services (January 2022) 

This report examines whether emergency services in Wales are working more closely together 

to make better use of resources. Joint working across emergency services to make best use 

of resources is not a new concept. Emergency services have been working closely together to 

provide a better service to the public for many years. Innovative partnership initiatives have 

saved money, reduced local response times and have contributed to protecting the public. 

Despite this, there are growing expectations from government policy and legislation that 

collaboration needs to happen more deeply and quickly to ensure front line services can meet 

the challenges facing 21st century Wales. Overall, we concluded that blue light emergency 

service collaboration is slowly growing but requires a step change in activity to maximise 

impact and make the best use of resources. 

Direct Payments (April 2022) 

Direct Payments are an alternative to local-authority-arranged care or support and can help 

meet an individual’s or a carer’s need. They aim to give people more choice, greater flexibility 

and more control over the support they get. Our report looked at how Direct Payments help 

sustain people’s wellbeing and whether they are improving quality of life. We also looked at 

how local authorities manage and encourage take up of Direct Payments and whether these 

services present value for money. We found that Direct Payments are highly valued, with the 

people we surveyed acknowledging that they help them remain independent. But we also 

found that managing and supporting people to use Direct Payments varies widely resulting in 

service users and carers receiving different standards of service.  

  

Page 43

https://www.audit.wales/publication/cwm-taf-morgannwg-regional-partnership-board-transformational-leadership-programme
https://www.audit.wales/cyhoeddiad/cwm-taf-morgannwg-regional-partnership-board-transformational-leadership-programme-board
https://www.careinspectorate.wales/report-performance-evaluation-inspection-bridgend-county-borough-council-childrens-services
https://www.careinspectorate.wales/report-performance-evaluation-inspection-bridgend-county-borough-council-childrens-services


 

‘Time for Change’ – Poverty in Wales (November 2022) 

Poverty in Wales is not a new phenomenon and tackling poverty, particularly child poverty, 

has been a priority for both the Welsh Government and councils in Wales. The current cost-of-

living crisis means that more people are being affected and families who have been living 

comfortably are moving into poverty for the first time. Many of the levers that could be used to 

alleviate poverty are outside of Wales’s control. The Welsh Government adopted a Child 

Poverty Strategy in 2011, but this is out of date and the target to eliminate child poverty by 

2020 was dropped. Councils and partners are prioritising work on poverty, but the mix of 

approaches and a complicated partnership landscape mean that ambitions, focus, actions, 

and prioritisation vary widely. The Welsh Government makes significant revenue funding 

available but, due to the complexity and nature of the issues, the total level of spend is 

unknown, and no council knows the full extent of its spending on alleviating and tackling 

poverty. The short-term nature of grant programmes, overly complex administration, 

weaknesses in guidance and grant restrictions, and difficulties spending monies means that 

funding is not making the impact it could. Councils find it hard to deliver preventative work 

because of the sheer scale of demand from people in crisis.  

‘A missed Opportunity’ – Social Enterprises (December 2022) 

Social Enterprises sit between the public and private sectors. They apply commercial 

strategies to maximise improvements in financial, social and environmental well-being, often 

for individual groups in society, defined communities or geographical areas. Social enterprise 

work in every sector of the Welsh economy and in all parts of the country and are increasingly 

prominent in Welsh Parliament legislation. While local authorities claim they value Social 

Enterprises, few have mapped their activity and most authorities do not know the scale of 

provision within their area. Less than a third of local authorities consider themselves to have a 

proactive and supportive relationship with Social Enterprises and none have a dedicated 

strategy or policy that charts how they intend to promote and grow the sector. As a result, local 

authorities are missing out on the potential for Social Enterprises to help deliver services that 

can improve people’s quality of life. Current procurement and commissioning arrangements 

often unintentionally discourage Social Enterprises to engage because they are overly 

bureaucratic. Social value – the added value that commissioning processes can deliver – does 

not feature as a key driver for many local authorities. Most local authorities are not delivering 

their responsibilities under the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 and effectively 

promoting Social Enterprises. 

‘Together we can’ – Community resilience and self-reliance 

(January 2023) 

At a time when there is likely to be further reductions in public spending, local authorities are 

showing an increasing interest in encouraging and growing community resilience; equipping 

people to do more for themselves and be less reliant on the state. While 19 of the 22 local 

authorities are prioritising community resilience, too often the work is poorly defined and the 

actions that underpin plans are narrowly focussed. Given the societal, financial and 

demographic challenges facing Wales there is a need to scale and speed up activity. 

Capacity, resources and skills are scarce, people are facing tougher choices and struggling to 

cope with the cost-of-living crisis. Communities and local authorities themselves also have 

Page 44



 

different abilities and are starting from different places with their own unique challenges to 

overcome. We highlight positive practice and examples of how others are seeking to address 

the challenge of enabling people to be less reliant on local authority services and how they are 

supporting and enabling this transition. 

Planned work for 2022-23 

We also looked at the key challenges and opportunities facing the Council. These could have 

an effect on the Council’s ability to meet its legal obligations in relation to the sustainable 

development principle and the use of its resources. 

Our planned work for 2022-23 includes: 

• Assurance and risk assessment including a focus on: 

‒ Financial position  

‒ Capital programme management 

‒ Use of performance information – with a focus on service user feedback and 

outcomes  

‒ Setting of well-being objectives 

• Thematic review – unscheduled care. This review covers the health and local 

government sectors 

• Thematic review – digital  

• Review of Performance Management Arrangements 

  

Page 45



 

 

 

 

The Auditor General is independent of government and was appointed by Her Majesty the Queen. 

The Auditor General undertakes his work using staff and other resources provided by the Wales 

Audit Office, which is a statutory board established for that purpose and to monitor and advise the 

Auditor General. The Wales Audit Office is held to account by the Senedd. 

The Auditor General audits local government bodies in Wales, including unitary authorities, police, 

fire and rescue authorities, national parks, and community councils. He also conducts local 

government value for money studies, assesses compliance with the remaining requirements of the 

Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 and may undertake special inspections under the Local 

Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021. 

Beyond local government, the Auditor General is the external auditor of the Welsh Government 

and its sponsored and related public bodies, the Senedd Commission, and National Health 

Service bodies in Wales. 

Audit Wales is the non-statutory collective name for the Auditor General for Wales and the 

Wales Audit Office, which are separate legal entities with their own legal functions, as described 

above. Audit Wales is not a legal entity. 

We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. Corresponding in Welsh 

will not lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Ni 

fydd gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi. 

This document is also available in Welsh. 

Page 46



Performance Management Review – 
Bridgend County Borough Council 
Audit year: 2022-23 

Date issued: February 2023 

Document reference: 3386A2022 

APPENDIX C

Page 47



 

 

This document has been prepared for the internal use of Bridgend County Borough Council as part of 
work performed in accordance with section 14 and 17 of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 (the 2004 
Act) and section 15 of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

No responsibility is taken by the Auditor General or the staff of Audit Wales in relation to any member, 
director, officer, or other employee in their individual capacity, or to any third party. 

In the event of receiving a request for information to which this document may be relevant, attention is 
drawn to the Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  
The section 45 Code sets out the practice in the handling of requests that is expected of public 
authorities, including consultation with relevant third parties. In relation to this document, the Auditor 
General for Wales and Audit Wales are relevant third parties. Any enquiries regarding disclosure or 
re-use of this document should be sent to Audit Wales at info.officer@audit.wales. 

We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. Corresponding in Welsh will 
not lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi. 

 
 

Page 48

mailto:info.officer@audit.wales


Contents 

Page 3 of 10 - Performance Management Review – Bridgend County Borough 
Council 

Summary report  

Summary 4 

Recommendations 5 

Detailed report 

We found that the Council's performance management arrangements do not consistently 
enable it to effectively evaluate and manage its performance 7 

Weaknesses in performance information are limiting the Council’s awareness of its 
own performance and its ability to manage its performance effectively. 7 

The Council’s focus on collecting, rather than analysing data and ensuring its 
accuracy, limits the impact of its performance management arrangements. 8 

  

 

Page 49



Summary report 

Page 4 of 10 - Performance Management Review – Bridgend County Borough 
Council 

Summary 

What we reviewed and why 
1 We reviewed the Council’s performance management arrangements to establish 

how well they inform the Council of progress in meeting its priorities.  

2 At the time of the review the Council acknowledged that their performance 
management process needed to be improved.  

3 For the purposes of the review, performance management arrangements will 
include the Council’s strategic approach to setting and delivering its corporate 
priorities and wellbeing objectives. We will also consider the Council’s performance 
management framework, meaning the structures and mechanisms the Council has 
put in place to monitor its progress towards meeting its objectives. We will not 
consider the performance management of individuals.  

4 We recognise that the Council is continuing to deal with significant issues arising 
from the Pandemic giving rise to increased demand for services, the cost-of-living 
crisis and difficulties with recruitment and retention of staff. All impacting on the 
Council’s capacity to operate effectively across service areas.  

5 Why performance management is important. 
• effective performance management involves monitoring progress against 

key objectives and service performance standards and successfully 
intervening where performance is falling below the objectives or standards 
that the Council has set itself.    

• an effective performance management system should help the Council to 
identify performance issues as they emerge and help the Council to 
intervene to improve performance.  

• without an effective performance management system, there is a significant 
risk that the Council will not be able to measure and monitor its performance 
against its objectives and take action where they are not being met, and 
therefore achieve its objectives.  

6 What we looked for 
• performance management arrangements are aligned to corporate objectives 

and integrated into its business planning arrangements.   

• the Council uses a wide range of performance information that reflect the 
Council’s priorities and the needs of service users, including benchmarking 
its performance and processes. 

• the performance measures are Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Relevant, 
and Time-Bound. 

• performance data is accurate measuring the right things and where 
appropriate outcome focussed. 

Page 50



 

Page 5 of 10 - Performance Management Review – Bridgend County Borough 
Council 

• arrangements enable the Council to recognise good performance and tackle 
poor performance. They should provide feedback to help the Council 
understand and learn from the reasons for good or poor performance. 

• performance reports are easily accessible to the public and other external 
stakeholders. 

7 We undertook the review during the period August 2022 to September 2022.  

What we found 
8 The review sought to answer the question: Do the Council’s performance 

management arrangements support robust and effective decision-making and 
improvement?  

9 Overall, we found that: The Council's performance management arrangements do 
not consistently enable it to effectively evaluate and manage its performance. 

10 We reached this conclusion because:  
• weaknesses in performance information are limiting the Council’s awareness 

of its own performance and its ability to manage its performance effectively. 
• the Council’s focus on collecting, rather than analysing data and ensuring its 

accuracy, limits the impact of its performance management arrangements.  

Recommendations  

Exhibit 1: recommendations. 

The table below sets out the recommendations that we have identified following this 
review. 

Recommendations 

R1 Ensure that service level business plans are complete, having a full range of 
performance indicators to support its wellbeing objectives. 

R2 Ensure that all performance indicators are meaningful, outcome focused and 
have clear links to the Council’s wellbeing objectives. 

R3 Put robust and consistent verification processes in place to ensure that 
performance information is accurate. 

Page 51



 

Page 6 of 10 - Performance Management Review – Bridgend County Borough Council 

Recommendations 

R4     Make better use of the performance information collected by prioritising more 
data analysis and a broader range of information to help understand 
performance. 

Page 52



Detailed report 

Page 7 of 10 - Performance Management Review – Bridgend County Borough 
Council 

We found that the Council's performance 
management arrangements do not consistently 
enable it to effectively evaluate and manage its 
performance  

Weaknesses in performance information are limiting the 
Council’s awareness of its own performance and its ability 
to manage its performance effectively. 
11 In reaching this conclusion we found that: 

• the Council’s Corporate Performance Assessment does provide the Council
with the opportunity to recognise good and tackle poor performance. This
should help the Council understand and learn from the reasons for good or
poor performance. However, this is undermined by weaknesses in
performance information.

• the performance indicators selected are not always outcome focused nor
clearly linked to the Council’s wellbeing objectives. For example, in
Communities business plan 2022-23 commitment 1.2.5 – improve visitor
experience. This has two components both enhancing the natural
environment and to act as host for the Valleys Regional Park Programme
team and to complete Cosy Corner. There is one milestone, which relates to
Cosy Corner and one PI measuring annual expenditure by tourists. These
measures will not tell the Council how they have enhanced the natural
environment in a way that will improve visitor experience.

• there are examples of missing performance indicators in service business
plans. For example, in Education and Family Services business plan 2022-
23 commitment 3.2.4- build on technological progress. The milestone is to
implement Capita One. There are no performance indicators in place to
measure success in achieving this commitment. The Council’s own internal
arrangements did not address this.

• there are performance indicators which do help to measure progress
towards corporate priorities. These tend to be where relatively
straightforward metrics are possible to measure progress. For example, in
Social Services and Wellbeing business plan commitment 2.2.1 – ‘continue
the safe reduction of care experienced children, and support care
experienced children to achieve the best possible outcomes by: ensuring
care experienced children are supported to live with their families and where
this is not possible identify alternative permanence options at the earliest
opportunity and ensuring care experienced children enjoy the same life
chances as other children’. There are seven performance indicators, about

Page 53



 

Page 8 of 10 - Performance Management Review – Bridgend County Borough Council 

the numbers in care, but also about whether assessments are completed on 
time, how many placements children have had, and what is happening to 
them (employment/ homelessness) after leaving care. These complex issues 
are supported by a range of PIs which are both qualitative and quantitative. 

• the Council regularly reports its performance information to both internal and 
public meetings. The information is presented in a way that is accessible and 
easy to understand.  

• the Council does not always consider a range of performance information 
together in reports such as the implications of budget workforce and 
performance. 

• there is limited benchmarking of data and processes to explore how the 
Council can learn and strengthen its arrangements and demonstrate value 
for money. This is an issue we have raised with a number of councils. 

The Council’s focus on collecting, rather than analysing 
data and ensuring its accuracy, limits the impact of its 
performance management arrangements. 
12 In reaching this conclusion we found that: 

• considerable officer time is spent collecting and presenting performance 
information. However, less priority is given to analysing performance 
information to help the Council understand its performance and where and 
how it can improve value for money. 

• the Council does not have robust and consistent arrangements to ensure the 
quality of its data. There is a risk that senior officers and councillors may be 
acting and/or making decisions based on inaccurate information. 

• the Council has not reviewed its performance management arrangements to 
consider if they provide value for money. 

Page 54



Page 55



 

 

 Audit Wales 
24 Cathedral Road 
Cardiff CF11 9LJ 

Tel: 029 2032 0500 
Fax: 029 2032 0600 
Textphone: 029 2032 0660 

E-mail: info@audit.wales 
Website: www.audit.wales 
We welcome correspondence and 
telephone calls in Welsh and English. 
Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a 
galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. 

Page 56

mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/


 

Page 1 of 4 -  

 

 

 

Council Response 

Report title: Performance Management Arrangements Review Bridgend County Borough Council  

Issue date: February 2023  

Document reference: 3385A2023 

  

APPENDIX D P
age 57



Page 2 of 4 - Council Response 

 

  

Ref Recommendation Organisational response 

Please set out here relevant commentary on the intended implementation plan in 

response to the recommendation 

Completion 

date 

Please set out here 

when you plan for the 

organisational 

response to be 

completed and 

intended outcome 

achieved.  

  

Responsible 

officer (title) 

R1 Ensure that service level 

business plans are complete, 

having a full range of 

performance indicators to 

support its wellbeing objectives. 

• Develop directorate and service level business planning 

templates following the same approach and criteria as the 

corporate plan delivery plan 

• Ensure performance indicators in the corporate plan delivery 

plan are developed to measure achievement of broad corporate 

aims, rather than specific projects or commitments 

September 2023 Corporate Policy 

and Public Affairs 

Manager 

R2 Ensure that all performance 

indicators are meaningful, 

outcome focused and have clear 

links to the Council’s wellbeing 

objectives. 

 

 

• Develop a corporate plan delivery plan that defines and better 

links wellbeing objectives and aims and the commitments and 

PIs that support their delivery. 

• Ensure each wellbeing objective is fully reflected in aims, 

commitments and appropriate PIs  

• Develop clear and agreed criteria for PI development (including 

a balance of input, output and outcome measures, measures we 

can compare over time and with others, measures we can report 

quarterly in real time)  

July 2023 

 

 

  

Corporate Policy 

and Public Affairs 

Manager 

P
age 58



Page 3 of 4 - Council Response 

Ref Recommendation Organisational response 

Please set out here relevant commentary on the intended implementation plan in 

response to the recommendation 

Completion date 

Please set out here when 

you plan for the 

organisational response to 

be completed and intended 

outcome achieved.  

Responsible 

officer (title) 

R3 Put robust and consistent 

verification processes in 

place to ensure that 

performance information 

is accurate. 

 

• Develop a clear and agreed approach to data collection, use and 
validation with performance indicator guidance notes for each new 
corporate plan PI  

• Include data workings and tables in the performance system  

• Implement findings of the internal audit PI audit  

• Work with internal audit / Audit Wales to better understand the PI 

audit process. Train performance team staff to undertake PI audits 

• Develop a regular, internal PI audit programme  

July 2023  

 

 

September 2023  

 

July 2023  

September 2023  

Corporate Policy 

and Public Affairs 

Manager 

R4 Make better use of the 

performance information 

collected by prioritising 

more data analysis and a 

broader range of 

information to help 

understand performance. 

• Recruit to the Corporate improvement officer and Corporate 
Performance Manager roles  

• Agree a permanent place in the organisation for the Corporate 
Performance Team  

• Reiterate quarterly reporting deadlines and requirements to CMB, 

HoS, business managers and performance champions  

• Implement a new system from Q2 with short presentations of key 
issues, challenges, opportunities and RAG indicators for each 
directorate (as well as providing detailed dashboards) at CPA 

• Establish CPA meeting dates for the year ahead (including Q3). 
Establish a longer, full day meeting at Q4 to consider performance 
alongside the self-assessment  

• Add regulator comments, consultation/engagement to CPA 

quarterly dashboards for consideration alongside commitments/PIs 

• Take part in the CPDN Data Cymru group on self-assessment 

national PIs to support benchmarking improvement  

• Introduce a regulatory tracker to GAC and Scrutiny Chairs groups 

and a process for dissemination of messages and picking up issues 

July 2023 

 

April 2023  

 

July 2023  

 

September 2022 

 

February 2023  

 

 

January 2023  

 

January 2023  

 

January 2023  

 

Corporate Policy 

and Public Affairs 

Manager 

P
age 59



Page 4 of 4 - Council Response 

 

• Investigate how the current system can take from directorate data 

systems 

September 2023  

P
age 60



 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO THE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

27 APRIL 2023 
 

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF THE REGIONAL INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE 
 

PROGRESS AGAINST THE INTERNAL AUDIT RISK BASED PLAN 2022-23 
 
 
1. Purpose of report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide members of the Committee with a position 

statement on progress made against the audit work included and approved within the 
Internal Audit Risk Based Plan 2022-23. 
 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities 
 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being objective 
under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015:   

 

 Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that 
can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives.  

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 In accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Head of Internal 

Audit is responsible for developing a risk-based annual audit plan which takes into 
account the Council's risk management framework.  Within the Standards there is 
also a requirement for the Head of Internal Audit to review and adjust the plan, as 
necessary, in response to changes in the Council's business, risks, operations, 
programmes, systems, controls and resources.  The Head of Internal Audit must also 
ensure that Internal Audit resources are appropriate, sufficient and effectively 
deployed to achieve the approved plan.  

 
3.2 The Internal Audit Plan for 2022-23 was submitted to the Governance and Audit 

Committee for consideration and approval on 22nd June 2022.  The Plan outlined the 
assignments to be carried out which will provide sufficient coverage to provide an 
opinion at the end of 2022-23.  

3.3 The Plan is also flexible to allow for changing circumstances and events that may 
occur, such as requests to respond to new issues that may emerge. 
 

4. Current situation/proposal 

4.1 Progress made against the approved Plan for the period 1st April 2022 to 31st March 
2023 is attached at Appendix A. This details the current status of each planned 
review, the audit opinion and the number of any high, medium or low priority 
recommendations that have been made to improve the control environment. It should 

Page 61

Agenda Item 6



 

be noted that some reviews listed have no audit opinion, for example advice and 
guidance and Governance and Audit Committee / Corporate Management Board 
(CMB) reporting. This is because the audit work carried out in respect of these items 
is planned but the nature of the work does not lead to testing and the formation of an 
audit opinion, although in some instances recommendations are made. 

 
4.2 Appendix A illustrates that a total of 17 audits have been completed with an audit 

opinion whilst a further 6 audits have been issued as draft. Feedback is awaited from 
the service departments in respect of the management action plans for these draft 
audits and once received the reports will be finalised. In addition 10 audits are under 
review with the draft audit reports due to be issued imminently. Therefore, it is 
estimated that the audit opinion of 33 audits will feed into the overall annual audit 
opinion for 2022/23. 

 
4.3 Based on the assessment of the strengths and weaknesses of the areas examined 

through testing of the effectiveness of the internal control environment the audit 
opinions for the 17 audits are as follow; 5 have been given substantial assurance, 11 
reasonable assurance and one audit has been given an audit opinion of limited, that 
is only limited assurance can be placed on the current system of internal control. 

 
4.4 For reference, the audit assurance/opinion categories are: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AUDIT ASSURANCE CATEGORY CODE 

Substantial A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, 
with internal controls operating effectively and being consistently 
applied to support the achievement of objectives in the area audited.  

Reasonable There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management 
and control in place. Some issues, non-compliance or scope for 
improvement were identified which may put at risk the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited. 

Limited Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified. 
Improvement is required to the system of governance, risk 
management and control to effectively manage risks to the 
achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

No Assurance Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, 
weaknesses or non-compliance identified. The system of governance, 
risk management and control is inadequate to effectively manage risks 
to the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

 
4.5 An explanation in respect of the audit where an audit opinion of limited has been 

given is detailed as follows : 
 
 Abercerdin Primary School 

Page 62



 

 The purpose of this audit was to provide assurance on the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the internal control, governance and risk management arrangements 
in respect of Abercerdin Primary School. This audit was undertaken in October 2022. 
Although some strengths were identified, it was noted that the school was significantly 
affected by the pandemic and key issues were found. These were in respect of the 
Governing Body which had failed the statutory requirement to meet termly during the 
2021/22 academic year due to membership and attendance issues making it non 
quorate. There was no evidence that the school budget had been agreed and no 
evidence to demonstrate when policies had been reviewed and agreed by the 
Governing Body. There were also issues identified in respect of the school’s private 
fund. As a result of these findings, recommendations were made which have been 
agreed and a follow up audit will take place during the summer term to ensure that 
improvements have been made.  

 
4.6 Appendix A also identifies the audits that have not been completed during 2022/23. 

Of these, 2 have commenced and are being carried forward whilst a further 9 did not 
start but will be considered in the 2023/24 plan. One audit was not undertaken and 
will not be included in the 2023/24 plan, this was a review of grant schemes from 
Welsh Government which were allocated during and after the pandemic. 

4.7 Appendix A identifies that to date 41 medium priority and 49 low priority 
recommendations have been made to improve the control environment. The 
implementation of these recommendations is monitored to ensure that the identified 
and agreed improvements are being made.   

4.8 Again for reference, Internal Audit recommendations are categorised/prioritised as 
follows: 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION CATEGORISATION 

Risk may be viewed as the chance, or probability, of one or more of the organisation’s 
objectives not being met. It refers both to unwanted outcomes which might arise, and to 
the potential failure to realise desired results. The criticality of each recommendation is as 
follows: 

High Priority Action that is considered imperative to ensure that the organisation is not 
exposed to high risks. 

Medium Priority Action that is considered necessary to avoid exposure to significant risks. 

Low Priority Action that is considered desirable and should result in enhanced 
control. 

 
4.9 As reported during the year the Regional Internal Audit Service (RIAS) has 

successfully recruited new audit staff during 2022-23 but as previously highlighted, 
the new staff have had an impact on the current resource available to deliver the 
internal audit plan due to the support and training that has been required. The plan 
was compiled assuming a full establishment and although SWAP Internal Audit 
Services have assisted, 9 planned audits have not been undertaken during 2022/23. 

 
4.10 However, it is estimated that 33 audits will be completed with audit opinions. These, 

together with other sources of assurance such as external assessment reports from 

Page 63



 

Care Inspectorate Wales, Estyn and our own controlled risk self-assessments 
completed by all schools, will provide a level of coverage that is sufficient to allow the 
Head of Internal Audit to provide an opinion on the Council’s arrangements for 
internal control, governance and risk management arrangements throughout 2022-
23.   

 
5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 There is no effect upon the policy framework and procedure rules. 

 
6. Equality Act 2010 implications 
 
6.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. This is an information report, therefore it is not 
necessary to carry out an Equality Impact assessment in the production of this report. 
It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable equality impacts as a 
result of this report. 
 

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 

report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon 
the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report. 

 
 
 
8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 Effective Audit planning and monitoring are key contributors in ensuring that the 

Council’s assets and interests are properly accounted for and safeguarded. 
 

9. Recommendation 
 
9.1 That members of the Committee note the content of the report and the progress made 

against the 2022-23 Internal Audit Risk Based Plan. 
 
 
 
Mark Thomas 
HEAD OF THE REGIONAL INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE 
April  2023 

 
 

Contact Officer: Joan Davies – Deputy Head of Regional Internal Audit Service 
 
Telephone:  (01446) 709794    
 
E-mail:  joan.davies@bridgend.gov.uk  
 

Page 64

mailto:joan.davies@bridgend.gov.uk


 

 
Postal Address  
Bridgend County Borough Council 
Internal Audit 
Ravens Court 
Brewery Lane 
Bridgend 
CF31 4AP 
 

Background Documents :  
None 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

BCBC - AUDIT PLAN 2022/23

Substantial Reasonable Limited High Medium Low

To ensure that improvements have been made to the control environment since the previous limited
assurance review.

Creditor - Supplier Data Follow Up complete √ 0 1 3
Good Governance To provide assurance that key Corporate Governance processes are in place within the Council and that

these are operating effectively to enable the Council to be provided with sufficient information to enable
them to discharge their responsibilities. Assist in the AGS

to be undertaken 
2023/24

Safeguarding This review will include an annual assessment of the Council’s overall operating model for safeguarding; 
including reviewing the adequacy of assurances obtained by the Council in respect of safeguarding 
arrangements in place for vulnerable adults and children. 

to be undertaken 
2023/24  

Under the conditions of the specific grant determination, the Head of Audit must certify that the 
conditions of the grant have been complied with.

Bus Service Support Grant 2021-22 complete √ 0 0 1
Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant 2021-22 complete √ 0 2 1

Risk Management  A review of  a sample of corporate risks to identify if they are being appropriately managed and progress 
is being reported accurately. The focus of the review has been deep dives of the following risks through 
discussions with the risk owners:
 •SS-2023-01: Social care services
 •COR-2019-04: Workforce
 •COR-2019-05: Key supplier failure
 •COR–2019–01: Medium to long term decisions
 •SS-2019-01: Safeguarding

complete

 

√ 0 0 0

Bridgend 20-30 Zero Carbon Strategy - 
Climate Change & Energy Efficiency

To ensure the staff structure, methodology and governance arrangements are in place and operating 
effectively to deliver this programme and identify any improvements that could be made. Also identify 
what plans are in place to improve energy efficiency

complete √ 0 5 0

Procurement Review current processes and practices to ensure that they are reasonable, effective and efficient in the 
current economic landscape identifying any best practice across the other Authorities within the Regional 
Service

aspects included in 
various individual 

audits
Tender Evaluation & Award  To undertake a review to compliance to the Council’s Rules and Regulations and Project Management 

Methodology associated with high risk contracts. Focus will be on tender and award. draft issued

Members To ensure that all elected Members meet the associated qualifying criteria and  have fully declared any 
relevant declarations of interest as per the Council's Code of Conduct. complete √ 0 2 0

Elections To ensure that controls surrounding the elections is robust and the costs incurred are accurately 
supported with source documents and the overall governance is sound complete √ 0 2 3

Scheme of Delegation To ensure compliance to the scheme of delegation through sample testing of decisions and authorisations under review

Code of Conduct Review of compliance of Officers  to the Council's Code of Conduct carried forward

Attendance & Sickness Recording Provide assurance that information  relating to sickness absence is accurate and the recording and 
reporting is complete and timely. Ensure compliance to Council policies across Directorates.

under review

A rolling programme of audits is adopted, work programme for each year may differ.  This approach 
enables us to deliver a more cost-effective service, whilst providing sufficient assurance as to the 
adequacy of the Council’s material system control environment. 

 

Debtors draft issued
Cost of Living Scheme draft issued
Winter Fuel Payments under review

Status Opinion RecommendationsArea Initial Audit Ojective /  Scope 

Follow up  Limited Assurance Reports

Grant Certification Work

Financial Systems

P
age 67



Appendix A

Housing Benefits carried forward

Grant Schemes Review the arrangements for administering grant payments made on behalf of Welsh Government not undertaken

Project Management To undertake a review of the governance and decision making around Major  Projects.  Particular 
emphasis will be placed on compliance to the Council’s Rules and Regulations and Project Management 
Methodology associated with high risk contracts. 

to be undertaken 
2023/24

Performance Management To review the performance management arrangements paying particular attention to the  accuracy of the 
PI information collected and reported draft issued

Systems reviews will be undertaken across Directorates to ensure robust controls are evident and 
operating effectively in order to minimise the threat of risks including cyber crime
Enterprise EDRM - Document Management System draft issued
Undertake testing to ensure that staff are aware or requirements to protect devices, services and 
networks and the information on them from theft or damage via electronic means and staff are aware of 
what to do if there is a concern or breach. Ensure this information is monitored and reported consistently 
across the Council
Vulnerability & Patch Management under review

Temporary Housing Solutions Examine compliance with this statutory duty, review process for availability, processing and prioritising 
cases to provide assistance that systems are efficient and effective.

to be undertaken 
2023/24

A compliance review to complete the Annual Accounting Statement 2021/22 complete √ 0 1 0

An assurance review to ensure compliance to standard obligations such as recording and certification as 
well as undertaking testing to inform the Annual Accounting Statement 2022/23

under review

Porthcawl Harbour A compliance review to complete the Annual Accounting Statement complete √ 0 0 1

Fleet Management To ensure that mileage incurred by Council vehicles is for work purposes only and journeys are as efficient 
as possible and within the agreed parameters.  complete √

 
0 4 2

Vehicle Fuel Management To provide assurance on the  adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control, governance and risk 
management arrangements in respect of Vehicles Fuel System. draft issued

Porthcawl Regeneration To ensure the governance, structure and scope of the Project Board  are in place and operating effectively 
to successfully deliver this programme.

to be undertaken 
2023/24

To undertake a number of school based reviews as well as cross cutting thematic reviews in accordance 
with the Internal Audit risk based assessment.
Abercerdin Primary complete √ 0 6 9
Blaengarw Primary complete √ 0 5 10
Llangewydd Junior School complete √ 0 2 6
Tynyrheol Primary complete √ 0 5 8
Calon Y Cymoedd under review
School Unofficial / Private Funds under review
School Vehicles under review

School CRSA To undertake the annual controlled risk self – assessment for schools. The aim of the process is to enable 
Head Teachers to review their internal controls and to ensure that they undertake and comply with the 
requirements of current legislation and the Financial Procedure Rules. 

under review

School Admissions To ensure all processes and procedures are in place and operating effectively to be undertaken 
2023/24

Placements Review the contracts and monitoring arrangements in place to provide assurance that the Council's 
interests are protected and agreed rates are paid. Include Adults Learning Disabilities and Mental Health 
as well as LAC

to be undertaken 
2023/24

Prevention &  Wellbeing Review the arrangements in place for Halo and Arwen to provide assurance that the Council getting VFM to be undertaken 
2023/24

ICT Audit

Cyber Security

Coychurch Crematorium

Schools

P
age 68



Appendix A

WCCIS Ensure robust controls are in place and operating effectively in respect of access and security of the 
system complete √ 0 0 1

Support for Carers Carers' Assessments & Payments to be undertaken 
2023/24

Occupational Therapists Provide assurance in respect of the efficiency and effectiveness of the processes in place in respect of 
assessment of need complete √ 0 0 0

Information, Advice & Assistance 
Team

Review processes and procedures and verify data to ensure the service is provided as effectively and 
efficiently as possible.

under review

Annual Opinion Report 2021/22 Preparation for the production of the 2021/22 Annual Opinion Report.
complete

Annual Opinion Report 2022/23 Preparation for the production of the 2022/23 Annual Opinion Report. on-going

Audit Planning 2022/23 Preparation for the production of the annual risk based plan 2022/23. complete

Audit Planning 2023/24 Preparation for the production of the annual risk based plan 2023/24.
complete

Governance & Audit Committee 
/Members and CMB Reporting

This allocation covers Member reporting procedures, mainly to the Governance & Audit Committee.
Regular reporting to, and meeting with, the Section 151 Officer, Corporate Management Board and the
RIAS Board.

complete

To finalise all draft reports outstanding at the end of 2021/22.

Capital Monitoring complete √ 0 1 2
Recommendation Monitoring Monitoring the implementation of Internal Audit recommendations in consultation with service areas

which have received these recommendations.  complete

Advice & Guidance To allow auditors to facilitate the provision of risk and control advice which is regularly requested by
officers within the authority, including maintained school based staff. complete

Data Analytics Data Analytics is proving to be a useful internal audit tool as councils become more reliant on electronic 
data, as data analytics enables a vast amount of data to be analysed when selecting testing samples complete

Quality Assurance & Improvement 
Programme 

To review / ensure compliance with the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014 / Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  complete

External Audit Liaison To ensure that a “managed audit” approach is followed in relation to the provision of internal and
external audit services. complete

To enable Audit Services to respond to provide assurance activity as required.  

Recruitment complete 0 3 1
Fraud / Error / Irregularity National Fraud Initiative - Collection of data and analysis of matches for the NFI exercise, providing advice

and guidance to key contact officers. complete

Irregularity Investigations - Reactive work where suspected irregularity has been detected.

Accuracy of Data & Caseloads complete 0 2 1
Fraud / Error / Irregularity Anti-Fraud & Corruption – Proactive - Proactive counter-fraud work that includes targeted testing of

processes with inherent risk of fraud. complete

Overall Totals 5 11 1 0 41 49

Emerging Risks / unplanned

Fraud / Error / Irregularity

Closure of Reports from 2021/22

P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO THE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

27 APRIL 2023 
 

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF THE REGIONAL INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE 
 

REGIONAL INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE CHARTER 2023-24 
 

 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1. The purpose of this report is to present to members of the Governance and Audit 

Committee the Regional Internal Audit Service Charter for 2023-24 for approval. 
 

2.       Connection to corporate well-being objectives/ other corporate priorities 
 
2.1. This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 

objective under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 
 

 Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that 
can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

 
3. Background 
 
3.1. The Regional Internal Audit Service (RIAS) Charter establishes the position of 

internal audit activity within each Council along with reporting lines. It is a formal 
document that defines the purpose, authority and responsibility of internal audit 
activities.  
 

3.2. The RIAS Charter defines the purpose, authority and responsibilities of the RIAS 
across Bridgend, Merthyr Tydfil, Rhondda Cynon Taf and the Vale of Glamorgan 
Councils. The Charter was fully reviewed and amended for 2020-21 to develop a 
consistent charter for the four Councils and to be consistent with the objectives of 
the Shared Service, that is, to eliminate duplication and apply best practice. 

 
3.3. The Charter establishes the position of internal audit activity within each Council, 

along with reporting lines, authorising access to records, personnel, and physical 
property relevant to the performance of audit work and defines the scope of internal 
audit activities. 
 

3.4.  The Head of Internal Audit is responsible for reviewing the Charter and presenting it 
to each Council’s Governance and Audit Committee annually for review and 
approval in line with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.  
 

3.5. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) are applicable to all areas of 
the United Kingdom public sector and are based on the Chartered Institute of 
Internal Auditor’s (CIIA’s) International Professional Practices Framework.  
 

Page 71

Agenda Item 7



2 

3.6. The RIAS is committed to meeting the standards laid down in the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards Framework and any significant deviations from the 
Standards will be reported to the Governance and Audit Committee. 
 

3.7. The Charter is split into the following sections: 

 Purpose, Authority and Responsibility; 

 Independence and Objectivity; 

 Proficiency and Due Professional Care; 

 Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme. 
 

3.8. The Charter also has three annexes containing a Glossary of Terms, the Code of 
Ethics and Additional Requirements which outlines that staff must also comply with 
the Seven Principles of Public Life as well as the Vale of Glamorgan Council’s Code 
of Corporate Governance.  
 

3.9. The roles of the Governance and Audit Committee in relation to internal audit are to: 

 Oversee its independence, objectivity, performance and professionalism; 

 Support the effectiveness of the internal audit process; 

 Promote the effective use of internal audit within the assurance framework. 
 
3.10. One of the key roles which demonstrate the Governance and Audit Committee’s 

oversight is the approval of the Internal Audit Charter. 
 

4. Current situation / proposal 

4.1. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards requires the Head of Internal Audit to 
review the Charter periodically, but final approval resides with the Governance and 
Audit Committee.  

4.2. The Regional Internal Audit Service Charter for 2023-24 is attached at Appendix A 
and has been reviewed for 2023-24 to ensure it continues to reflect the 
requirements of the PSIAS and that it remains applicable to all four Councils 
involved in the Shared Service.  

4.3. The Charter has been updated to include in Section 2.17, “in addition to the Code of 
Ethics staff must comply with the Seven Principles of Public Life and the Vale of 
Glamorgan Council’s Code of Corporate Governance which are referred to in Annex 
3 – Additional Requirements.”  

4.4. Paragraph 4.11 of the Charter relating to External Assessment has also been 
updated to reflect that a comprehensive and detailed self-assessment has been 
carried out during 2022 and shared with the external assessors in November 2022. 
The external assessment of the RIAS is currently in progress and is due to be 
completed in April 2023. 
 

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1. There is no effect upon the policy framework and procedure rules. 

 
6. Equality Act 2010 implications 
 
6.1. There are no equality implications arising from this report. 

Page 72



3 

 
7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1. The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. It is considered that there will be no significant or 
unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report. 

 
8. Financial implications 

 
8.1. An effective Internal Audit Service is a key contributor in ensuring that the Council’s 

assets and interests are properly accounted for and safeguarded. There are no direct 
financial implications as a result of this report. 

 
9. Recommendation 

 
9.1. That members of the Committee consider and approve the Regional Internal Audit 

Service Charter for 2023-24 as attached in Appendix A to this report. 
 
 
Mark Thomas 
Head of the Regional Internal Audit Service  
April 2023 

 
Contact Officer: Mark Thomas – Head of Regional Internal Audit Service 
Telephone:  (01446) 709572    
E-mail:  cmthomas@valeofglamorgan.gov.uk  
 
 
Postal Address  
Bridgend County Borough Council 
Ravens Court 
Brewery Lane 
BridgendCF31 4AP 
 

Background Documents 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2017 

Page 73

mailto:cmthomas@valeofglamorgan.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1  

 
APPENDIX A  

 

 

 

    Internal Audit Charter 2023/24  
  

  

Bridgend County Borough Council  

  

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council  

  

Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council   

  

Vale of Glamorgan Council  

 
  

 

March 2023 

  

Page 75



2  

  

Review and Approval of the Internal Audit Charter  

This Internal Audit Charter defines the purpose, authority and responsibility of the 
Internal Audit Service.  
 
The Internal Audit Charter is defined within the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
as follows:  
 

The Internal Audit Charter is a formal document that defines the purpose, authority and 

responsibility of Internal Audit activities. The Internal Audit Charter establishes Internal  

Audit’s position within the organisation; authorises access to records, personnel and 

physical properties relevant to the performance of engagements; and defines the 

scope of Internal Audit activities.  

A professional, independent and objective Internal Audit Service is one of the key 

elements of good governance, as recognised throughout the UK Public Sector.  

 

The purpose of this Regional Internal Audit Service Charter is to define the purpose, 

authority and responsibilities of the Regional Internal Audit Service (RIAS) across 

Bridgend, Merthyr Tydfil, Rhondda Cynon Taf and the Vale of Glamorgan Councils.    

 

The Charter establishes the position of internal audit activity within each Council along 

with reporting lines, authorising access to records, personnel and physical property 

relevant to the performance of audit work and defines the scope of internal audit 

activities.    

 

The Head of Internal Audit is responsible for reviewing the charter and presenting it to 

each Council’s Governance & Audit Committee annually for review and approval.  

 

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards sets out the Mission of Internal Audit (what 
internal audit aspires to accomplish within an organisation) and the definition of Internal 
Auditing.  
 

 Mission of Internal Audit  

To enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk-based and objective 

assurance, advice and insight.  

 

  

Page 76



3  

Definition of Internal Auditing          
  

Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity 

designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an 

organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined 

approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control 

and governance processes.  

  

A. In each of the four Councils, the role of the Board, as defined within the Public 

Sector Internal Audit Standards, will be the responsibility of each Council’s 

Governance & Audit Committee and any reference made throughout this 

document relating to the Governance & Audit Committee assumes the 

responsibilities of the Board as defined and referred to within the Standards.  

 

B. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require that the internal audit charter 

defines the terms Board, Chief Audit Executive and Senior Management in 

relation to the work of internal audit.  For the purposes of internal audit work the 

roles are defined as follows:  

• Board – The internal audit activity is established and defined by the 

Board, (hereafter referred to as the Governance & Audit Committee) 

which has responsibility for overseeing the work of Internal Audit.    

  

• Chief Audit Executive – The role of the Chief Audit Executive is 

undertaken by the Head of the Regional Internal Audit Service.  

  

• Senior Management – Senior Management is defined as those officers 

designated as Chief Officers as set out in each Council’s Constitution.  

  

C. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards became effective from the 1st of 

April 2013 and were updated in March 2017. The Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards replaced the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 

Government in the United Kingdom 2006. Conformance with the Standards, the 

Definition of Internal Auditing and Code of Ethics is mandatory.  

The RIAS is committed to meeting the standards laid down in the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards Framework and any significant deviations from the 

Standards will be reported to the Governance & Audit Committee.   

  

 

 

 

Page 77



4  

D. The Charter is split into the following sections;  

1. Purpose, Authority and Responsibility;  

2. Independence and objectivity;  

3. Proficiency and due professional care;  

4. Quality assurance and improvement programme.  

  

1.  Purpose, Authority and Responsibility (Standard 1000)  

  

1.1 Internal Audit is an assurance function that primarily provides an independent 

and objective opinion to management and Members on the control environment 

comprising risk management, internal control and governance by evaluating its 

effectiveness in achieving the Council’s objectives.  

  

1.2 It objectively examines, evaluates and reports on the adequacy of the control 

environment as a contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and effective 

use of resources.    

  

1.3 It helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, 

disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 

management, control and governance issues.  

  

1.4 In addition, the other objectives of the function are to:  

  

• Support the Chief Finance Officer in each Council to discharge their 

Section 151 duties;  

• Contribute to and support the organisation with the objective of ensuring 

the provision of, and promoting the need for, sound financial systems;   

• Investigate allegations of fraud or irregularity to help safeguard public 

funds in consultation with relevant Council Services;  

• Support the work of the relevant Governance & Audit Committees; and  

• Provide an annual audit opinion on the overall adequacy and 

effectiveness of the Council’s framework of governance, risk 

management and control.   

  

1.5 These objectives will be delivered through maintaining a high quality RIAS 

function that meets the needs of each Council, supporting the relevant Section 

151 Officers and the Governance & Audit Committees in discharging their 

responsibilities and meeting the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards.   

  

1.6 Internal Audit is a statutory service. Part 3 of The Accounts and Audit (Wales)            

Regulations 2018 concerns financial management and internal control. 

Regulation 5 (responsibility for internal control and financial management) of 

Part 3 directs that:  

 

Page 78



5  

‘The relevant body must ensure that there is a sound system of internal control 
which facilitates the effective exercise of that body’s functions and which 
includes:  

Arrangements for the management of risk, and (b) 
Adequate and effective financial management.’  

 

1.7 Regulation 7 (Internal Audit) of Part 3 directs that: 

  

‘A relevant body must maintain an adequate and effective system of internal 
audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control.’  

  

1.8 The work of Internal Audit forms part of the assurance framework, however, the 

existence of Internal Audit does not diminish the responsibility of management 

to establish systems of internal control to ensure that activities are conducted 

in a secure, efficient and well-ordered manner.  

  

1.9 Section 151 of the Local Government Finance Act 1972 requires every local 

authority to designate an officer to be responsible for the proper administration 

of its financial affairs.  In each Council it is the Chief Finance Officer/Head of 

Finance/Director of Finance or equivalent. 

 

Scope   

 

1.10 The scope for Internal Audit work includes the control environment comprising 

risk management, control and governance.  

  

1.11 This effectively means that Internal Audit has the remit to independently review 

all the Council’s operations, resources, services and processes in place to:  

  

• Establish and monitor the achievement of Council objectives;  

• Identify, assess and manage the risks to achieving the Council’s 

objectives;  

• Facilitate policy and decision making;  

• Ensure the economical, effective and efficient use of resources;  

• Ensure compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and 

regulations;  

• Safeguard assets and interests from losses of all kinds, including 

those arising from fraud, irregularity or corruption; and  

• Ensure the integrity and reliability of information, accounts and data, 

including internal and external reporting. 

  

 

 1.12 All the Council’s activities, funded from whatever source, and indeed the entire 

control environment fall within the remit of Internal Audit.  

 

Page 79



6  

1.13 Internal Audit will consider the adequacy of controls necessary to secure 

propriety, economy, efficiency and effectiveness in all areas. It will seek to 

confirm that management have taken all necessary steps to achieve these 

objectives.   

 

1.14 The scope of Internal Audit work should cover all operational and management 

controls and should not be restricted to the audit of systems and controls 

necessary to form an opinion on the financial statements. This does not imply 

that all systems will necessarily be reviewed, but that all will be included in the 

audit needs assessment and hence considered for review following the 

assessment of risk. The Internal Audit activity is free from interference in 

determining the scope of internal auditing, performing work and communicating 

results.    

 

1.15 It is not the remit of Internal Audit to challenge the appropriateness of Policy 

decisions. However, Internal Audit is required to examine the management 

arrangements of the Council by which such decisions are made, monitored and 

reviewed.  

  

1.16 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards provide the following definitions for 

assurance and consultancy work:  

  

• Assurance Services  

An objective examination of evidence for the purpose of providing an 

independent assessment on governance, risk management and 

internal control for the organisation. Examples may include financial, 

performance, compliance, system security and due diligence 

engagements. This work will usually result in an opinion being 

provided. (These Services may also be provided to other parties and 

organisations).   

  

• Consulting Services   

Advisory and related client service activities, the nature and scope of 

which are agreed with the client, are intended to add value and improve 

an organisation’s governance, risk management and internal control 

without the Internal Auditor assuming management responsibility. 

Examples include counsel, advice, facilitation and training. The nature 

of Consulting Services provided includes acting as a ‘critical friend’ on 

Project Boards. This work will not normally result in an opinion being 

provided. (These Services may also be provided to other parties and 

organisations).  

  

1.17 The core aim of the work undertaken is to establish a risk based annual 

Internal Audit Plan that is balanced and covers the control environment of the 

Council as far as is practicable. In order to undertake a balanced workload, 

Internal Audit plans to complete a mix of assurance and consultancy work, the 

outcomes of which contribute to the Internal Audit Annual Report where it 

Page 80



7  

concludes with an opinion on the Council’s overall risk, governance and control 

environment.  The Head of Internal Audit should share information, coordinate 

activities and consider relying upon the work of other internal and external 

assurance and consulting service providers to ensure proper coverage and 

minimise duplication of efforts.  

 

1.18 In Internal Audit has right of access to all of the Council’s records, information 

and assets that it considers necessary to fulfil its responsibilities, including 

those of partner organisations. Internal Audit staff shall have unrestricted 

access to all Council activities and records (whether manual or computerised 

systems), personnel, cash, stores, other assets and premises, including those 

of partner organisations and have authority to obtain such information and 

explanations as considered necessary to fulfil Internal Audit’s responsibilities.  

 

  Rights of Access  

  

1.19 All staff are required to give complete co-operation to Internal Audit staff to 

enable the undertaking of an audit.   

  

1.20 All partners/agents contracted to provide services on the Council’s behalf are 

also required to co-operate with Internal Audit staff and make available all 

necessary information.  Rights of access to other bodies funded by the Council 

should be set out in conditions of funding or contract documents.  

2.  Independence and Objectivity (Standard 1100)  

  

2.1 The main determinant of the effectiveness of Internal Audit is that it is seen to 

be independent and that Internal Auditors must be objective in performing their 

work. To ensure this, Internal Audit operates within a framework that allows:  

  

• The Head of Internal Audit has direct access to the Chief Executive, the 

Section 151 Officer and Monitoring Officer;  

• Unrestricted access to Directors, Heads of Service, Managers and Staff;  

• Unrestricted access to Members (including the Leader, Cabinet Members 

and Governance & Audit Committee);  

• Unrestricted access to Audit Wales (i.e. the Council’s External Auditor);   

• Reporting in its own name; and   

• Internal Audit is free from interference when determining the scope of audit 

reviews, performing the work and communicating the results.  

  

  

2.2 This is achieved through a reporting relationship in each Council as shown in 

Figure 1 below:  

 

  

Page 81



8  

 

Figure 1 – Internal Audit reporting arrangements  

  

 

Section 151 Officer  

2.3 The Section 151 Officer has overall responsibility for the proper administration of 

the Council’s financial affairs. Internal Audit assists the Officer by providing an 

opinion on the overall control environment and by regular assurance testing of 

the key financial systems.  

  

Governance & Audit Committee  

2.4 The Council operates a Governance & Audit Committee that meets on a cyclical 

basis. It monitors the performance of Internal Audit in relation to productivity, 

efficiency and quality. It receives regular reports from Internal Audit including 

progress in delivering the Annual Audit Plan and is attended by the Head of 

Internal Audit1 as well as Officers from the Council.  

  

2.5 In addition, the Governance & Audit Committee receives the Internal Audit 

Annual Report that provides a summary of all assurance and consultancy work 

undertaken and concludes by giving an opinion on the overall control 

environment within the Council.  If a qualified or unfavourable annual internal 

audit opinion is issued, the reasons to support this will be stated within the 

Internal Audit Annual Report.  

  

2.6 The Head of Internal Audit has unrestricted access to the Chair of Governance 

& Audit Committee.   

  

 
1 Head of Internal Audit – denotes the Head of the Regional Internal Audit Service   

  

  

  

Head of Internal  
Audit   

Head of Paid Service   

Section 151 Officer   

Governance & Audit  

Committee  Members 
 

  

Page 82



9  

Senior Management  

2.7 Each Council is divided into various Services and it is the role of the Chief 

Executive and each Director, Head of Service or equivalent to ensure delivery 

and operation of the service areas falling within their remit.  

Relationships with key stakeholders and Service Managers  
 
2.8 The Internal Audit Service develops constructive working relationships with 

Managers at all levels within the Council in terms of:  
 

• Planning work;   

• Carrying out audit assignments; and   

• Agreeing action plans arising from the work undertaken.  

 

2.9 Whilst maintaining its independence, the Internal Audit Service recognises that 

it must work with Managers to agree improvements that are deemed necessary.  

  

External Auditors  

2.10 The aim of the relationship between internal and external auditors is to achieve 

mutual recognition and respect, leading to a joint improvement in performance 

and to avoid, wherever possible, duplication of work.  

  

2.11 The Head of Internal Audit liaises regularly with Audit Wales to consult on audit 

plans, discuss matters of mutual interest and to seek opportunities for co-

operation in the conduct of audit work.  

  

Elected Members  

2.12 The Head of Internal Audit will aim to have sound working relationships and 

channels of communication with Elected Members and in particular, 

Governance & Audit Committee, Cabinet and Scrutiny Committees.  

  

Internal Audit Standards  

2.13 There is a statutory requirement for Internal Audit to work in accordance with 

the “proper audit practices”.  These are set out in the Public Sector Internal 

Audit Standards (PSIAS) which the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy (CIPFA) developed in collaboration with the Chartered Institute of 

Internal Auditors (CIIA) and which came into force on the 1st April 2013 and 

updated in March 2017.  

  

2.14 Internal Audit Staff will; 

 

• Comply with relevant auditing standards;  

• Comply and promote compliance throughout the Council with all Council 

rules and policies;  

Page 83



10  

• Be expected at all times to adopt a professional, reliable, independent 

and innovative approach to their work; and  

• It is essential that Internal Audit staff are seen to be impartial.  All Internal 

Audit staff are required to complete an annual declaration of their 

interests and must be kept up to date.  This is reviewed as part of the 

annual appraisal and is in line with professional ethics.  The Head of 

Internal Audit is responsible for ensuring that audit staff are not assigned 

to operational areas or investigations that could compromise their 

independence (including previous and / or secondary employment 

elsewhere in the relevant Council or organisation being audited).  
 

2.15 The RIAS has adopted the CIIA’s Code of Ethics.  Where members of the RIAS 

have attained membership with other professional bodies such as: CIPFA or 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW), those 

officers must also comply with their relevant bodies’ ethical requirements.   
 

2.16 Each member of the Team will receive a copy of the Code of Ethics (included 

at Annex 2) and sign up to an annual declaration to confirm that they will work 

in compliance with the Code of Ethics as well as Councils standards and 

policies such as the Codes of Conduct.  Where potential areas of conflict may 

arise during the year, the auditor will also be required to disclose this.  It is 

critical that all Auditors maintain high standards of integrity, independence, 

objectivity, confidentiality and competence.  
 

2.17 In addition to the Code of Ethics staff must comply with the Seven Principles of 

Public Life and the Vale of Glamorgan Council’s Code of Corporate Governance 

which are referred to in Annex 3 – Additional Requirements.    
 

Shared Service  

2.18 Internal Audit is delivered through a shared regional service between Bridgend, 

Merthyr Tydfil, Rhondda Cynon Taf and the Vale of Glamorgan Councils.  The 

host authority for the delivery of the RIAS is the Vale of Glamorgan Council. 

The governance of the provision of the shared regional service is carried out by 

the Regional Board.  This is made up of the Chief Financial Officers of each 

Authority or their nominated substitutes who shall be responsible for the 

strategic direction of the Service.  
  

2.19 The activities of the Regional Board shall include but not be limited to:  

• determining the strategic direction of the RIAS;  

• monitoring and reviewing standards;  

• determining the Authority Charging Rate on the basis of reasonable 

information provided by the Head of Internal Audit;  

• providing general supervision of the provision of the Service; and,  

• Resolving conflicts between competing interests amongst the authorities 

collectively and individually relating to RIAS, the Regional Board and / or the 

Service.  
 

2.20 The Governance & Audit Committee for each Council reviews the performance 

and effectiveness of audit activity, including that of the RIAS.  

Page 84



11  

3.  Proficiency and Due Professional Care (standard 1200)  

  

3.1 Directors, Heads of Service and Service Managers are responsible for ensuring 

that internal control arrangements are sufficient to address the risks facing their 

Service including the risk of fraud and corruption.  

  

3.2 The Head of Internal Audit is required to manage the provision of a RIAS to each 

Council which will include reviewing the systems of internal control operating 

throughout each Council, and will adopt a combination of system based, risk 

based, regularity, computer and contract audit approaches in addition to the 

investigation of fraud.  

  

3.3 In discharge of this duty, the Head of Internal Audit will:  

  

• Prepare an annual strategic risk based audit plan for approval and 

ratification by the relevant  Governance & Audit Committee; and  

  

• The Annual Audit Plan will be regarded as flexible and may be revised to 

reflect changing services and risk assessments; elements of the annual 

plan are also based on items within Corporate or Strategic Risk Registers.  

  

Resources and Proficiency  

  

3.4 For the RIAS to fulfil its responsibilities, the service must be appropriately 

staffed in terms of numbers, professional qualifications, skills and experience.  

Resources must be effectively developed and deployed to achieve the 

approved risk-based plan.  The Head of Internal Audit is responsible for 

ensuring that there is access to the full range of knowledge, skills, qualifications 

and experience to deliver the audit plan and meet the requirements of the 

PSIAS.  

  

3.5 The Head of Internal Audit must hold a full professional qualification, defined as 

CCAB, CMIIA or equivalent professional membership and adhere to 

professional values and the Code of Ethics. They must have sufficient skill, 

experience and competencies to work with Directors, Heads of Service, and 

other Managers and the Governance & Audit Committee to influence the risk 

management, governance and internal control of the Councils.  

  

3.6 Each job role within the RIAS structure details the prerequisite skills and 

competencies required for that role and these will be assessed annually in line 

with Council policy and the PSIAS.  Any development and training plans will be 

regularly reviewed, monitored and agreed with officers.  

  

3.7 All Auditors are also required to maintain a record of their continual professional 

development in line with their professional body.  

  
  

Page 85



12  

Due Professional Care  
  

3.8  Internal Auditors must exercise due professional care by considering the:  

  

• Extent of work needed to achieve the assignment objectives;  

• Relative complexity, materiality or significance of matters to which 

assurance procedures are applied;  

• Adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk management and  

control processes;  

• Probability of significant error, fraud, or non-compliance;   

• Cost of assurance in relation to potential benefits; and  

• Considering various data analysis techniques and being alert to 

significant risks that may affect the objectives.  
  

Relationships  
  

3.9 All stakeholders will be treated with respect, courtesy, politeness and 

professionalism.  Any confidential or sensitive issues raised with or reported to 

Internal Audit staff will be dealt with in an appropriate manner.  
  

Internal – Our main contacts are with:  

• Elected Members;  

• Chief Officers (as defined in the Council’s Constitution)  

• Corporate Directors and Section 151 Officers  

• Heads of Service and Headteachers;  

• Group Managers / Operational Managers and line supervisors;  

• Front line employees delivering services to the public; and  

• Back office support staff, in particular Financial Services, Legal Services, 

ICT and HR.  
 

External – Our main contacts are with:  

• The Council’s External Auditors.  

Internal and External Audit work together to ensure audit resources are 

used to best advantage for the benefit of the Council.  The External 

Auditors have regard to the work performed by Internal Audit when 

undertaking their final accounts audit.  

• Various Government Agencies and Inspectorates.  
  

4.  Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (Standard 1300)  

  

4.1 To enable the Head of Internal Audit to assess the RIAS’s activities with 

conformance to the PSIAS and to aid in the annual assessment of the RIAS’s 

efficiency and effectiveness and identify opportunities for improvement, a 

Quality Improvement and Management Programme (QIMP) has been 

developed.  

  

4.2 The QIMP includes both internal and external assessments in accordance with 

the Standards.  

  

Page 86



13  

4.3 Assessment against QIMP forms part of the annual assessment of the 

effectiveness of internal audit (as contained within the Head of Internal Audit’s 

Annual Opinion Report) which is presented to the relevant Governance & Audit 

Committee.   
  

4.4 Where there are instances of non-conformance to the PSIAS this will be 

reported to the Governance & Audit Committee and the Regional Board with 

any significant deviations being detailed within the Annual Governance 

Statement.  
  

Internal Assessment  
  

4.5 All Auditors have access to up to date business processes, working instructions, 

the Internal Audit Charter, Council policies, the PSIAS, journals, publications 

and other relevant articles and electronic training material and websites.  Where 

staff are members of bodies such as CIPFA and/or CIIA further guidance is 

available.  
  

4.6 To maintain quality, work is allocated to staff with appropriate skills, competence 

and experience.  All levels of staff are supervised.  Work is monitored for 

progress, assessed for quality and to allow for coaching and mentoring.  
  

4.7 Targets are set for individual auditors (such as completion of an audit within a 

set number of days) as well as for the team. Audit targets and performance 

indicators will be agreed with the Regional Board and reported to the relevant 

Governance & Audit Committee.  
  

4.8 In addition to the QIMP, progress made against the annual audit plan and any 

emerging issues (i.e. fraud risks or governance issues) are reported regularly 

to the relevant Governance & Audit Committee.  
  

4.9 Ongoing assessment of individuals is carried out through regular on-going 

reviews, one to one meetings, feedback from clients via the Client Satisfaction 

Surveys and formally in the annual personal development review process.  
    

 External Assessment  
  

4.10 In compliance with the PSIAS, external assessment will be carried out once 

every five years by a qualified, independent assessor or assessment team from 

outside of the RIAS Councils.  The External Assessment of the previous Shared 

Service between Bridgend CBC and the Vale of Glamorgan Council took place 

during in 2017 and in the other respective Councils in 2018/19.  

 

4.11 A comprehensive and detailed self-assessment has been carried out in 2022 

and shared with the external assessors in November 2022.  The external 

assessment of the RIAS is currently in progress and is due to be completed in 

April 2023.  

  

Page 87



14  

 

Annex 1 - Glossary of Terms  

Charter  

The internal audit charter is a formal document that defines the internal audit activity’s 

purpose, authority and responsibility. The internal audit charter establishes the internal 

audit activity’s position within the organisation; authorises access to records, 

personnel and physical properties relevant to the performance of engagements; and 

defines the scope of internal audit activities.  

  

Chief Audit Executive  

Chief audit executive describes the role of a person in a senior position responsible for 

effectively managing the internal audit activity in accordance with the internal audit 

charter and the mandatory elements of the International Professional Practices 

Framework. The chief audit executive or others reporting to the chief audit executive 

will have appropriate professional certifications and qualifications. The specific job title 

and/or responsibilities of the chief audit executive may vary across organisations. In 

the context of the RIAS this is the Head of Internal Audit.  

  

Code of Ethics  

The Code of Ethics of the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (CIIA) are Principles 

relevant to the profession and practice of internal auditing and Rules of Conduct that 

describe behaviour expected of internal auditors. The Code of Ethics applies to both 

parties and entities that provide internal audit services.  

The purpose of the Code of Ethics is to promote an ethical culture in the global 

profession of internal auditing.  

  

Compliance  

Adherence to policies, plans, procedures, laws, regulations, contracts, or other 

requirements.  

  

Conflict of Interest  

Any relationship that is, or appears to be, not in the best interest of the organisation. A 

conflict of interest would prejudice an individual’s ability to perform his or her duties 

and responsibilities objectively.  

  

Control  

Any action taken by management, the board and other parties to manage risk and 

increase the likelihood that established objectives and goals will be achieved. 

Management plans, organises and directs the performance of sufficient actions to 

provide reasonable assurance that objectives and goals will be achieved.  

  

Control Environment    

The control environment provides the discipline and structure for the achievement of 

the primary objectives of the system of internal control. The control environment 

includes the following elements:  

• Integrity and ethical values;  

Page 88



15  

• Management’s philosophy and operating style;  

• Organisational structure;  

• Assignment of authority and responsibility;  

• Human resource policies and practices; and   

• Competence of personnel.  

  

Fraud  

Any illegal act characterised by deceit, concealment or violation of trust. These acts 

are not dependent upon the threat of violence or physical force. Frauds are perpetrated 

by parties and organisations to obtain money, property or services; to avoid payment 

or loss of services; or to secure personal or business advantage.  

  

Governance  

The combination of processes and structures implemented by the board to inform, 

direct, manage and monitor the activities of the organisation toward the achievement 

of its objectives.  

Public sector definition: Governance Statement  

The mechanism by which an organisation publicly reports on its governance 
arrangements each year.  

  

Independence  

The freedom from conditions that threaten the ability of the internal audit activity to 

carry out internal audit responsibilities in an unbiased manner.  

  

Internal Auditing  

Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity 

designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an 

organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach 

to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and 

governance processes.  

  

Overall Opinion  

The rating, conclusion and/or other description of results provided by the chief audit 

executive addressing, at a broad level, governance, risk management and/or control 

processes of the organisation. An overall opinion is the professional judgement of the 

chief audit executive based on the results of a number of individual engagements and 

other activities for a specific time interval.  

  

Risk  

The possibility of an event occurring that will have an impact on the achievement of 

objectives. Risk is measured in terms of impact and likelihood.  

  

Risk Appetite  

The level of risk that an organisation is willing to accept.  

  

Page 89



16  

Risk Management  

A process to identify, assess, manage and control potential events or situations to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of the organisation’s 

objectives.  

  

Page 90



17  

  

Annex 2 - Code of Ethics   

Public sector requirement  

Internal Auditors in UK public sector organisations (as set out in the Applicability 

Section) must conform to the Code of Ethics as set out below. If individual Internal 

Auditors have membership of another professional body then he or she must also 

comply with the relevant requirements of that body. The Code of Ethics promote an 

ethical and professional culture.  It does not supersede or replace Internal Auditors’ 

own professional bodies Code of Ethics or those of employing organisations.   

  

The purpose of The Institute of Internal Auditor’s Code of Ethics is to promote an 

ethical culture in the profession of Internal Auditing. A Code of Ethics is necessary and 

appropriate for the profession of Internal Auditing, founded as it is on the trust placed 

in its objective assurance about risk management, control and governance.   

  

The Institute’s Code of Ethics extends beyond the definition of Internal Auditing to 

include two essential components:  

  

Components  

1. Principles that are relevant to the profession and practice of Internal Auditing; and   

2. Rules of Conduct that describe behaviour norms expected of Internal Auditors.   

  

These rules are an aid to interpreting the Principles into practical applications and are 

intended to guide the ethical conduct of Internal Auditors.  

  

The Code of Ethics provides guidance to Internal Auditors serving others. ‘Internal 

Auditors’ refers to Institute members and those who provide Internal Auditing services 

within the definition of Internal Auditing.  

  

Applicability and Enforcement  

This Code of Ethics applies to both individuals and entities that provide Internal 

Auditing services. For Institute members, breaches of the Code of Ethics will be 

evaluated and administered according to The Institute’s Disciplinary Procedures. The 

fact that a particular conduct is not mentioned in the Rules of Conduct does not prevent 

it from being unacceptable or discreditable and therefore, the member liable to 

disciplinary action.  

  

Public sector interpretation  

The ‘Institute’ here refers to the Institute of Internal Auditors. Disciplinary procedures 

of other professional bodies and employing organisations may apply to breaches of 

this Code of Ethics.   

  

Page 91



18  

    

1.  Integrity  

  

Principle  

The integrity of Internal Auditors establishes trust and thus provides the basis 
for reliance on their judgement.  

  

Rules of Conduct  

Internal Auditors:  

1.1  Shall perform their work with honesty, diligence and responsibility.  

1.2   Shall observe the law and make disclosures expected by the law and the 

profession.  

1.3   Shall not knowingly be a party to any illegal activity, or engage in acts that are  

           discreditable to the profession of Internal Auditing or to the organisation.  

1.4   Shall respect and contribute to the legitimate and ethical objectives of the 

organisation.  

  

2.  Objectivity  

  

Principle  

Internal Auditors exhibit the highest level of professional objectivity in gathering, 
evaluating and communicating information about the activity or process being 
examined.  
Internal Auditors make a balanced assessment of all the relevant circumstances 
and are not unduly influenced by their own interests or by others in forming 
judgements.  

  

Rules of Conduct  

Internal Auditors:  

2.1 Shall not participate in any activity or relationship that may impair or be 

presumed to impair their unbiased assessment. This participation includes 

those activities or relationships that may be in conflict with the interests of the 

organisation.  

2.2 Shall not accept anything that may impair or be presumed to impair their 

professional judgement.  

2.3 Shall disclose all material facts known to them that, if not disclosed, may distort 

the reporting of activities under review.  

  

3. Confidentiality  

 

Principle  

Internal Auditors respect the value and ownership of information they receive 
and do not disclose information without appropriate authority unless there is a 
legal or professional obligation to do so.  
  

 

 

Page 92



19  

 

Rules of Conduct  

Internal Auditors:  

3.1 Shall be prudent in the use and protection of information acquired in the course 

of their duties.  

3.2  Shall not use information for any personal gain or in any manner that would be 
contrary to the law or detrimental to the legitimate and ethical objectives of the 
organisation.  

 
4.   Competency  

 

Principle   

Internal Auditors apply the knowledge, skills and experience needed in the 
performance of Internal Auditing services.   

  

Rules of Conduct  

Internal Auditors:  

4.1 Shall engage only in those services for which they have the necessary 

knowledge, skills and experience.  

4.2 Shall perform Internal Auditing services in accordance with the International 

Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.  

4.3 Shall continually improve their proficiency, effectiveness and quality of their 

services.  
 

  

Page 93



20  

Annex 3 – Additional Requirements  

In addition to the Code of Ethics staff must comply with the Seven Principles of 

Public Life and the Vale of Glamorgan Council’s Code of Corporate 

Governance.  
 

The Seven Principles of Public Life (also known as the Nolan Principles) apply to 

anyone who works as a public office-holder. This includes all those who are elected 

or appointed to public office, nationally and locally, and all people appointed to 

work in the Civil Service, local government, the police, courts and probation 

services, non-departmental public bodies (NDPBs), and in the health, education, 

social and care services. All public office-holders are both servants of the public 

and stewards of public resources. The principles also apply to all those in 

other sectors delivering public services. 
 

1.1 Selflessness 

Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest. 
 

1.2 Integrity 

Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people 

or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. They 

should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material benefits for 

themselves, their family, or their friends. They must declare and resolve any interests 

and relationships. 
 

1.3 Objectivity 

Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, 

using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias. 
 

1.4 Accountability 

Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions 

and must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this. 
 

1.5 Openness 

Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent 

manner. Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear 

and lawful reasons for so doing. 
 

1.6 Honesty 

Holders of public office should be truthful. 
 

1.7 Leadership 

Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour and 

treat others with respect. They should actively promote and robustly support the 

principles and challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs. 

 

More information is available via this link: 

www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-

of-public-life--2;  

 

Page 94

http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2


21  

 

Vale of Glamorgan Council - Code of Corporate Governance  

 

Staff also need to be aware of and comply with the Council’s Code of Corporate 

Governance which is part of the Constitution. Below is a link to the document: 

 

https://www.valeofglamorgan.gov.uk/Documents/_Committee%20Reports/Committee

%20Information/Constitution/November-2022/22-11-10-Section-23.pdf;  

 

 

Page 95

https://www.valeofglamorgan.gov.uk/Documents/_Committee%20Reports/Committee%20Information/Constitution/November-2022/22-11-10-Section-23.pdf
https://www.valeofglamorgan.gov.uk/Documents/_Committee%20Reports/Committee%20Information/Constitution/November-2022/22-11-10-Section-23.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 4 
 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO THE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

27 APRIL 2023 
 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF OFFICER – FINANCE, PERFORMANCE AND CHANGE 
 

ANTI-TAX EVASION POLICY 
 
1. Purpose of report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present the updated Anti-Tax Evasion Policy to the 

Governance and Audit Committee prior to the Policy being presented to Cabinet for 
approval in June 2023. 
 

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities 
 

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being objective 
under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 

 
 Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 

ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that 
can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives. 

 
 

3. Background 
 
3.1 The Criminal Finances Act 2017 (the ‘2017 Act’) became law in the summer of 2017.  

Part 3 of the 2017 Act sets out how those organisations categorised as ‘relevant 
bodies’ under the Act will be considered criminally liable where they fail to prevent 
those who act for, or on their behalf, from criminally facilitating tax evasion. 

 
3.2 The 2017 Act introduced new offences that will be committed where a relevant body 

fails to have taken appropriate steps to prevent an associated person criminally 
facilitating the evasion of a tax, and this will be the case whether the tax evaded is 
owed in the UK or in a foreign country. 

 
3.3 ‘Relevant bodies’ include corporate bodies or partnerships (wherever incorporated 

or formed), local authorities and fire authorities. 
 
3.4 An ‘associated person’, as set out in the legislation, is an employee, agent or other 

person who performs services for or on behalf of the Council. 
 
3.5 ‘Tax evasion’ can be described as any fraudulent activity that intends to divert funds 

from the public revenue and constitutes the common law offence of cheating the 
public revenue. 

 
3.6  Organisations, including local authorities, could be liable to severe penalties if they 

fail to put in place adequate procedures to prevent tax evasion. 
 

Page 97

Agenda Item 8



Page 2 of 4 
 

3.7 In order for the corporate charges to be brought there must first be two offences that 
have taken place. There must be a criminal offence by the taxpayer and an 
associated person must deliberately and dishonestly take action to facilitate the 
taxpayer’s evasion. To accidentally, ignorantly or negligently facilitate the evasion of 
tax will not result in the corporate offence. 

 
3.8 If both offences have been committed then the Council will have committed the 

corporate offence of “failure to prevent the facilitation of tax evasion” unless it can 
demonstrate that it had reasonable preventative procedures in place. 

 
3.9 The penalty for this offence includes unlimited fines and ancillary orders such as 

confiscation orders or serious crime prevention orders, as well as reputational 
damage to the Council.  Tax based fraud or evasion is generally investigated by HM 
Revenues and Customs (HMRC) with prosecutions brought by the Crown 
Prosecution Service (CPS). 

 
3.10    HMRC issued guidance for relevant bodies formulated around the following six guiding 

principles: 
 

a) Risk assessment 
b) Proportionality of risk-based prevention procedures 
c) Top level commitment 
d) Due diligence 
e) Communication (including training) 
f) Monitoring and review. 

 
3.11    On 26 January 2023 HMRC reported that they had 28 potential Corporate Criminal 

Offences cases underway (https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/number-of-
live-corporate-criminal-offences-investigations/number-of-live-corporate-criminal-
offences-investigations).  They had 9 live investigations, and a further 26 live 
opportunities currently under review.  These investigations spanned 11 different 
business sectors including software providers, labour provision, accountancy and 
legal services and transport. 

  
 

4. Current situation/proposal 
 
4.1 The Council is committed to establishing and maintaining effective arrangements to 

prevent and detect acts of bribery, corruption and tax evasion in relation to Council 
services. The Council requires all Members and employees to demonstrate the 
highest standards of honesty and integrity and this includes compliance with the 
relevant legislation. 

 
4.2 The Council has in place Anti-Fraud and Bribery and Anti-Money Laundering policies 

to support effective arrangements to prevent and detect acts of bribery and corruption 
which are monitored and reviewed by the Governance and Audit Committee. 

 
4.3 The Anti-Tax Evasion Policy specifically addresses the prevention of tax evasion and 

provides a coherent and consistent approach for all employees and any person who 
performs services for and on behalf of Bridgend County Borough Council.  Cabinet 
approved the Anti-Tax Evasion Policy on 9 February 2021.  This review updates the 
policy and makes a number of minor changes.  These include setting out that the 

Page 98



Page 3 of 4 
 

Policy applies to Members and Officers, updating the role of Deputy Head of Finance 
which is no longer interim, the policy is to be reviewed biennially, and minor 
presentational changes and formatting.  The revised Anti-Tax Evasion Policy is 
attached as Appendix A, with the changes identified therein.  The revised Policy will 
be presented to Cabinet in June 2023 for approval. 

 
4.4 This policy statement is supplementary to the Council’s wider Anti-Fraud and Bribery 

Strategy which sets out the key responsibilities with regard to fraud prevention and 
what to do if fraud or financial irregularity is suspected and the action that will be taken 
by management. 

 
4.5 The Council has a Fraud e-learning module which includes a section in relation to 

Anti-tax evasion, which was rolled out in August 2020 to appropriate staff and 713 
staff have completed the training. 

 
4.6  The Governance and Audit Committee are asked to consider the policy as part of 

their role to obtain assurance over the Council’s corporate governance and risk 
management arrangements. The policy will be reviewed and updated as required on 
a biennial basis.  

 
4.7 No instances of Anti-Tax Evasion have been reported to the Council. 

 
5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 Paragraph 25.5 of the Financial Procedure Rules requires the Chief Finance Officer 

to develop, maintain and implement the Anti-Tax Evasion Policy.  All Chief Officers 
are responsible for ensuring compliance with the Anti-Tax Evasion Policy and with 
systems of internal control. 
 

6. Equality Act 2010 implications  
 
6.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. This is an information report, therefore it is not 
necessary to carry out an Equality Impact Assessment in the production of this report. 
It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable equality impacts as a 
result of this report.  

 
7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 

report.  The following is a summary to show how the 5 ways of working to achieve 
the well-being goals have been used to formulate the recommendations within this 
report: 
 

 Long Term The Anti-Tax Evasion Policy, Procedure and 
Reporting Arrangements will assist in the long 
term to support officers and Members in the 
successful execution of their duties by meeting 

Page 99



Page 4 of 4 
 

the legal obligations in the course of business 
activities. 
 

 Prevention The purpose of the procedure is to prevent the 
facilitation of Tax Evasion under the Criminal 
Finances Act 2017. 
 

 Integration  The outcomes that the procedure supports is 
that implementation of the policy will help in the 
prevention of the facilitation of tax evasion by 
persons associated with the Council and in doing 
so prevent fraudulent activity that intends to 
divert funds from the public revenue. This 
objective links with the Government objective to 
tackle tax evasion. 
 

 Collaboration An ‘associated person’ or person who performs 
services on behalf of the Council will be required 
to adhere to this policy. 
 

 Involvement The persons mainly involved in the procedure 
will be Bridgend County Borough Council staff.  
However any agent or other person who 
performs services for or on behalf of the Council 
will be included, this may involve a diverse range 
of stakeholders. 

 
8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 There are no financial implications directly associated with the Anti-Tax Evasion 

Policy. 
 

9. Recommendation 
 
9.1 The Committee is asked to note the amended Anti-Tax Evasion Policy attached at 

Appendix A. 
 

 
Carys Lord 
Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change 
March 2023 

 
Contact officer:  Nigel Smith 

 Group Manager – Chief Accountant 
 
Telephone:   (01656) 643605 
 
Email:   nigel.smith@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
Postal address:  Civic Offices, Angel Street, Bridgend.  CF31 4WB 

 
Background documents: None 

Page 100



Anti-Tax Evasion Policy 
 

 
P a g e  | 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ANTI-TAX EVASION POLICY  

 
               

 

 

 

 

 

 

Draft March 2023 

  

Appendix A

Page 101



Anti-Tax Evasion Policy 
 

 
P a g e  | 2 

 

ANTI-TAX EVASION POLICY  

 

CONTENTS              PAGE 

 1 Introduction           3 

 2. Scope of the policy         4 

 3. What is the facilitation of tax evasion?        4 

 4. Examples of tax evasion        6  

 5. Defences          6   

 6. Responsibilities of staff & other associated persons                   8 

 7. Risk assessment          10 

 8. Senior management commitment        10 

9. Due diligence                     11 
 

 10. How to raise a concern        12 

 11. What happens if an officer prefers not to report their                12 
suspicions? 
 

12. Self reporting                       13 

13. Communication & training        13 

 14. Monitoring & review                    13 

 15. Other relevant policies         13 

Appendix A – Example of risk exposure within the Council 
                        in relation to the facilitation of tax evasion &  
                        how the risk Is managed      15 
 
Appendix B -  Report of tax evasion activity       21 

Page 102



Anti-Tax Evasion Policy 
 

 
P a g e  | 3 

 

 
1. Introduction 

 

1.1  The Government believes that relevant bodies should be criminally liable where 
they fail to prevent those who act for, or on their behalf, from criminally facilitating 
Tax Evasion.  

1.2 The Criminal Finances Act 2017 (the ‘2017 Act’) became law in the summer of 
2017 and Part 3 of the 2017 Act introduced new offences which sets out how 
those organisations categorised as ‘relevant bodies’ under the Act will be 
considered criminally liable where they fail to prevent those who act for, or on 
their behalf from criminally facilitating Tax Evasion. The act applies to both tax 
evaded which is owed in the UK or in a foreign country. 

1.3 This statement sets out Bridgend County Borough Council’s (the Council) policy 
in relation to anti-tax evasion and sets out the procedures that must be followed 
to enable the Council to comply with its legal obligation.  

1.4  This policy statement is supplementary to the Council’s wider Anti-Fraud and 
Bribery Strategy which sets out the key responsibilities with regard to fraud 
prevention and what to do if fraud or financial irregularity is suspected and the 
action that will be taken by management. 

1.5 The Council aims to conduct its financial affairs in a law abiding way and does 
not tolerate either the commitment or facilitation of Tax Evasion. The Council has 
a zero tolerance approach to all forms of Tax Evasion, whether under UK law or 
under the law of any foreign country. 

1.6 The Council already has a range of policies, procedures and guidance that 
underpins its financial activities including the Anti-Money Laundering Policy and 
Anti-Fraud and Bribery Policy. 

1.7 We request all our officers and all who have, or seek to have, a business 
relationship with the Council, to familiarise themselves with our Anti-Tax Evasion 
Policy and to act at all times in a way which is consistent with the procedures and 
reporting arrangements therein. 

  

Page 103



Anti-Tax Evasion Policy 
 

 
P a g e  | 4 

 

 
2. Scope of the policy 
 
 
2.1 This policy applies to Members and officers working for the Council or any 

subsidiary, including employees at all levels, directors, officers and associates 
(as defined below), including, but not limited to, agency workers, seconded 
workers, volunteers, apprentices, contractors, external consultants, third party 
representatives and business partners, sponsors or any other person associated 
with us, wherever located. 

 
2.2 This policy is adopted by the Council. Officers in leadership positions are 

responsible for ensuring those reporting to them understand and comply with the 
policy.   

 
 
3. What is the facilitation of tax evasion? 

 
 
3.1  Part 3 of the Criminal Finances Act 2017 (“the Act”) created the corporate criminal 

offence of failure to prevent the facilitation of Tax Evasion. Under this offence the 
Council, if found to be facilitating Tax Evasion, could face an unlimited fine and 
consequent damage to reputation. The Council could be found guilty if a third 
party committed Tax Evasion which a member of Council staff or an associate 
helped to assist in any way.   

 
3.2 This legislation aims to overcome the difficulties in attributing criminal liability to 

relevant bodies for the criminal acts of employees, agents or those that provide 
services for or on their behalf. Under the Act the new offence does not radically 
alter what is criminal, it simply focuses on who is held to account for acts contrary 
to the current criminal law. It does this by focussing on the failure to prevent the 
crimes of those who act for or on behalf of a corporation, rather than trying to 
attribute criminal acts to that corporation. 

 
3.3 The legislation applies to any form of tax including employment taxes and indirect 

taxes such as VAT, national insurance, landfill tax, custom tax and excise duties 
e.g. road fund licence and tax on the sale of alcohol and tobacco, capital gains 
and employment taxes. This list is not exhaustive. 

 
3.4 A person is “associated” with a relevant body if that person is an employee, 

agent or other person who performs services for or on behalf of the relevant body 
e.g. contractors, professional advisors and back office outsourced service 
suppliers such as IT or payroll providers. 

 
3.5 Only a “relevant body” can commit the offences contained in the ‘2017 Act’. This 

means that only incorporated bodies (typically companies) and partnerships can 
commit the new offences, including local authorities. Individuals cannot commit 
these offences. 

 

Page 104



Anti-Tax Evasion Policy 
 

 
P a g e  | 5 

 

3.6 Tax Evasion is the illegal non-payment or under-payment of taxes, usually as 
the result of making a false declaration (or no declaration) of taxes due to the 
relevant tax authorities, which results in legal penalties if the perpetrator is 
caught. 
 

 
3.7 Tax Avoidance, by contrast, is seeking to minimise the payment of taxes without 

deliberate deception. This is often legitimate but is sometimes contrary to the 
spirit of the law, e.g. involving the exploitation of loopholes. Importantly the 
corporate criminal offence of facilitation only applies to Tax Evasion.   

 
3.8   There are two stages to assessing whether an offence has been committed under 

the Act and these apply to both UK and overseas Tax Evasion offences: 
 

Stage 1: A criminal Tax Evasion by the taxpayer (either by an individual or legal 
entity) must have occurred under existing law. A prosecution is not a pre-requisite 
for tax evasion,  however where there is no criminal conviction of the taxpayer, 
the prosecution in respect of the corporate offence would still have to prove to 
the criminal standard of beyond reasonable doubt that the taxpayer’s offence had 
been committed. 
 
Stage 2: The criminal facilitation of the offence by a person associated with the 
Council with a view to aiding, abetting, counselling or procuring the evasion of 
tax by the taxpayer.  
 

3.9 Liability is strict – if stages 1 and 2 are satisfied, the Council will have committed 
an offence unless it shows that it has put in place reasonable measures and 
procedures to prevent the criminal facilitation of Tax Evasion or that it was not 
reasonable in the circumstances to expect it to have prevention procedures in 
place. 

 
3.10 If a relevant body is found guilty of a facilitation of Tax Evasion it could face 

unlimited financial penalties. Tax based fraud or evasion is generally investigated 
by Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs (HMRC) with prosecutions brought by 
the Crown Prosecution Service (CPS). 

 
3.11 The foreign Tax Evasion facilitation offence can only be committed by an 

organisation that has a connection with the UK, namely: 
 

 it is a body incorporated, or partnership formed, within the UK, or; 
 it carries on business, or part of a business, within the UK, or; 
 through any conduct constituting part of the foreign Tax Evasion facilitation 

offence takes place in the UK. 
  

Page 105



Anti-Tax Evasion Policy 
 

 
P a g e  | 6 

 

 
4. Examples of tax evasion 

 
 
4.1 It is not possible to give examples covering every possible scenario, however, 

some ‘red flag’ indicators are detailed below to give a flavour of the scope of the 
legislation: 

 
INDICATORS OF POSSIBLE TAX EVASION: 
You become aware, in the course of your work, that a third party has made or 
intends to make a false statement relating to tax; has failed to disclose income or 
gains to, or to register with, HMRC; has delivered or intends to deliver a false 
document relating to tax; or has set up or intends to set up a structure to try to 
hide income, gains or assets from a tax authority. 
You become aware, in the course of your work that a third party has deliberately 
failed to register for VAT or failed to account for VAT. 
Someone who works for a third party supplier offering you what seems like a 
discount because they tell you they don’t need to charge you VAT – without giving 
a reason. 

Someone asking you to do something that does not match up or ‘feel right’ and 
does not adhere to policy documentation – for example, paying into a different 
account than that which is specified on the invoice. 

A third party requests payment in cash and/or refuses to provide an invoice or 
receipt for a payment made. 
You become aware, in the course of your work that a third party working for us as 
an employee asks to be treated as a self-employed contractor, but without any 
material changes to their working conditions. 

 
 
5. Defences  

 
 
5.1  For the corporate offence to be committed there must be criminal facilitation of 

the taxpayer evasion by a person acting in the capacity of a person associated 
with the relevant body. The associated person must deliberately and dishonestly 
take action to facilitate the taxpayer-level evasion. If the associated person is only 
proved to have accidentally, ignorantly or even negligently facilitated the Tax 
Evasion offence then the offence is not committed by the relevant body. 

 
5.2 It is a defence to the corporate criminal offence of facilitating Tax Evasion if the 

Council can prove that it has in place such prevention procedures as it is 
reasonable to expect in the circumstances. The diagram below summarises the 
stages of the offence for both UK and foreign Tax Evasion: 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 106



Anti-Tax Evasion Policy 
 

 
P a g e  | 7 

 

Where the tax evaded is UK tax  
 

 
Where the tax evaded is not UK tax (foreign tax) 

 
 
          *  An organisation must have a connection with the UK and there must also be so-called 

“dual criminality”. In effect this broadly means equivalence between both the 
taxpayer’s Tax Evasion offence and the “associated person” facilitator’s offence with 
regard to the UK and the foreign jurisdiction: 

 
 For the taxpayer Tax Evasion offence: e.g. a French taxpayer evades 

French income tax (i.e. this is an offence in France) – Income Tax Evasion 
is a criminal offence in the UK, so there is “dual criminality”; 

 
 For the “associated person” facilitator’s offence: e.g. an “associated person” 

commits a French offence of aiding and abetting Tax Evasion – aiding and 
abetting Income Tax Evasion is a criminal offence in the UK, so there is 
“dual criminality”. 

 

 

1
•A taxpayer (either an individual or an entity) has criminally evaded 
UK tax.

2
•That evasion was criminally facilitated by a third party (member of 
staff of associate).

3
•The Council has failed to prevent a criminal act of facilitation, but may 
show in its defence that it had in place reasonable procedures to 
prevent the facilitation.

1
•A taxpayer (either an individual or an entity) has criminally evaded 
non-UK tax.

2
•That evasion was criminally facilitated by a third party (member of 
staff of associate) and that facilitation also meets the dual 
criminality test. 

3
•The dual criminality test is met. *

4

•The Council has failed to prevent a criminal act of facilitation, but 
may show in its defence that it had in place reasonable procedures 
to prevent the facilitation.

Page 107



Anti-Tax Evasion Policy 
 

 
P a g e  | 8 

 

5.3 HMRC has produced guidance on the appropriate set of prevention measures 
(six core principles) which could be put in place by a relevant body to prevent 
associated persons from criminally facilitating Tax Evasion are: 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
   
6. Responsibilities of staff & other associated persons 

 
 
6.1 The prevention, detection and reporting of all forms of financial irregularity, 

including suspected Tax Evasion, are the responsibility of all those working for 
the organisation or under its control (“associated person”). All staff are required 
to avoid activity that breaches this policy. 

 
6.2 To prevent Tax Evasion, Council staff (and associates, so far as relevant) should: 

• always follow Council policies, procedures and guidance; 
• tell management if any criminal activity is suspected; 
• attend any appropriate training offered. 

 

H
M

RC
's 

ke
y 

pr
in

ci
pl

es

Implement a risk assessment that can identify the nature and extent 
of their exposure to the risk of facilitating Tax Evasion

Implement proportionate risk-based prevention procedures 

Demonstrate an effective top level commitment

Have effective due diligence of the customer base to secure 
compliance with UK and foreign tax legislation 

Have an effective training and communication strategy 

Have an effective compliance function which includes monitoring and 
review to ensure compliance

Page 108



Anti-Tax Evasion Policy 
 

 
P a g e  | 9 

 

6.3 Failure to comply with these policies, procedures and guidance, including in 
particular failure to comply with the obligations detailed in this policy, may result 
in disciplinary action for staff and the termination of arrangements with 
associates. 

 
6.4 Should staff or associates be concerned that another employee or associate is 

facilitating a third party’s Tax Evasion, they should report this (see section 10 on 
how to raise your concerns).  

 
6.5 Specifically, staff and associates must not knowingly do anything that helps 
 someone else to evade tax. Note in this context that the Council is only 

responsible for the actions of associates in respect of things they do for, or on 
behalf of, the Council. Other than this the Council is not responsible for the way 
associates manage their business. 

 
6.6 It is not acceptable for officers and associates to: 

 
• engage in any form of facilitating Tax Evasion or Foreign Tax Evasion. 
▪    aid, abet, counsel or procure the commission of a Tax Evasion offence or 
     Foreign Tax Evasion offence by another person. 
▪     fail to promptly report any request or demand  from any third party to facilitate 

the fraudulent Evasion of Tax by another person, in accordance with this 
policy;  

▪    engage in any other activity that might lead to a breach of this policy;  
▪    threaten or retaliate against another individual who has refused to commit a 

Tax Evasion offence or a Foreign Tax Evasion offence or who has raised 
concerns under this policy. 

▪    commit an offence under the law of any part of the UK consisting of being 
knowingly concerned in, or taking steps with a view to, the fraudulent 
evasion of tax. 

  

Page 109



Anti-Tax Evasion Policy 
 

 
P a g e  | 10 

 

 
7. Risk assessment 
 
 
7.1 The Council should assess the nature and extent of its exposure to the risk of 

those who act for or on its behalf engaging in activity during the course of 
business to criminally facilitate Tax Evasion, analysing whether they have the 
motive, opportunity and means to do so and how that risk might be managed.  
The Council should keep the risks under review. 

 
7.2 The Council’s systems of control are designed to aid compliance. In addition, the 

Council’s Internal Audit Team conducts regular compliance checks paying 
specific attention to areas of high risk and providing reports to Governance and 
Audit Committee. 

 
7.3 Examples of the type of exposure the Council faces in relation to the prevention 

of the facilitation of Tax Evasion and how the risk is managed is attached as 
Appendix A. 

 
7.4 The Council has governance processes and procedures to address specific risks. 

This includes both this policy and a “whistle blowing” policy. The Council also has 
procedures in place on the segregation of duties, budget holder’s guidance, Anti 
Money Laundering Policy and Anti-Fraud and Bribery Strategy. 

 
7.5 There is not an exhaustive list of Tax Evasion opportunities. At a more general 

level, the best defence of Tax Evasion and facilitation of Tax Evasion remains 
the vigilance of our officers and the adoption of a common sense approach 
supported by our clear whistleblowing procedures. 

 
  

 
8.  Senior management commitment 
 
 
 
8.1  The top-level management of a relevant body should be committed to 

preventing persons associated with it from engaging in the criminal facilitation 
of Tax Evasion. Those at the most senior levels of a relevant body are best 
placed to foster a culture where actions intended to facilitate Tax Evasion are 
considered unacceptable.   

 
8.2 This policy has been approved by Cabinet and complements the Anti-Fraud 

and Corruption Strategy.  
 
8.3 Once adopted the policy will be reported to the Governance and Audit 

Committee for monitoring and review. 
  

Page 110



Anti-Tax Evasion Policy 
 

 
P a g e  | 11 

 

 
9.   Due diligence 
 
 
9.1 A relevant body should apply due diligence procedures, taking an appropriate 

risk based approach, to identify the risk of criminal facilitation of Tax Evasion 
by associated persons, in order to mitigate such risks. 

 
9.2 Reasonable care and caution is exercised when processing all transactions 

particularly high value/high risk area payments. Regular monitoring takes place 
and particular caution is exercised when making payment to new suppliers. 

 
9.3 In applying a common sense approach, officers must be aware of the following: 

 Is there anything unusual about the manner in which an associate of 
the Council is conducting their relationship with the third party (usually 
a customer)? 

 Is there anything unusual about the customer’s or associate’s conduct 
or behaviour? 

 Are there unusual payment methods? 
 

9.4 An example of high risk factors are listed below: 
 Private banking. 
 Anonymous transactions (which may include cash). 
 Non face-to-face business relationships or transactions. 
 Payment received from unknown or associated third parties. 
 The business relationship is conducted in unusual circumstances. 
 Non-resident customers. 
 Businesses that are cash intensive. 
 The ownership structure of the company appears unusual or 

excessively complex. 
 Countries identified by credible sources as not having adequate anti-

money laundering and counter-terrorism financing approaches. 
 Countries subject to sanctions, embargoes, or similar measures issued 

by, for example, the UN 
 Countries identified by credible sources as providing support for 

terrorist activities, or that have designated terrorist organisations 
operating within their country 

 
9.5 Unusual payment methods and unusual conduct of third parties with Council 

associates can be indicative that a transaction may not be as it seems – please 
refer to section 5 of the Council’s ‘Anti-money Laundering Policy’ for further 
guidance on unusual payment methods and unusual conduct. Likewise, the 
Council procedures outlined in the aforementioned policy for identifying the 
customer are also an important part of the Councils’ policy against Tax Evasion. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 111



Anti-Tax Evasion Policy 
 

 
P a g e  | 12 

 

10.  How to raise a concern 
 
 
10.1 The Council is committed to ensuring that there is a safe, reliable, and 

confidential way of reporting any suspicious activity, and wants each and every 
member of staff to know how they can raise concerns. 

 
10.2 All have a responsibility to help detect, prevent and report instances of Tax 

Evasion.  If you have a concern regarding a suspected instance of Tax Evasion 
please speak up – your information and assistance will help. The sooner it is 
brought to attention, the sooner it can be resolved. You do NOT need to be 
certain that Tax Evasion is taking place to report it. 

 
10.3 The Council has clear guidance in its Whistleblowing Policy in relation to how 

employees can raise their concern. However as this policy relates specifically 
to Tax Evasion any concerns or suspicions should be directed to the: 

 
 Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change, and 
 Deputy Head of Finance 

10.4 Officers are encouraged to raise concerns about any issue or suspicion of Tax 
Evasion as soon as possible. If there is any suspicions of any intention that a 
staff member, associate or third party is attempting to commit Tax Evasion, the 
details of the parties and the transaction must be reported to the Chief Officer 
– Finance, Performance and Change using the confidential form at Appendix 
B, who may report the circumstances to HMRC.  

 
10.5 Concerns expressed anonymously may, at the Council’s discretion, be 

considered but are much less powerful.  It is better to raise your concerns in 
writing but you may equally express your concerns verbally and have the detail 
recorded for you. Whilst you will not be expected to prove the truth of any 
allegations you make, you will need to demonstrate sufficient grounds for your 
concerns. 

 
10.6 In the event that an incident of suspected wrong doing is reported, the Council 

will act as soon as possible to evaluate the situation. It has clearly defined 
procedures for investigating fraud, misconduct and non-compliance issues and 
these will be followed in any investigation of this kind. This is easier if and 
quicker if concerns raised are not anonymous.  

 
 
 
11.  What happens if an officer prefers not to report their              

suspicions? 
 
 
11.1  This should never happen. If there is any suspicion of any intention to evade 
 tax and the transaction if nevertheless finalised, the Council can be criminally 
 prosecuted, subject to a large fine and be publically named and shamed. 
 

Page 112



Anti-Tax Evasion Policy 
 

 
P a g e  | 13 

 

12. Self reporting  
 
 
12.1  If an organisation suspects that one of the two offences may have taken place 

it may wish to undertake an internal investigation and (voluntarily) self-report; 
self-reporting can be done via an online form. The official UK HM Revenue & 
Customs guidance states that “In order to encourage relevant bodies to 
disclose wrongdoing, timely self-reporting will be viewed as an indicator that a 
relevant body has reasonable procedures in place” (so an organisation may 
have a defence).  

 
  
13. Communication & training 
 
 
13.1  To ensure that the policy against engaging in activities to help clients commit 

tax fraud is communicated, embedded and understood throughout the 
organisation to help deter those providing services on behalf of the relevant 
body from engaging in such activities, all new staff, especially those involved 
in processing and approving financial transactions, will be made aware of this 
policy via their induction.  

 
13.2  All staff will also be able to access this information on the Council’s intranet. 
 
13.3 It will be the responsibility of Chief Officers for ensuring compliance with the 

policy. 
 
 
14. Monitoring & review 
 
 
14.1 Monitoring and reviews of the Council’s prevention procedures will form part of 

audit programmes with regular reports to the Governance and Audit 
Committee. 

 
14.2 The Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change will be responsible for 

the continuous review and amendment of this policy document, to ensure that 
it remains compliant with good practice and legislative requirements. The policy 
was reviewed  in March 2023 and will be reviewed biennially thereafter.  

 
 
15. Other relevant policies  
 
 
15.1 Further information on the relevant Council policy and practice can be found in 

the following internal documents: 
 

Page 113



Anti-Tax Evasion Policy 
 

 
P a g e  | 14 

 

 The Council’s Constitution, incorporating the Members’ Code of Conduct, 
Officers’ Code of Conduct, Contract Procedure Rules, Financial Procedure 
Rules; 

 Anti-Money Laundering Policy; 
 Anti-Fraud and Bribery Policy; 
 Whistleblowing Policy; 
 Gifts & Hospitality Policy for Officers; 

 
 
 
  

Page 114



Anti-Tax Evasion Policy 
 

 
P a g e  | 15 

 

APPENDIX A 
 
Example of risk exposure within the Council in relation to the facilitation of tax 
evasion & how the risk is managed 
 
1.  Construction Industry Scheme  
 
2.1 There is a risk of suppliers purposely submitting artificially low labour breakdowns 

on their invoices to avoid tax being deducted on the labour element or no tax 
being deducted at all. 

2.2 There is a risk that staff have a lack of understanding as to what work comes 
within the scope of the scheme or the implications of not applying the scheme. 

 
2.3 The member of staff would have had to act deliberately and dishonestly to 

facilitate the taxpayer-level evasion for the Council to be considered as having 
committed a criminal offence in assisting in a third party in Criminal Tax Evasion.  

 
2.4 The Council has in place adequate Construction Industry Scheme (CIS) 

procedure documents, and undertakes a daily check of all CIS payments input 
into the financial information system to ensure that they have been correctly 
included or excluded from the CIS scheme and that labour has been recorded 
and flagged as such, if expected. In addition all new data entry inputters receive 
full training about the scheme and their responsibilities, and are provided with the 
rules of the scheme on an annual basis. All staff centrally supporting the payment 
of CIS transactions have also received internal training and are familiar with the 
HMRC guidance on CIS.  

 

3. Direct Payments (for Care & Support Services) 

 

3.1 There is a risk that there is a deliberate failure to ensure deduction of Income Tax 
and National Insurance from payments made to personal assistants by recipients 
of Direct Care Payments. 

 

3.2 There is a risk that the Council makes payments to people who have over-stated 
their requirements at the needs assessment stage. 

 

2.3 A member of staff would have had to act deliberately and dishonestly to facilitate 
the taxpayer-level evasion for the Council to be considered as having committed 
a criminal offence in assisting in a third party in Criminal Tax Evasion. To achieve 
such evasion, it would require collusion by a number of parties involved in the 
Direct Payments process. 

 

2.4 The Council has adequate Direct Payments Protocol and Guidance documents 
in place.  The Council has a contract in place with a Direct Payments Support 
Organisation, who offer support to Direct Payment recipients, by providing a fully 
comprehensive payroll service in accordance with HMRC regulations.  Direct 
Payments bank accounts are monitored and reconciled, to ensure that the money 

Page 115



Anti-Tax Evasion Policy 
 

 
P a g e  | 16 

 

is being used appropriately.  All payments calculated by the Council to Direct 
Payment recipients are checked and authorised by a second member of staff.   

 

3.  Grants 

 

3.1     There is a risk that an organisation purposely fails to ensure that grant funding 
provided by the Council is used for its intended purpose. 

 

3.2 There is a risk that the Council gives a grant to an organisation for a specific 
project or service which may include the employment of staff. Staff are paid 
without the appropriate deduction of Income Tax and National Insurance. 

 

3.3 The member of staff would have had to act deliberately and dishonestly to 
facilitate the taxpayer-level evasion for the Council to be considered as having 
committed a criminal offence in assisting in a third party in Criminal Tax Evasion. 

 

3.4 The Council has in place a number of controls to mitigate the risk including a 
robust process in place in relation to the financial management of grants via its 
grant procedure rules, strong segregation of duties, due diligence and financial 
procedure rules which assists in mitigating the risk of collusion. 

 

4. Off Payroll Working – IR35 

 

4.1  There is a risk that a member of staff fails to identify workers and associates that 
should be paid via the payroll system rather than the creditors system. If the 
member of staff did not deliberately and dishonestly take action to facilitate the 
taxpayer-level evasion and are proved to have accidentally, ignorantly or even 
negligently facilitated the Tax Evasion offence then an offence has not been 
committed by the Council. 

 

4.2 There is a risk that a  supplier wishes to be treated as a self-employed contractor 
so that payments to them are paid gross and they can evade paying the 
appropriate income tax and national insurance liabilities. There is a risk that a 
Council officer helps the supplier by deliberately falsifying information on the 
Employment Status Questionnaire so the worker is treated as a contractor rather 
than deducting PAYE at source. By supplying false information in this way, the 
Council employee is committing a criminal offence as they have assisted a third 
party in Criminal Tax Evasion. 

 

4.3  The Council has in place a number of controls to mitigate risk. Control procedures 
are in place so that all new suppliers are set up centrally and are reviewed to 
ensure that off payroll working is identified and treated appropriately. All sundry 
suppliers are reviewed daily and investigated where necessary to identify if they 

Page 116



Anti-Tax Evasion Policy 
 

 
P a g e  | 17 

 

meet the criteria for off payroll working. Although there are central controls to 
diligently review that off payroll working is identified, it does rely on the manager 
completing the IR35 self-assessment correctly. 

 

5. PAYE- Income Tax & National Insurance  

 

5.1 There is a risk that a member of staff fails to deduct the tax and NI at the correct 
rate. If there is no collusion and the member of staff did not deliberately and 
dishonestly take action to facilitate the taxpayer-level evasion and are proved to 
have accidentally, ignorantly or even negligently facilitated the Tax Evasion 
offence then an offence has not been committed by the Council.  

 

5.2 The Council has in place a number of controls to mitigate this risk, Tax and 
National Insurance details are system generated on the payroll system so the 
only potential issue could be where these are manually overwritten. If this should 
happen then this would be picked up in the monthly real time submission to 
HMRC which provides information about tax and other deductions under the 
PAYE system. 

 

6. Value Added Tax   

  

6.1 There is a risk of suppliers adding VAT to their invoices when they are not 
registered for VAT.  Payment would be made to the supplier and recovered from 
HMRC.   The expense would not fall as a cost to anyone’s budget so would be 
difficult to spot. 

 

7.1 There is a risk that an officer pays a fraudulent VAT only invoice. The expense 
would not fall as a cost to anyone’s budget as the money would be recovered 
from HMRC. 

 

7.2 Both instances would have to be in collusion with officers for there to be an 
offence of assisting a third party in Criminal Tax Evasion. 

 

6.4 The Council has in place a number of controls to mitigate risk. The Council’s 
Constitution - Part 4 Rules of Procedure requires that each Chief Officer be 
responsible for examining, verifying and authorising invoices and any other 
payment vouchers or accounts arising from sources in their Directorate. Before 
authorising an account, the authorising officer shall be satisfied that invoices 
satisfy VAT regulations and that prices, extension, calculations etc. are correct. 
A similar responsibility exists for schools where the checking of invoices for 
accuracy and that VAT has correctly been charged is the responsibility of the 
Finance Officer or Bursar. Additionally, VAT only invoices are costed separately 
and are easily identifiable and as such are reviewed by a member of the VAT 
team to ensure VAT has correctly been applied.  

Page 117



Anti-Tax Evasion Policy 
 

 
P a g e  | 18 

 

 

 Payment To Suppliers 

 

7.1     There is a risk that a supplier seeks to evade tax by asking to be paid into an 
offshore account, to deliberately and dishonestly hide their income which will not 
be declared in the UK for UK tax purposes, and that they send an invoice to the 
Council asking to be paid into this bank account which is not the same as the one 
set up within our supplier database. 

7.2 There is a risk that an officer of the Council (who in this example is the ‘associated 
person’) facilitates this Tax Evasion by deliberately and dishonestly paying this 
invoice into the offshore account at the request of the supplier. This could be as 
a result of collusion (such as taking a bribe), or could be simply turning a blind 
eye to the Tax Evasion of which they are aware. 

7.3 Both instances would have to be in collusion with officers for there to be an 
offence of assisting a third party in Criminal Tax Evasion 

7.43 The Council has in place a number of controls to reduce the risk and prevent the 
facilitation of Tax Evasion including managing all supplier creation at a central 
point, a verification process for changing supplier bank details, the on-line 
authorisation of invoices and all supplier transactions must be supported by 
relevant invoice(s) / documentation and independently signed off as approved to 
pay. For payments over a certain financial value there is an additional tier of 
authorisation before payment is processed. Financial Procedure Rules also apply 
to all payments made by Corporate Purchasing Cards which should mitigate the 
risk of fraud and error. Planned Internal Audit reviews of payments also ensure 
that procedures are in place and being followed. 

 

 Cash  

 

7.3 There is a risk that cash received from a supplier or service recipient by a member 
of staff is retained by the individual and not paid into the Authority’s bank account. 

 
7.4 Whilst this would be considered a criminal activity, for a Criminal Tax Evasion 

Offence to be committed under the Act collusion would also have had to have 
taken place. 

 
7.5 The Council has in place a number of controls to reduce the risk of the theft or 

facilitation of tax evasion in respect of cash transactions including financial 
procedure rules. Cash high risk areas also have additional controls in place to 
ensure the safety of cash as it progresses internally to the point of collection by 
our external secure cash collection service providers. For example all our metric 
car parking machines can be interrogated from the back office system to establish 
which machines need emptying, two officers are allocated for collection and 
counting of the cash and there is dual supervision when counting monies. Receipt 
of cash is supported by a full audit trail and coins bagged in readiness for 
collection by our courier service is reconciled back to machine receipts which is 
then signed for by the cash collection courier before onward transmission to a 

Page 118



Anti-Tax Evasion Policy 
 

 
P a g e  | 19 

 

specialist sorting office for banking. The system supporting metric car parking 
also has functionality which can identify any discrepancies very early so we can 
check machines to minimise and protect potential financial losses. A number of 
newer machines also have card payment facilities and as a result the use of coin 
is falling considerably, additionally most car parks have a paybyphone system 
and this usage has also increased.  

 

 Outsourcing  
 

7.6 There is a risk that an outsourced service provide colludes with a member of staff 
to facilitate tax evasion. 

 
7.7 The Council has in place a number of controls to mitigate this risk of staff 

colluding with outsourced services as officers have to adhere to internal rules 
such as contract procedure rules and financial procedure rules. Additionally 
outsourced service providers have other rules that they need to comply with. For 
example: 
 

I. Our leisure services provider is a registered charity and a company limited 
by guarantee and therefore have to comply with company law as well as 
charity law and intrinsically are required to submit externally audited accounts 
and statutory reports to both annually. The leisure services provider have in 
place financial procedures and controls that support budget setting, financial 
performance review and operational controls that would be expected of an 
established charity, as well as an internal audit function. Financial 
performance is scrutinised at their board level and discussed as part of client 
monitoring approaches. An advisory board mechanism is available in 
Bridgend and quarterly reports present financial and other performance 
information. The leisure services provider provides their accounts to the 
charity commissioners and share the details with Bridgend County Borough 
Council. They also manage any food and beverage related services 
themselves – there is no outsourcing – which falls under the internal controls 
and processes established by the leisure services provider. 

 
II. Our cultural trust services provider also has in place financial procedures and 

controls that support budget setting, financial performance review and 
operational controls that would be expected of an established charity. 
Financial performance is scrutinised at the cultural trust services board level 
and discussed as part of client monitoring approaches. They also provide 
their accounts to the charity commissioners and share the details with 
Bridgend County Borough Council. Cultural Trust Services Trading is in place 
to operate services that have a level of commerciality (Bryngarw House, 
Bryngarw Café, Pavilion Café and bars) and to donate any profits to the Trust 
as the parent organisation-standard practice for Trust based models. The 
services referenced such as food and beverage are now directly operated by 
the Trust as opposed to being sub contracted. As well as the external audit, 
the Trust also have an internal audit function which assists in creating 
financial controls, ensuring they are adhered to, indicating where they need 
improving and ensuring that those improvements are actioned as required. 
 

Page 119



Anti-Tax Evasion Policy 
 

 
P a g e  | 20 

 

APPENDIX B  
 

Report of  tax evasion activity 
 

 
Report to the Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change 

 
 
To: Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change 
 
From: _____________________________ 
[Insert name of employee] 
 
Directorate: _____________________________ 
 
 
[Insert post title and team] 
 
Ext/Tel No: _____________  
 
Urgent  Yes/No  
 
Date by which response needed: _____________  
 
 
Details of suspected offence:  
 

Name(s) and address(es) of person(s) involved: 
[If a company/public body please include details of nature of business, please 
supply as many details as possible] 
 
 
 
 

 
Nature, value and timing of activity involved: 
[Please include full details e.g. what, when, where, how. Continue on a separate 
sheet if necessary] 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Nature of suspicions regarding such activity: 
[Please continue on a separate sheet if necessary] 
 
 

Page 120



Anti-Tax Evasion Policy 
 

 
P a g e  | 21 

 

 
 
 

 
 
Has any investigation been undertaken (as far as you are aware)? [Delete as 
appropriate] 
Yes / No 
 
 

 
 
 
If yes, please include details below: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Have you discussed your suspicions with anyone else? 
[Delete as appropriate] 
 
Yes / No 
 
 
 

 
If yes, please specify below, explaining why such discussion was necessary: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Please set out below any other information you feel is relevant: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Signed: _____________________________ Dated: ___________________  
 
Please do not discuss the content of this report with anyone and particularly 
those you believe to be involved in the suspected tax evasion activity described. 

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



 

BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO THE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

27 APRIL 2023 
 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF OFFICER - FINANCE, PERFORMANCE AND CHANGE 
 

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2023-24 
 
 

1. Purpose of report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the proposed Forward Work 

Programme for 2023-24. 
 

2. Connections to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities 
 
2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being objective 

under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015: 
 

• Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community that 
can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives.  

 
3. Background 
 
3.1 The core functions of an effective Governance and Audit Committee include the 

responsibility to: 
 

• review, scrutinise and issue reports and recommendations in relation to the  
Authority’s financial affairs. 

• consider the adequacy of the risk management framework, the internal control 
environment and the integrity of the financial reporting, governance processes, 
performance assessment and complaints arrangements. 

• seek assurances that action is being taken on risk-related issues identified by 
auditors and inspectors. 

• consider the effectiveness of the Council’s anti-fraud and corruption 
arrangements. 

• be satisfied that the Council’s assurance statements properly reflect the risk 
environment and any actions required to improve it. 

• oversee the work of internal audit (including the annual plan and strategy) and 
monitor performance. 

• review summary internal audit reports and the main issues arising, and seek 
assurance that action has been taken where necessary. 

• receive the annual report of the Head of Internal Audit. 

• consider the reports of external audit and inspection agencies, where 
applicable. 

• ensure that there are effective relationships between external and internal audit, 
inspection agencies and other relevant bodies, and that the value of the audit 
process is actively promoted. 

Page 123

Agenda Item 9



 

• review and approve the financial statements, external auditor’s opinion and 
reports to Members, and monitor management action in response to the issues 
raised by external audit. 

• review and make any recommendations for change to the Council’s draft self-
assessment report. 

• consider panel performance assessment reports into how the Council is meeting 
its performance requirements.  

 
3.2  Effective Governance and Audit Committees help to raise the profile of governance, 

internal control, risk management and financial reporting issues within an 
organisation, as well as providing a forum for the discussion of issues raised by 
internal and external auditors. They enhance public trust and confidence in the 
financial governance of an authority. 

 
4. Current situation/proposal 
 
4.1 In order to assist the Committee in ensuring that due consideration is given to all 

aspects of their core functions the proposed Forward Work Programme for 2023-24 
is attached at Appendix A. Committee Members are asked to endorse this schedule, 
confirm the list of people they would like to invite for each item (if appropriate), and 
indicate whether any additional information or research is required. 

 
4.2  Shown below are the items scheduled to be presented at the next meeting, currently 

proposed to be held on 1 June 2023.  
 

 Proposed Agenda Items – 1 June 2023 

1 Governance and Audit Committee Action Record  
2 Audit Wales Governance and Audit Committee Reports  
3 Annual Internal Audit Report 2022-23 

4 Internal Audit Annual Strategy and Audit Plan 2023-24 

5 Corporate Risk Assessment 

6 Annual Self Assessment of the Council’s performance 

7 Updated Forward Work Programme 2023-24 

 
 
4.3 The schedule of items for discussion at specific meetings may be subject to change, 

to take into account other items that need to be considered, and operational factors. 
It should be noted that the meeting dates are subject to approval by Council at its 
Annual Meeting to be held on 17 May 2023. 

 
 
5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules 
 
5.1 There is no impact on the policy framework and procedure rules.  
 
6. Equality Act 2010 implications 
 
6.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic Duty 

and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in the 
preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales the Council must consider the 
impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 

Page 124



 

strategies, services and functions. It is considered that there will be no significant or 
unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report. 

 
7.  Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications 
 
7.1  The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 

report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts upon 
the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report. 
 

8. Financial implications 
 
8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
9. Recommendation 
 
9.1 That the Committee considers and approves the Forward Work Programme for 

2023-24.  
 
 
 
Carys Lord 
Chief Officer – Finance, Performance and Change 
April 2023 

 
Contact Officer: Deborah Exton 
   Deputy Head of Finance 
 
Telephone:  (01656) 643604    
 
E-mail:  deborah.exton@bridgend.gov.uk 
 
Postal Address: Bridgend County Borough Council 
   Civic Offices 
   Angel Street 
   Bridgend 
   CF31 4WB 
 
 

 

Background Documents: None 
 

Page 125

mailto:deborah.exton@bridgend.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2023-24 Frequency 01 June 2023 26 July 2023 28 September 2023 09 November 2023 25 January 2024 18 April 2024

Standing Items

Governance and Audit Committee Action Record Each meeting ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

Audit Wales Governance and Audit Committee Reports Each meeting ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

Updated Forward Work Programme Each meeting ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

Annual Accounts

Statement of Accounts 2022-23 (unaudited) Annually ✓

Porthcawl Harbour Return 2022-23 (unaudited) Annually ✓

Audited Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement Annually ✓

Porthcawl Harbour Return (audit letter) Annually ✓

Governance

Annual Governance Statement 2023-24 Annually ✓

Half Year Review of the Annual Governance Statement 2023-24 Annually ✓

Audit Wales Annual Audit Plan (included in Audit Wales Governance and Audit Committee Reports item) Annually ✓

Annual Audit Summary (included in Audit Wales Governance and Audit Committee Reports item) Annually ✓

Internal Audit Reports

Annual Internal Audit Report 2022-23 Annually ✓

Internal Audit Shared Service Charter Annually ✓

Internal Audit Annual Strategy and Audit Plan 2023-24 Annually ✓

Self Assessment of the Governance and Audit Committee Annually ✓

Internal Audit Progress Reports Quarterly ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

Internal Audit Recommendation Monitoring Report Quarterly ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓

Treasury Management

Treasury Management Outturn Report 2022-23 Annually ✓

Treasury Management Half Year Report 2023-24 Annually ✓

Treasury Management Strategy 2024-25 Annually ✓

Risk Assurance

Corporate Risk Assessment At regular intervals ✓ ✓ ✓

Counter Fraud

Corporate Fraud Report 2022-23 Annually ✓

Anti Tax Evasion Policy (previously considered April 2023, due April 2025) Biennially

Performance Related

Complaints Process Ad hoc ✓

Regulatory Tracker 6 monthly ✓ ✓

Annual Self Assessment of the Council's Performance Annually ✓

P
age 127



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	4 Cofnod Gweithredu'r Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio
	April 2023 Audit Committee Tracker Appendix

	5 Adroddiadau Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio Cymru
	Appendix A BCBC Audit Wales Gov. and Audit Comm. report Q4
	Appendix B Audit Wales Gov. and Audit Comm. reportsBCBC Annual Audit Summary
	Appendix C Audit Wales Gov. & Audit Comm. reports
	Performance Management Review – Bridgend County Borough Council
	Summary
	What we reviewed and why
	What we found

	Recommendations
	We found that the Council's performance management arrangements do not consistently enable it to effectively evaluate and manage its performance
	Weaknesses in performance information are limiting the Council’s awareness of its own performance and its ability to manage its performance effectively.
	The Council’s focus on collecting, rather than analysing data and ensuring its accuracy, limits the impact of its performance management arrangements.



	Appendix D Audit Wales Gov. and Audit Comm. reports

	6 Cynnydd yn erbyn cynllun seiliedig ar risg archwilio mewnol 2022-23
	Appendix A - Progress Against the IA Plan

	7 Siarter Gwasanaeth Archwilio Mewnol Rhanbarthol 2023-24
	Internal Audit Charter Appendix 2023-24

	8 Polisi Atal Osgoi Treth
	Appendix A - Anti Tax Evasion Policy

	9 Rhaglen Gwaith Cychwynnol 2023-24
	Appendix A Governance and Audit Committee FWP 2023-24


